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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GROWTH ENTERPRISE MARKET (“GEM”) OF THE
STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk may be attached
than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in
such companies and should make the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration. The greater risk profile and other

characteristics of GEM mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM, there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high
market volatility than securities traded on the Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities
traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for the contents
of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss

howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of WLS Holdings Limited (the “Company”) collectively and individually
accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM (the
“GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable
enquiries, confirm that, to the best of their knowledge and belief: (1) the information contained in this report is accurate and complete
in all material respects and not misleading; (2) there are no other matters the omission of which would make any statement in this
report misleading; and (3) all opinions expressed in this report have been arrived at after due and careful consideration and are found

on bases and assumptions that are fair and reasonable.
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“CIRCLE AND SQUARE” CONCEPT

In this intensely competitive world, the winners are those who take the
initiative to build a solid foundation and dedicate efforts on self improvement

and enhance business efficiencies.

WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS” or the “Company”), with excellent business
acumen, takes a proactive stance on incorporating the “Circle and Square”
concept into its corporate mission. The underlying meaning of having a
“Circle” encompassing a square symbolises the importance of offering smooth

services and flexibility to external parties, and internally, attention to detail.

Cautiousness and striving after perfection are equally important. That is why
we shall adhere unwaveringly to our principle of perpetual emphasis and

continuous improvement on “Safety, Quality and Efficiency”.

WLS practises and preaches the theory of “Circle and Square” by integrating
flexibility into every step of its operations as well as abiding by every legal

regulation and restriction.
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SEREERABR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

#B 2 H =+ H LI B4 Financial Year ended 30 April

—E—NE R —HAF e S U ETE ZE A

2016 2015 2014 2013

T 70 T T T

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

e Turnover 155,451 136,641 111,961 125,949

[ Tl s 48 Loss before taxation (16,812) (7,528) (69,041) (13,968)

AN FRER A A Loss for the year

JRE Ak A 4F attributable to equity

JiEE holders of the Company (18,197) (9,655) (61,275) (14,219)

TR GasAl) Loss per share (HK cent) (0.225) 0.9) (13.0) 3.2)

3 SEREERABR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Bk 1L Dr. So Yu Shing

FJ# Chairman
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SEREERABR AR WLS Holdings Limited

I am pleased to present the annual results of WLS Holdings Limited and its
subsidiaries (together herein referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 30
April 2016 (“Year”).

During the Year, the construction industry in Hong Kong maintained a
moderate growth momentum amidst Hong Kong’s economic slowdown.
According to data released by the Census and Statistics Department of the
Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (“Hong Kong”), the total gross
value of construction works performed by main contractors, after discounting

the effect of price changes, increased by 5.2% in real terms in the Year.

Due to keen demand for construction projects and the current ageing
workforce, there was a tightening of the labour supply during the Year which
accelerated a rise in overall labour costs. The Group’s earnings and margins
were adversely affected by this. However, as a result of implementing cost
control and efficiency enhancement measures, coupled with contributions
from newly developed business operations, the Group’s revenue amounted
to approximately HK$155.5 million in the Year, representing an increase of

approximately 13.8% year-on-year.

As a leading scaffolding sub-contractor, the Group won a total of 10 projects
during the Year, including the provision of scaffolding services to a residential
development site in Sha Po North (Phase 1B-2), Kam Tin, a hotel development
site in Java Road, North Point and a data centre development site at Tseung
Kwan O Town Lot 122, worth a total contract sum of approximately HK$31
million. The Group has been actively looking for opportunities to promote the
adoption of the “Pik Lik” brand scaffolding system throughout the Asia Pacific
market. Therefore we participated in a key industry conference in Japan during
the Year.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

Our fitting out services business division, which provides interior design
services for residential properties in Hong Kong, achieved outstanding results
during the Year. It generated revenue of approximately HK$55.2 million,
representing an increase of approximately 194.9%, which further improved the
overall operating results of the Group. The profit margins of the division were

also maintained at a relatively high level.

With the aim of broadening our business portfolio, we put more resources on
our money lending and securities investment business operations during the
Year. The Group entered into several loan agreements in the principal amount
ranging from HK$2 million to HK$94 million, bearing an interest rate ranging
between 8% to 12% per annum. In order to secure the money we lent out, the
Group only accepted loans by referred listed companies or individuals, and
we adhered to strict internal controls while screening borrowers. During the
Year, revenue generated from the money lending business was approximately
HK$11.7 million, accounting for approximately 7.5% of the Group’s total
turnover. We believe that the money lending business will become one of the

Group’s key revenue drivers in the near future.

Looking ahead, the Group is prudently optimistic about prospects for the
coming year. To achieve the objective of promoting economic growth
through infrastructural development, the Hong Kong government has been
increasing its infrastructure investments over the past few years. Some of the
infrastructure projects announced in 2007 have had their details published and
tenders released, thereby stimulating local construction activities. Government
spending on construction is set to rise by more than HK$50 billion over the next
decade, as 10 major public infrastructure projects will be carried out across

Hong Kong, according to the Construction Industry Council (CIC).

ZZ—EFR  Annual Report 2016
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However, a couple of construction projects, which include the Hong Kong-
Zhuhai-Macao Bridge, face the risk of delays and accelerating costs due to an
acute shortage of skilled construction workers. To cope with these challenges,
we will continue to promote the use of the “Pik Lik” brand scaffolding system
to help improve overall efficiency. The Group will also continue to expand
those business segments with higher profit margins, such as the fitting out

services business division, in order to maximise returns to our shareholders.

In December 2015, the Group completed the issue of new shares under specific
mandates and raised approximately HK$520.38 million. The proceeds have
been utilised for the development and expansion of the Group’s money lending
business, as well as investments in businesses related to financial and securities
markets, construction and other ancillary services sectors, as well as the general
working capital of the Group. We will actively identify all suitable investment
opportunities to diversify our business horizons and strengthen overall business

development.

In conclusion, on behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Directors”),
I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere gratitude to our
management team, staff members, business partners and shareholders for their

continuous support during the Year.

So Yu Shing

Chairman

22 July 2016

EREZERAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 30 April 2016 (“Year”), the Group recorded revenue of
approximately HK$155,451,000 (2015: HK$136,641,000), representing an
increase of approximately 13.8% compared to the year ended 30 April 2015
(“Last Year”). Net loss attributable to equity holders of the Company for
the reporting period was approximately HK$18,197,000, which increased
approximately 88.5% against the same period in 2015. The increase of the
turnover was mainly contributed by the revenue from fitting out services and
money lending operations. Given the beneficial financial environment in Hong
Kong, the Group sees great potential in the money lending sector and will put
more effort and resources for its development. The Group completed the issue
of new shares and raised approximately HK$520.38 million in December 2015,
which enhanced its cash position for the development and facilitated expansion

of the Group’s money lending business operations.

Scaffolding services

During the Year, the Hong Kong government was called on to increase
residential use land supply, which resulted in continuous demand in the
construction industry. According to research from the Hong Kong Trade
Development Council, in the second quarter of 2015, Hong Kong’s gross
value of construction work performed by main contractors went up by 15% to
HK$55.2 billion. In addition, ten mega infrastructure projects first announced
in 2007, were being rolled out in phases as scheduled, boosting Hong Kong’s
construction market. The Group has benefited from the related policies of the
obviously growing real estate supply and encouraging greater infrastructure
construction. During the Year, the Group had successfully secured 10 new

contracts.

However, labour shortages still remain a key factor leading to low profit
margins in spite of the moderately growing construction environment.
Leveraging the strong relationships we have nurtured with clients and the
widespread recognition of our quality of services, we were able to maintain
relatively sound performance amidst competitive environments. During the
period under review, we provided scaffolding services for 26 ongoing projects,

12 of which were completed on schedule.

The Group’s patented scaffolding system, known as “Pik-Lik”, played a
remarkable role in saving manpower hours and achieving higher efficiency. We
have been actively looking for opportunities to expand our scaffolding services
business throughout the Asia Pacific market and participated in an industry
conference in Japan to promote the use of “Pik Lik” brand scaffolding systems,

during the Year under review.
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EREZERAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

Project Portfolio of Scaffolding Division (As of 30 April 2016)

. Park Yoho

o Residential Development at Sha Po North (Phase 1B-1)

. Residential Development Sha Po North (Phase 1B-2), Kam Tin

. Victoria Harbour

. Residential Development at 97 Belcher’s Street, Hong Kong

. Residential Development at S.T.L 566, area S6A, Kau To Shan, Shatin

. Residential Development at Area 36, Tung Chung

. Residential Development at 1 Serenity Path, Silverstand, Sai Kung

. Public Housing Development at Anderson Road, Site D

. Public Housing Development at Lai Yue Mun, Phase 3

. Proposed Hotel Development at 1.1..9020, North Point

. Proposed New Data Centre at TKO TKOTL122

. Contract 904, Lei Tung Station and South Horizons Station of MTRC

. Detached house in Ma Wan Park-Hostels Area

. Proposed Commercial Development at 33 Tseuk Luk Street

J Commercial Industrial Building Development 680 Castle Peak Road,
Cheung Sha Wan, Kowloon

. Podium of residential development at Area 66D2, T.K.O.T.L. 118,
Tseung Kwan O

. Refurbishment of Valid Industrial Centre, 13-15 Wing Kei Road, Kwai
Chung

. Refurbishment of Metroplaza, Kwai Fong

. Refurbishment of Luen Tai Industrial Building at KCTL 131

3 Refurbishment of 26 Nathan Road, Tsim Sha Tsui

. Refurbishment at Level 1-3, Tai Po Mega Mall, Tai Po, N.T.

. Refurbishment at Apec Plaza, No. 8 Hoi Yuen Road, Kwun Tong

Fitting out services

The fitting out services division’s operating results remained stable and
satisfactory with revenue amounting to approximately HK$55,235,000 along
with 25 new contracts secured during the Year, representing a substantial

growth of approximately 194.9%.

Sense Key Design Holdings Limited (“Sense Key”), the Group’s 51%
owned subsidiary, which provides fitting out services targeted at commercial
institutions and luxury residence end-users, continued to see substantial
revenue growth for the Group with high profit margins. During the Year, the
Group also extended its scope of services to ceiling works and had received

encouraging feedback from clients.
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Gondolas, parapet railings, access equipment installation and
maintenance services

During the Year under review, turnover from the Group’s temporary
gondola fleet business was mainly generated by rental income. The Group
recorded decreasing results in its access equipment division with revenue
of approximately HK$3,730,000, a significant year-on-year decrease of
approximately 60.7%. 10 new projects were secured during the Year.

Management contracting services

Since the completion of the contract for the supply of glass reinforced concrete
panels and barriers along the MTR Corporation Express Link in Shek Kong, the
Group had been prudently seeking business opportunities in the management
contracting field, thus explaining the reason for no revenue recorded during
the Year (Last Year: HK$2,753,000). The management of the Group would
continue to actively approach prospective clients in this field with prudent
optimism.

Real estate agency business

In May 2016, the Group entered into a sale and purchase agreement for the
disposal of the entire equity interest of Estate Sun Global Limited, a wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company, which held 20% of the shares of AP Assets
Limited, specialising in overseas real estate agency business operations, at a
total consideration of HK$20,000,000. The Group considers the disposal is
a timely and appropriate decision to realise returns on the investment and an
opportunity to redeploy resources and working capital into other business areas
with more growth potential.
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Money lending business

Thanks to the management’s extensive network, the Group secured several
short-term loan agreements during the reporting year and recorded turnover of
approximately HK$11,704,000, which contributed approximately 7.5% of the
Group’s turnover. The principal amount of the loan ranged from HK$2 million
to HK$94 million with interest rates ranging from 8% to 12% per annum during
the Year.

The Group considers money lending business a profit catalyst and intends to

further develop into other related fields.
Securities investment business

In order to capture possible returns from the financial market, the Group had
formed an investment committee and began investing in Hong Kong-listed
securities during the Year. Due diligence was conducted on every possible
investment and each was taken into serious consideration to ensure quality risk

control and to maximise shareholders’ benefits.
Business outlook

Looking ahead, the Group has a cautiously optimistic view on the local
construction market given that considerable demand from infrastructure
projects is expected. Nevertheless, the Group will inevitably be affected by
severe competition in the construction market and the ongoing problem of
inadequate labour supply, which drags down profit margin. To mitigate the
adverse impact from traditional scaffolding business the Group feels that there
is a need to diversify its business portfolio and therefore is putting more effort

into the development of new financial businesses.

In September 2014, Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited (“Gold Medal”), an
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, was granted a money lender’s
license under the Money Lenders Ordinance (Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and began operations in the Year. The target customers were mainly
individuals, those medium-to-large-sized enterprises and listed companies
which can provide personal guarantees or security, which enabled the Group to
maintain a relatively low bad debt level compared with the market as a whole,
as well as a more effective internal debt control. In the near future, the Group

aims to maintain its loan portfolio between HK$400 to HK$500 million.

In addition, the Group focuses on short-term loans with a term ranging from
3 months to 1 year which allows a higher turnover rate yet more profitable
returns. The Group is confident in the rapidly growing money lending business

to move further into the financial markets.
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As for scaffolding operations, the Group intends to promote its self-invented
“Pik-Lik” scaffolding system abroad. With the positive feedback from the
Japan industry conference we participated in the Year, we believe that the
system will become one of the highlights of the industry due to its manpower
saving advantages. This has instilled confidence in the Group in establishing

overseas clientele over the long term.

Another key revenue driver, the fitting out services business sector, is expected

to contribute steady revenue for the Group as well.

Although keen competition is expected and will last for an uncertain period
of time, as a leading company in the scaffolding industry, the Group will stay
positive in acquiring new contracts, leveraging its solid experience and quality
services widely recognised by the industry. Meanwhile, the Group will swiftly
adjust its business strategies in response to the ever-changing construction
market as necessary, and will continue to seek a healthier and stronger financial
position via different fund raising activities to support the Group’s future

development as well as generate greater satisfactory financial results.
FINANCIAL REVIEW AND ANALYSIS

During the Year, the Group recorded a turnover of approximately
HK$155,451,000 (2015: approximately HK$136,641,000), representing an
increase of approximately 13.8% as compared with that of Last Year. The
Company recorded a net loss attributable to its equity holders of approximately
HK$18,197,000 during the Year (2015: approximately HK$9,655,000).

The increase in turnover was mainly due to the contribution from the newly
started money lending business segment and satisfactory performance of
fitting out services business segment during the Year, which was offset by
the decrease in contract income generated from scaffolding services for

construction and building work business segment during the Year.

Gross profit of the Group increased by approximately 34.1% to approximately
HK$23,818,000 as compared with Last Year (2015: approximately
HK$17,756,000) whilst gross profit margin increased by approximately 2.3%
during the Year. Gross profit margin of the Group increased mainly because
contracts with higher profit margins were awarded to the fitting out services
business segment and the profit margin generated from money lending business

segment increased.
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During the Year, operating and administrative expenses increased by
approximately 24.5% as compared to the Last Year. The increase was mainly
due to increase in legal and professional fees for corporate exercises by
approximately HK$0.9 million and the increase in operating administrative
expenses for Sense Key and Gold Medal by approximately HK$2 million
and HK$3.7 million respectively, since Gold Medal started operation during
the Year. Management of the Group continues to adopt a policy of vigilant
cost monitoring and operation streamlining in an effort to minimise cost and

optimise efficiency.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES, AND
GEARING RATIO

During the Year, the Group financed its operations by banking facilities and
finance leases provided by banks and finance companies, and proceeds raised

from issue of new shares of the Company.

As at 30 April 2016, the Group’s consolidated shareholders’ funds, current
assets, net current assets and total assets were approximately HK$801,365,000
(2015: approximately HK$281,910,000), approximately HK$738,851,000
(2015: approximately HK$222,554,000), approximately HK$656,006,000
(2015: approximately HK$147,038,000) and approximately HK$882,288,000
(2015: approximately HK$373,864,000) respectively.

As at 30 April 2016, the Group’s consolidated bank overdrafts and bank loans
were approximately HK$8,361,000 (2015: approximately HK$12,062,000)
and approximately HK$34,424,000 (2015: approximately HK$35,603,000)
respectively. As at 30 April 2016, the Group’s other loan was approximately
HK$20,000,000 (2015: Nil). As at 30 April 2016, obligations under finance
leases amounted to approximately HK$833,000 (2015: approximately
HK$527,000).

As at 30 April 2016, the Group’s bank and cash balances amounted to
approximately HK$230,005,000 (2015: approximately HK$129,009,000). As
at 30 April 2016, the Group’s gearing ratio (total borrowings and obligations
under finance leases divided by shareholders’ fund) was approximately 8%

(2015: approximately 17%).
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Most of the Group’s bank and cash balances, bank and other borrowings, and
obligations under finance leases are denominated in Hong Kong dollars. Most
of the bank borrowings bear interest at market rates and are repayable by
instalments over a period of 3 months to 8 years. Obligations under finance
leases have an average lease term of 4 years. All such leases have interest rates

fixed at the contract date and fixed repayment bases.
CAPITAL STRUCTURE
1.  Capital Reorganisation

On 15 May 2015, the Board proposed to implement the capital

reorganisation (“Capital Reorganisation”) which involved the following:

(a)  the issued share capital of the Company would be reduced through
a cancellation of the paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.19 on
each of the then issued shares of HK$0.20 each (“Old Shares™)
such that the nominal value of each Old Share would be reduced
from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 (“Capital Reduction™);

(b) immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the
authorised but unissued Old Share of HK$0.20 each be subdivided
into twenty (20) new shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares”); and

(c)  the credits arising in the books of the Company from the Capital
Reduction of approximately HK$120,819,000 would be credited
to the contributed surplus account of the Company within the

meaning of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The shareholders of the Company approved the Capital Reorganisation
at the special general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2015.
Immediately following the Capital Reorganisation which become
effective on 19 June 2015, the authorised share capital of the Company
was HK$400,000,000 divided into 40,000,000,000 Shares of HK$0.01
each, of which 635,887,634 Shares were in issue.
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2. Bonus Issue

On 15 May 2015, the Board proposed, subject to the Capital
Reorganisation becoming effective, a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) of
Shares on the basis of seven (7) bonus shares for every one (1) Share held
by the shareholders of the Company whose names appear on the register
of members of the Company on 26 June 2015, being the record date
for the purpose of determination of entitlement to the Bonus Issue. The
shareholders of the Company approved the Bonus Issue at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2015. The Bonus Issue
was completed on 3 July 2015, immediately after which the number of
Shares in issue increased to 5,087,101,072.

The Directors believed that the Bonus Issue would enhance the liquidity

of the Shares in the market.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for the Year
(Last Year: Nil).

SEGMENT INFORMATION
Operating segments

The Group is currently organised into six (6) operating segments — (i)
scaffolding services for construction and buildings work; (ii) fitting out
services for construction and buildings work; (iii) management contracting
services for construction and buildings work; (iv) gondolas, parapet railings
and access equipment installation and maintenance services; (v) money lending
business; and (vi) securities investment business. Details of results by business

segments are shown in note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.
Geographical segments

Customers of the six segments of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and
Macau. Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements provides analysis of
the turnover, carrying amounts of segment assets and capital expenditure by

geographical markets.
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MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL AND
SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENT HELD

On 29 March 2016, Talent Gain International Limited (a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company), as vendor, and Lucky Famous Limited, as
purchaser, entered into a sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Talent
Gain International Limited agreed to sell, and Lucky Famous Limited agreed to
acquire, 51 ordinary shares of Dragon Oriental Investment Limited (“Dragon
Oriental”) of US$1.00 each, representing 51% of its issued share capital free
from all encumbrances, and together with all rights and benefits attaching
thereto at the consideration of HK$17.34 million. The principal asset of Dragon
Oriental was a property which was valued at approximately HK$34.00 million
as at 22 March 2016 by an independent professional property valuer. Such sale
and purchase was completed on 31 March 2016 and the Group had no more

interests in Dragon Oriental.

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period, on 26 May 2016, the Company
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with Red Metro Limited (“Red
Metro”), pursuant to which Red Metro conditionally agreed to purchase, and
the Company conditionally agree to sell, 200 shares of Estate Sun Global
Limited (“Estate Sun”) (“Sale Shares”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, at a consideration of HK$20,000,000. The Sale Shares represented
100% of issued share capital of Estate Sun at completion. Estate Sun held
20% of issued share capital of AP Assets Limited, which together with its
subsidiaries, was engaged in real estate agency business especially the sale
of properties in Australia, Malaysia and the United Kingdom. Such sale and

purchase was completed on 1 June 2016.

Save as disclosed in this report, the Group had no other material acquisitions or

disposals of subsidiaries and associates companies during the Year.
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DETAILS OF FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS OR CAPITAL ASSETS

Except as disclosed in the paragraph headed “Business outlook” above, the
Company does not have any future plans for material investments or capital

assets as at the date of this report.

PLEDGE ON ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the following assets

RVE O P A EE against general banking facilities granted to the Group:
RN D S T
2016 2015
T AR
HK$°000 HK$°000
BEYE Investment properties 40,220 40,200
FHE i S Leasehold land and buildings 7,129 7,358
JRE M AR 3K Trade receivables 17,065 17,134
AR ] 45 3K TE Retention monies receivables 1,103 2,678
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TREASURY POLICY

The Group consistently employed a prudent treasury policy during its
development and generally financed its operations and business development
with internally generated resources and equity and/or debt financing activities.
The Group also adopted flexible and prudent fiscal policies to effectively
manage the Group’s assets and liabilities and strengthen the Group’s financial

position.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND INTEREST RATE
EXPOSURE

Most of the assets and liabilities of the Group are denominated in Hong
Kong dollars. When appropriate and at times of interest rate or exchange rate
uncertainties or volatility, the use of hedging instruments including interest rate
swaps and foreign currency forwards contract will be considered by the Group
in the management of exposure affecting interest rates and foreign exchange

rate fluctuations as appropriate.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Directors are aware that the Group is exposed to various risks, including
some which are specific to the Group or the industries in which the Group
operates. The Directors have established a policy to ensure that significant risks
which may adversely affect the Group, are identified, reported, monitored, and
managed on a continuous basis. The Group has identified the following key
risks that are considered to be significant to the Group, which may adversely
and/or materially affect the Group’s businesses, financial conditions, results of
operations and growth prospects. Key risks relating to the Group’s businesses
and to the industries in which the Group operates are including but not limited

to:
(a) Labour shortage

The Group’s scaffolding business and fitting out services business
are labour-intensive. In the event that there is a significant increase
in the costs and demand of labour and we have to retain our labour by
increasing their wages, the Group’s staff cost and/or subcontracting cost
will increase and thus lower our profitability. On the other hand, if the
Group or the Group’s subcontractors fail to retain the Group’s existing
labour and/or recruit sufficient labour on a timely manner to cope with
the Group’s existing or future projects, the Group may not be able to
complete the Group’s projects on schedule and within budget. The

Group’s operations and profitability may be adversely affected.

(b) Failure to bid new contract

The Group’s scaffolding business relies on successful tenders that
determine the award of contracts for scaffolding works and/or associated
works. Given the non-recurring nature of these contract awards and the
Group does not have long-term commitment with its customers, the
number of contracts awarded to the Group may vary from year to year.
Upon the completion of its contracts on hand, the Group’s financial
performance may be adversely affected if the Group is unable to secure
new tenders or obtain new contract awards with comparable contract
sums or at all.
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()

(d)

(e)

Competition

The industries that the Group operates are highly competitive, for
example, the scaffolding industry and the money-lending industry.
Areas of competition include contract price, production costs, marketing
campaign, customer services and interest rates determined on money
lending. If the Group does not respond timely to cope with the market
conditions, it would affect the consumer demand for the Group’s services
and products, the reputation of the Group and the Group’s financial

performance.
Financial

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including credit, interest
rate, currency, liquidity and other price risks. In addition, the Group’s
available-for-sale investments (“AFS”) and financial assets through
profit and loss at fair value (“FVTPL”) are measured at fair value at
end of each reporting period. Therefore, the Group is exposed to equity

security price risk due to the fluctuation of fair value of AFS and FVTPL.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to maintain a balance between shareholder return and a sound
capital position. Adjustments are made, when necessary, to maintain an

optimal capital structure in light of changes in economic conditions.

Details of the Group’s financial risk management are set out in note 40 to

the consolidated financial statements.
Technology

The Group is dependent on information technology systems and
networks, including the internet and third-party hosted services for
the Group’s operation, including inventory management and financial
reporting. Any material disruption or slowdown of information
technology systems, including a disruption or slowdown caused by
failure to successfully upgrade the Group’s systems, system failures,
viruses or cyber attacks could cause a loss of data or operation
interruption. Therefore, the Group will continuously monitor and
implement, if necessary, relevant information technology systems and

networks so as to keep up with the pace of technology.
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(f) Employees

The Group’s success and ability to grow depends largely on its ability
to attract, train, retain, and motivate highly skilled and qualified
managerial, workers, marketing, administrative, operating, and technical
personnel. The loss of key personnel could materially and adversely

affect the Group’s prospects and operations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2016, the Group did not have any material contingent liabilities or
guarantees (30 April 2015: Nil).

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 30 April 2016, the total number of full-time employees of the Group was
98 (2015: 100). The total remuneration paid to employees (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$38,723,000 in the Year (2015: HK$33,208,000).
Employees are remunerated according to their performance and working
experience. In addition to basic salaries and participation in the mandatory
provident fund scheme, staff benefits include performance bonus, medical

scheme, share options and training.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

During the Year, there was no purchase, sale or redemption by the Company, or

any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s listed securities.
AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an audit committee of the Board (“Audit
Committee”) with written terms of reference that clearly establish the Audit
Committee’s authority and duties. The Audit Committee currently comprises
3 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Law Man Sang, Mr. Chan

Ngai Sang, Kenny and Mr. Ong Chi King.

ZZ—EFR  Annual Report 2016

23




24

BN i B o B

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FRZ A G2 ERE AR AL R Z AR
MR H ~ AF B B T O DL RO 1)
FRUEERLTR - FRLZE A FM R
ARG 2 SR TR RN R A

MoF—HAERA — HREARE HHE A
WRFESZ B E® -

AAFRFEEZR GO HEAALEENZEE M
B -

% B il

MEF—REZATLH > BitE st
FIT AT A 2w RO T R o 5 < A
BRI LA ] H A ZAT 2 A o AL B = BR T
RS o AN TR B A AR AT =4

EREZERAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to review the Company’s annual
report and accounts, half-year report and quarterly reports and provide advice
and comments thereon to the Board. The Audit Committee is also responsible
for reviewing and supervising the financial reporting process and internal

control procedures of the Group.

Four Audit Committee meetings were held since 1 May 2015 up to the date of this

report.

The Audit Committee of the Company has reviewed the consolidated financial

statements of the Group for the Year.

AUDITORS

On 17 February 2015, Moore Stephens resigned as auditor of the Company and
Cheng & Cheng Limited was appointed as auditor of the Company on the same
date. Save as disclosed, there had been no change in auditors of the Company

in the preceding three years of this annual report.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Dr. So Yu Shing (# ¥ ) (“Dr. So”), aged 64, is the chairman of the Group
(“Chairman”). Dr. So has served in the Labour Department of the Hong Kong
Government before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited,
a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, on 17 September 1991. He holds
a bachelor of arts degree from The University of Hong Kong and a master of
science degree in engineering business management from Warwick University
of the United Kingdom. In 2009, he acquired a doctorate degree in building
and construction from the City University of Hong Kong. Furthermore, Dr. So
has also possessed the Registered Safety Officer qualification. Dr. So is also a

director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca (Z%if) (“Ms. Lai”), aged 61, is an executive
Director and the spouse of Dr. So Yu Shing. Ms. Lai has been actively involved
in the management of the Group. She had engaged in the teaching profession
for over 18 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in 1988. Ms. Lai is also a

director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.
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Mr. Kong Kam Wang (YL##%) (“Mr. Kong™), aged 59, is the chief executive
officer of the Company and an executive Director. He has over 20 years of
experience in the banking industry and has held senior management positions
specialising in corporate banking as well as retail banking in a number of banks
in Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (“PRC”). Before joining
the Company in March 2002 and being appointed as an executive Director
in June 2002, Mr. Kong was the Vice President and Zone Manager of First
Pacific Bank Limited. In 1994, Mr. Kong was assigned by First Pacific Bank
Limited as representative to set up a Shenzhen representative office in the
PRC. During that period, Mr. Kong established close relationships with various
PRC Government bureaus and other foreign financial institutions whilst
stationed in the Shenzhen representative office. Mr. Kong is also a director
of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Kong graduated from the
Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1981 with an honours bachelor degree in
Business Management. Mr. Kong also obtained an executive master of business

administration degree (EMBA) from the Chinese University of Hong Kong.
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EREZERAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond (#%#) (“Mr. Edmond So”), aged 27, graduated
from University of Southern California in the United States of America with a
bachelor of arts degree in Sociology. Mr. Edmond So gained experience in corporate
finance, initial public offerings and other financial advisory services by working
for a year in a corporate advisory firm which provides advisory services to PRC
and Hong Kong based companies. Mr. Edmond So joined the Group in 2012 and
has been appointed as an executive Director with effect from 17 March 2014. Mr.
Edmond So is involved in the management of scaffolding business of the Group. Mr.
Edmond So is also a director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company. Mr.
Edmond So is the son of Dr. So ad Ms. Lai.
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Mr. Ng Tang (%)) (“Mr. Ng”), aged 54, is an executive Director and graduated
in law from the East China University of Politics and Law Department.

Mr. Ng has over twenty years of corporate management experience in the PRC
and Hong Kong and has more than ten years of extensive experience in the
management and capital operation of listed companies in Hong Kong.

Mr. Ng is a committee member of Zhaoqing City of the Chinese People’s
Political Consultative Conference in the PRC. He is also a director of the board
of directors of Yan Oi Tong.

Mr. Ng has served on the boards of various listed companies in Hong Kong.
He is currently an executive director and the Chief Executive Officer of Jun
Yang Financial Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 0397), the shares of which
are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
(“Stock Exchange”). He was an executive director of China Nonferrous Metals
Company Limited (Stock Code: 8306), the shares of which are listed on the
Growth Enterprise Market (“GEM”) of the Stock Exchange from June 2008 to
May 2013.
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Mr. Yuen Chun Fai (B2 ) (“Mr. Yuen™), aged 37, is an executive Director
and has been appointed as the company secretary of the Company (“Company
Secretary”) since 24 August 2015. He is responsible for overseeing and
monitoring the corporate exercises and accounting and finance functions of the
Group. He has over 13 years’ experiences in the field of financial reporting,
financial management and audit experience in Hong Kong, China, Malaysia
and Singapore. He holds a bachelor’s degree of science in accounting and
finance awarded by The London School of Economics and Political Science
in 2002. Mr. Yuen is a fellow of the Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants and is also a certified public accountant of the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™). Mr. Yuen is also a
director of a number of subsidiaries of the Company.

He was an executive director of Cybertowers Berhad (Stock Code: 0022.KL), a
company listed in the ACE Market in Malaysia, from April 2012 to June 2013,
and was appointed as a non-independent non-executive director of Cybertowers
Berhad, from June 2013 to February 2014. Since 30 June 2014, he has been
acting as an independent non-executive director of Rui Kang Pharmaceutical
Group Investments Limited, a company whose shares are listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 8037). Mr. Yuen was an independent non-
executive director of Ping Shan Tea Group Limited, a company whose shares
are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 364), from
July 2014 to May 2016.
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EREZERAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny (BE%t4:) (“Mr. Chan”), aged 51, was appointed
as an independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 April 2015. He
is a partner and founder of Kenny Chan & Co., a firm of Certified Public
Accountants (Practising). He has over 26 years of experience in accounting,
taxation, auditing and corporate finance and was involved in several merger
and acquisition and initial public offering projects. He holds a Bachelor of
Commerce in Accounting and Finance degree from the University of New
South Wales and is a Fellow Member of The Association of International
Accountants, an Associate Chartered Accountant of Chartered Accountants
of Australia and New Zealand, a Certified Practising Accountant of CPA
Australia, a Fellow of the HKICPA and an Associate of the Taxation Institute
of Hong Kong. He served as the President of the Association of International
Accountants Hong Kong Branch for the years 2012-2015 and has been
accredited as an Authorised Supervisor of the HKICPA.

He served as the District Governor of Lions Clubs International District 303 —
Hong Kong & Macao, China in the year 2009/2010. He also serves on several
public bodies in Hong Kong which include being a panel member of the
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Appeal Board, a committee member of the
Youth Programme Co-ordinating Committee of the Commission on Youth of
the Home Affair Bureau, a committee member of the Tsuen Wan District Fight
Crime Committee and an Honorary President of the Tsuen Wan District Junior
Police Call.

He is an independent non-executive director of each of TSC Group Holdings
Limited (stock code: 206), Convoy Financial Holdings Limited (stock code:
1019) and AMCO United Holding Limited (stock code: 630), all of which
are companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of Combest Holdings Limited (stock code:
8190), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Ong Chi King ( E¥#) (“Mr. Ong”), aged 43, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 April 2015. He holds a
bachelor degree in business administration from The Hong Kong University
of Science and Technology and a master’s degree in corporate finance from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is a member of the HKICPA and
a fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He
has more than 20 years of experience in accounting, company secretarial field
and finance. He has held senior positions in finance and company secretarial
departments in various listed companies in Hong Kong.

He is an independent non-executive director of Capital VC Limited (stock
code: 2324), China Environmental Resources Group Limited (stock code:
1130), Wan Kei Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 1718) and Hong Kong
Education (Int’l) Investments Limited (stock code: 1082), all of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He is also an
independent non-executive director of King Force Group Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8315) and Larry Jewelry International Company Limited
(stock code: 8351), all of which are companies listed on the GEM of the
Stock Exchange. He is also the executive director of Deson Construction
International Holdings Limited (stock code: 8268), a company listed on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Ong was an independent non-executive director of KSL Holdings Limited
(stock code: 8170), a company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange, from
5 December 2014 to 2 June 2016. He was also the company secretary of Yue Da
Mining Holdings Limited (stock code: 629), the shares of which are listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange from November 2008 to August 2015.

Mr. Law Man Sang (& /) (“Mr. Law”), aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 1 December 2014. He has
joined KGI Asia Limited since December 2004 and is currently the executive
director of the same company. Since June 2005, he has been acting as a
responsible officer of each of KGI Securities (Hong Kong) Limited and KGI
Asia Limited, in relation to Type 1 (dealing in securities) regulated activity
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) (Chapter 571 of the Laws
of Hong Kong). Since September 2009, He has been acting as a responsible
officer of KGI Futures (Hong Kong) Limited, in relation to Type 2 (dealing
in futures contracts) regulated activity under the SFO. Since March 2013, He
has been acting as a responsible officer of each of KGI Asia Limited and KGI
Futures (Hong Kong) Limited, in relation to Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 5 (advising on futures contracts) regulated activities under the SFO
respectively. He has extensive experiences in financial services management.
Mr. Law also actively participated in various social and community
organisations in both Hong Kong and the PRC.
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HHRER ) CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

MR A ZE A R 25 b TR A (A SR b)) Pursuant to Rules 17.50A(1) of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities of

%17.50A(1)1% s WEERE R BRI WT GEM (“GEM Listing Rules”), changes in information of the Directors are set
out below:

HHRES B FE N

Name of Directors

Details of Changes

BT R

Dr. So Yu Shing

AR ¥ e

Mr. Kong Kam Wang

gkt

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca

Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond

Mr. Ng Tang

e B i 5 A

Mr. Yuen Chun Fai

EREZERAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

- AEEZHEME (XKE  REIEB A SO BI S 13,0009 7T) £ £ 1,325,000% 7C (%
4 ¢ 1,555,000#7C)

— the total emoluments (Last Year: excluding the share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$113,000) for the Year was approximately HK$1,325,000 (Last Year:
HK$1,555,000).

- AEREZ MG (KA RSB SO B 32 #964,0009 0) #) 741,088,0009 IC (£ 4F
973,000%570) °

— the total emoluments (Last Year: excluding the share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$64,000) for the Year was approximately HK$1,088,000 (Last Year:
HK$973,000).

- AFEZAME (RF o ARG A B S #1113,000% 70) £ £5919,0004 7T (£ 4F
928,000%570) °

— the total emoluments (Last Year: excluding the share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$113,000) for the Year was approximately HK$919,000 (Last Year:
HK$928,000).

- KR 2 BN E (FAF - R ELIE B0y ST B 32 4058,00095 T8 ) £ 45 584,000 7T (£ 4F
496,000%57T) ©

— the total emoluments (Last Year: excluding the share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$58,000) for the Year was approximately HK$584,000 (Last Year:
HK$496,000).

- AFEZAME (R AR B0 SO B SC41282,0009 78) % 7%1,608,0003 TG (%
4F : 398,000%7C) ©

— the total emoluments (Last Year: excluding the share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$282,000) for the Year was approximately HK$1,608,000 (Last Year:
HK$398,000).

- AFEZBME (K NI A B3 41268,000% 70) #) £4776,0009 7T (£ 4F
423,000) °

— the total emoluments (Last Year: excluding the share-based payment expenses of
approximately HK$268,000) for the Year was approximately HK$776,000 (Last Year:
423,000).
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Woo Siu Lun ( % Jk B ) (“Mr. Woo”), aged 61, is a director of Wui
Loong Scaffolding Works Company Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, which carries out all the scaffolding work contracts of the Company.
Mr. Woo has been an executive Director from August 2001 to September 2014
and the Company Secretary from August 2001 to August 2015. Mr. Woo has
over 28 years of experience in various industries holding senior executive
positions. He was a director and senior partner of Euroair Equipment Supplies
Limited, a local engineering firm specialising in air-conditioning equipment
supply and he held an executive position in Liu Chong Hing Bank Limited for
12 years before joining the Group in 1999. Mr. Woo holds a bachelor of social
sciences degree from The University of Hong Kong. He is also an associate
of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and has been a

qualified corporate secretary in Hong Kong for over 20 years.

Mr. So Wang Bon, Edward (#%#8) (“Mr. Edward So”), aged 35, joined
the Group in 2000 as a director of Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, which carries out all
the scaffolding work contracts of the Company. Mr. Edward So has been an
executive Director from March 2011 to March 2014. He graduated from Oxford
Brookes University in the United Kingdom with a bachelor of science degree.
He also holds a master of science degree in Engineering Business Management
from the University of Warwick in the United Kingdom. Mr. Edward So is the
son of Dr. So, Chairman of the Company and Ms. Lai, an executive Director
and the brother of Mr. Edmond So, an executive Director.

Ms. Yeung Wai Yan, Flora (#5f#%) (“Ms. Yeung”), aged 32, is the financial
controller of the Company. Ms. Yeung joined the Group in October 2015. She
holds a bachelor’s degree in accounting and finance from the University of
Hong Kong. Ms. Yeung is a Certified Public Accountant of the HKICPA and an
associate member of the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators. Ms.
Flora Yeung had over 10 years’ experience in auditing, accounting and financial

management.
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Mr. So Yu Fai, David (#£i&#) (“Mr. David So”), aged 57, joined the Group in
2006 as a director of Skylon International Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Company. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a
member of the Royal Institution of Chartered Surveyors and also a member of
the Chartered Institute of Building. He had served on a number of committees
of these three professional bodies over the last 20 years and has an in-depth
knowledge of professional matters related to a wide variety of construction
standards and ethics. Mr. David So has an honours bachelor degree in a
university in the United Kingdom in buildings economics and an Australian
master degree in project management. In addition to his wide experience in
construction works, he also worked for the Australian Federal Government as

an administration officer for several years.

Ms. Luk Man Nar, Daisy (FE2%F) (“Ms. Luk”), aged 56, is the human
resources manager of the Company. She worked for Gammon Construction
Limited for 13 years before joining Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Company
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, in December 1995. Ms.
Luk holds a master of business administration degree from Liverpool John
Moores University, a diploma in administrative management from the Institute
of Administrative Management of the United Kingdom and a certificate in
personnel management from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University. She is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management.

Mr. Chan Chor Wai (Bit###), aged 34, is the manager of the scaffolding
division of the Company. He joined the Group in April 2011 and is responsible
for research and development, engineering management and staff training. He
holds a bachelor of Social Sciences in Administration and Public Management
Studies from the City University of Hong Kong and a Higher Diploma of
Transport and Logistics Studies from Hong Kong Institute of Vocational
Education.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

INTRODUCTION

The Board and the management of the Company are committed to establishing
good corporate governance practices and procedures. The maintenance of high
standard of business ethics and corporate governance practices has always
been one of the Company’s goals. The Company believes that good corporate
governance provides a framework that is essential for effective management,
successful business growth and a healthy corporate culture, thereby leading to

the enhancement of shareholders’ value.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The corporate governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality
Board, sound internal controls, transparency and accountability to all
shareholders. By applying rigorous corporate governance practices, the
Company believes that its accountability and transparency will be improved
thereby instilling confidence to shareholders and the public. Throughout the
Year, the Company has complied with the code provisions in the Corporate
Governance Code (“CG Code”) set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing

Rules except for the deviation as disclosed below:

Code Provision of A.2.7 of the CG Code requires the chairman of the Board
to hold meetings at least annually with the non-executive Directors (including
independent non-executive Directors) without the executive Directors present.
As Dr. So Yu Shing, the chairman of the Board, is also an executive Director,
the Company has deviated from this code provision as it is not applicable. The
Board has continued to monitor and review the Company’s progress in respect
of corporate governance practices to ensure compliance. Meetings were held
throughout the Year and where appropriate, circulars and other guidance notes
were issued to Directors and senior management of the Company to ensure

awareness to issues regarding corporate governance practices.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
Composition

The Board, which currently comprises 9 Directors, is collectively responsible
for supervising the management of the business and affairs of the Company and
the Group. Biographical details of the Chairman and the other Directors are set
out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this
annual report. All Directors give sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Company and the Group.

Throughout the Year, the Board has six executive Directors and three
independent non-executive Directors, thus being in compliance with the
requirements of Rule 5.05A of the GEM Listing Rules.

The presence of three independent non-executive Directors is considered by
the Board to be a reasonable balance between executive and non-executive
Directors. The Board is of the opinion that such balance can provide adequate
checks and balances for safeguarding the interests of shareholders and of the
Company. The independent non-executive Directors provide to the Company
with a wide range of expertise and experience so that independent judgement
can effectively be exercised as well as ensuring that the interests of all
shareholders are taken into account. They are also responsible for participating
in Board meetings, dealing with potential conflicts of interest, serving on the
Audit Committee, the remuneration committee of the Board (“Remuneration
Committee”) and the nomination committee of the Board (“Nomination
Committee”), scrutinising the Company and the Group’s performance and
reporting. Through their active participation, they provide their valuable skills,
expertise and experience to the Board and the committees on which they serve
so that the management process can be critically reviewed and controlled.

In full compliance with Rule 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing Rules, the
Company has appointed three independent non-executive Directors and at
least one of them has the appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each independent non-executive Director an annual confirmation of his
independence and the Company considers such Directors to be independent
in accordance with each and every guideline set out in Rule 5.09 of the GEM

Listing Rules.

All independent non-executive Directors are identified as such in all corporate
communications containing the names of the Directors. In addition, there is
no material relationship among members of the Board except as disclosed in
the section headed “Directors and Senior Management Profiles” of this annual
report.
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Board Diversity

For the Year, the Company has complied with Code Provision A.5.6 of the CG
Code.

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element
in supporting the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. The Board has adopted a board diversity policy with effect
from 1 September 2013. All Board appointments have been and will be based
on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered against objective criteria,

having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Selection of candidates for Board membership has been and will be based on
a range of diversity perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills

and knowledge.
Board Meetings

The full Board regularly meets in person at least four times every year. The
Directors all participated in person. At least 14 days’ notice of all Board
meetings were given to all Directors, who were all given an opportunity to
include matters in the agenda for discussion. The Company Secretary assists
the Chairman in preparing the agenda for the meetings and ensures that all
applicable rules and regulations in connection with the meetings are observed
and complied with. The finalised agenda and accompanying board papers are
then sent to all Directors at least three days prior to the meetings.

During the Year, 39 Board meetings were held and the following is an

EHA NS eSRATTERNT attendance record of the meetings by each Director:
Wk a#ERY,
AR (P E)
Number of R
meetings attended/ Attendance
HipE s Attendants Total (Note) percentage
Wi Executive Directors
TRtk So Yu Shing 39/39 100%
Rtk Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 39/39 100%
L8 Kong Kam Wang 37/39 95%
Rz So Wang Chun, Edmond 37/39 95%
S i Ng Tang 39/39 100%
o, 55 i Yuen Chun Fai 39/39 100%
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Board Meetings (Continued)

HR Bk s

HA (P )
Number of S
meetings attended/ Attendance
L Attendants Total (Note) percentage

B R ES Independent Non-executive Directors

A Law Man Sang 39/39 100%
B Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 39/39 100%
R Ong Chi King 39/39 100%
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Note: Attendances of the Directors during the Year were made by reference to the number of such

meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.

During the regular meetings of the Board, the Directors discuss and formulate
the overall strategies of the Company and the Group, monitor financial
performances and discuss the annual and interim results, set annual budgets, as
well as discuss and decide on other significant matters. The execution of daily
operational matters is delegated to management of the Group.

The Company Secretary records the proceedings of each Board meeting in
detail by keeping minutes, including the record of all decisions by the Board
together with concerns raised and dissenting views expressed (if any). Drafts
of board minutes are circulated to all Directors for comment and approval as
soon as practicable after the meeting. All minutes are open for inspection at any
reasonable time on request by any Director.

All Directors have access to relevant and timely information at all times as
the Chairman ensures that the management will supply the Board and its
committees with all relevant information in a timely manner. They may make
further enquiries if in their opinion it is necessary or appropriate to request
for further information. They also have unrestricted access to the advice and
services of the Company Secretary, who is held responsible for providing
Directors with board papers and related materials and ensuring that all proper
Board procedures are followed and that all applicable laws and regulations are
complied with. If considered necessary and appropriate by the Directors, they
may retain the service of independent professional advisers at the Company’s
expense.

In case where a conflict of interest may arise involving a substantial
shareholder or a Director, such matter will be discussed in a physical meeting
and will not be dealt with by way of written resolutions. Independent non-
executive Directors with no conflict of interest will be present at meetings
dealing with such conflict issues.

The Board committees, including the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee, have all adopted the applicable
practices and procedures used in Board meetings for all committee meetings.
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Jit o € Shareholders’ Meetings

AR A R AR R g R HAB R AR K & T A2 F The annual general meeting and other general meetings of the Company are the
B R 2 K R IR 2 B EEORAE o AN ] primary forum for communication by the Company with its shareholders and
ST A ROR R RORR g 5 A TR IEERL A for shareholders’ participation. All shareholders are encouraged to attend the
R e > INA] ZIRAC R A s R SR & B4 general meetings or to appoint proxies to attend and vote at meetings on their
Eo behalf if they are unable to attend the meetings.

AR > RN FE AR Z R — AR LT TR During the Year, the Company has held the annual general meeting on 16
H BT RARE R g ([ ZF— AR RS R September 2015 (2015 AGM”) and two special general meetings on 18
DI e s T SAVE Bty oV ANJE ) e S I June 2015 and 18 November 2015. The individual attendance records of the

A —H N H BT R AR & o 58 Directors at the general meetings are as follows:
E YN N O [ NG AT = S (1 N

e B3 A5 OK # H R
Annual General Meeting
L Attendants attendance percentage
PATHE R Executive Directors
Rl A So Yu Shing 100%
VL8R Kong Kam Wang 100%
A0 1% Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 100%
R So Wang Chun, Edmond 100%
Ly Ng Tang 100%
Iy 52 it Yuen Chun Fai 100%
BT E S Independent Non-executive Directors
e Law Man Sang 100%
PR3 Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 100%
£ Ong Chi King 100%
H &R
A (KEE) Jie S K
Number of W R
meetings attended/ Special General Meeting
L Attendants Total (Note) attendance percentage
BATHES Executive Directors
TR TG L So Yu Shing 2/2 100%
VL8R Kong Kam Wang 2/2 100%
i 1% Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 2/2 100%
TR HE So Wang Chun, Edmond 2/2 100%
By Ng Tang 2/2 100%
e 5z N Yuen Chun Fai 2/2 100%
B IEBATHEE Independent Non-executive Directors
ipeas Law Man Sang 0/2 0%
Bl 3 Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 0/2 0%
ES Ong Chi King 0/2 0%
WIRE - &8 R AL 2 R KB R3% Note: Attendances of the Directors during the Year were made by reference to the number of such
HAT BT 81T 2 sk Bn E meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.
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The Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer

The Chairman, Dr. So Yu Shing, is responsible for the Company’s and the
Group’s overall strategy and business development. The Chairman determines
the broad strategic direction of the Group in consultation with the full Board
and is responsible for the macro top-level decisions with regard to the overall
business directions of the Company and the Group.

Mr. Kong Kam Wang is the chief executive officer of the Company (“Chief
Executive Officer”). The authority and responsibility for running the
Company’s business and implementing the Company’s strategies are carried
out by the Chief Executive Officer. The Chief Executive Officer, with the
support of the executive Directors, is responsible for the strategic planning of
the different business functions and the day-to-day management and operations
of the Company and the Group.

Training and Support for Directors

All Directors, including independent non-executive Directors, must keep
abreast of their collective responsibilities as directors and of the business of
the Group. As such, the Group provides a comprehensive and formal induction
to each newly appointed Director upon his/her appointment. Briefings and
orientations are provided and organised to ensure that the new Directors are
familiar with the role of the Board, their legal and other duties as a director as
well as the business and governance practices of the Company and the Group.
Such programmes are tailored to each individual Director taking into account
their background and expertise. The Company Secretary and compliance
officer of the Company will continuously update all Directors on the latest
developments regarding the GEM Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory
requirements to ensure compliance of the same by all Directors.

All Directors also participate in continuous professional development
programmes provided or procured by the Group, such as external seminars
organised by qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by the Company

Secretary and compliance officer of the Company.

Each Director will, upon his/her first appointment and thereafter on a regular
basis, disclose to the Company the number and nature of offices held by
such Director in public companies and organisations and other significant

commitments.
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BHEFNFERNZEG S TSR > BRI During the Year, the Directors participated in the continuous professional

fig S T DL R AR AR 26 A T 2 R A 2 B developments in relation to regulatory update, the duties and responsibility of
mr the Directors and the business of the Group in the following manner:
2 B &
skffifr&,
34 A R
Attended
Seminars or
Briefing/
HHRES Name of Directors Read Materials
PATH S Executive Directors
TR So Yu Shing v/
TLER Kong Kam Wang v/
Bk Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca v
R So Wang Chun, Edmond v
£y Ng Tang v
e B4 e Yuen Chun Fai v
BArIE AT E R Independent Non-executive Directors
B SR Law Man Sang v/
BREAE Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny v
T Ong Chi King v/
HHRBHERS Directors’ Securities Transactions

AR SR ZEAR BRI S5 5.48 2 5.67 1k The Company has adopted procedures governing Directors’ securities
MRLE » PRV EEE S TR RS O NART - transactions in compliance with Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
P A T S e R ST A S ETTRLRN o mI AR Confirmations have been obtained from all Directors in compliance with the
BATBIAN A BA LS R R S 2 INFETH R A B GEM Listing Rules. Relevant employees, who are likely to be in possession
fIg B IR R S R AN ORI ZEAR b TR R B of inside information of the Company or securities of the Company, are also
TIRRMAE 5| o AL F) JA AR 4F B2 NI AT ] 72 K =5 subject to compliance with guidelines on no less exacting terms than those set
P o out in the GEM Listing Rules. No incident of non-compliance was noted by the

Company during the Year.

Bk
JEFSN
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established in 2006. The chairman of the
committee is Mr. Law Man Sang, an independent non-executive Director.
Other members of this committee include Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny and
Mr. Ong Chi King, both being independent non-executive Directors.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for formulating and
recommending to the Board the remuneration policy, determining the
remuneration of executive Directors and members of senior management of the
Group, as well as reviewing and making recommendations on the Company’s
share option scheme, bonus structure, provident fund and other compensation-
related issues. This committee consults with the Chairman on its proposals
and recommendations and has access to independent professional advice if
necessary. The Remuneration Committee is also provided with other resources
enabling it to discharge its duties.

The specific terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are posted
on websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange. The Remuneration
Committee meets at least once a year.

During the Year, one Remuneration Committee meeting was held. At the
meeting, the Remuneration Committee reviewed matters relating to the
remuneration packages of Directors and senior management. The following is
an attendance record of the meeting by each committee member:

Hi stk i,

A (KH5E)

Number of
i
Total Attendance

meetings attended/

& Attendants (Note)  percentage
#;CE Law Man Sang /1 100%
Wk R A Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 1/1 100%
£ T4 Ong Chi King 1/1 100%

WERE - 253870 22 B i B AR JE 2 G v B
TR AT BT 8247 2 s U BT 7E

EREZERAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

Note: Attendance of the members of the Remuneration Committee during the Year was made by
reference to the number of such meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established in March 2012. The chairman of
the committee is Dr. So Yu Shing, the Chairman and executive Director of
the Company. Other members of this committee include Mr. Chan Ngai Sang,

Kenny and Mr. Ong Chi King, both being independent non-executive Directors.

The duties of the Nomination Committee include reviewing the structure, size
and composition of the Board at least annually, making recommendations
on any proposed changes to the Board to complement the Company and
the Group’s corporate strategy, identifying individuals suitably qualified to
become members of the Board and selecting individuals to be nominated for
directorship, assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment of Directors and succession planning for Directors, in particular
the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.

The specific terms of reference of the Nomination Committee are posted on
the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange. The Nomination
Committee meets at least once a year. During the Year, the Nomination
Committee has held one meeting. The individual attendance record of each

member is as follows:

HERcE- e v

Y (KEET)

Number of
meetings attended/ &R
Total Attendance
i Attendants (Note) percentage
RV A So Yu Shing 1/1 100%
BRERAE Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 1/1 100%
T AT Ong Chi King 1/1 100%

BFAE « 440 & B B AR AR JEE 2 R T B
T AR AT A I BT 2 B U E

Note: Attendance of the members of the Nomination Committee during the Year was made by reference
to the number of such meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.
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Term of Appointment and Re-election of Directors

All the executive Directors have each entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial fixed term of three years. All the above-mentioned
service contracts are continuous until terminated by either party giving to the
other not less than three months’ notice in writing, or by payment of three
months’ salary in lieu of such notice.

The independent non-executive Directors were appointed for a term of 1-2
years and are subject to the provision of retirement and rotation of Directors
under the bye-laws of the Company.

All Directors, including the executive and independent non-executive
Directors, would retire from office by rotation and are subject to re-election at
the annual general meeting once every three years. In accordance with Bye-law
84 of the Company’s bye-laws, Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond, Mr. Ng Tang and
Mr. Yuen Chun Fai will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, would offer themselves for re-election.

According to the Company’s bye-laws, Directors appointed to fill a casual
vacancy shall hold office only until the first general meeting after their
appointment and shall be subject to re-election by shareholders. All Directors
are subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Audit Committee and Accountability

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and comprehensive
assessment of the Company’s and the Group’s performance and prospects. The
Board is also responsible for preparing the accounts of the Company, which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company and the
Group on a going-concern basis, and other inside information announcements
and other financial disclosures. The management of the Company and the
Group provides all relevant information and records to the Board enabling it
to make the above assessment and to prepare the accounts and other financial
disclosures.

During the Year, the Audit Committee reviewed the quarterly reports for the
three months ended 31 July 2015 and for the nine months ended 31 January
2016, the interim report for the six months ended 31 October 2015 and the
annual report for the year ended 30 April 2015. The Audit Committee also
reviewed the Group’s accounting principles, practices and compliance.

In full compliance with Rule 5.28 of the GEM Listing Rules, the Audit
Committee, established in 2001, is currently chaired by Mr. Chan Ngai Sang,
Kenny, an independent non-executive Director, and the other members are
Mr. Law Man Sang and Mr. Ong Chi King, both being independent non-
executive Directors of the Company.
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No member of the Audit Committee is a former partner of the existing auditing
firm of the Company within one year from the date of his ceasing to be a partner

or have any financial interest in the auditing firm.

The Audit Committee is satisfied with their review of the independence of
auditor, the audit process and the standard of reports aforesaid. This annual

report has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee’s primary duties include ensuring the Company’s
financial statements, annual, interim and quarterly reports and the auditor’s
report present a true and balanced assessment of the Company’s and the
Group’s financial position; reviewing the Company’s and the Group’s financial
control, internal control and risk management systems; and reviewing the
Company’s financial and accounting policies and practices. Other duties of
the Audit Committee are set out in its specific terms of reference which are
posted on the websites of the Company and of the Stock Exchange. The Audit
Committee is provided with sufficient resources enabling it to discharge its

duties.

During the Year, the Audit Committee has held four meetings. The individual

attendance record of each member is as follows:

s e

AR

Number of
meetings attended/ R
Total Attendance
LR Attendants (Note)  percentage
AU Law Man Sang 4/4 100%
Bk R A Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 4/4 100%
T 7R Ong Chi King 4/4 100%

FtRE © #5312 B & R A A 2 S RBCR Note: Attendance of the members of the Audit Committee during the Year was made by reference
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afiy > ALHE R T o

to the number of such meeting(s) held during their respective tenures.

The Company Secretary keeps full minutes of all Audit Committee meetings.
In line with practices consistent with Board meetings and other committee
meetings. Draft and final versions of Audit Committee meeting minutes are
circulated to all members of the Audit Committee for comments, approval and

record as soon as practicable after each meeting.
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Directors’ responsibility in preparing consolidated financial
statements

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing the consolidated
financial statements and ensuring that the preparation of the accounts is in

accordance with statutory requirements and applicable standards.

The statement of the auditor of the Company in relation to its reporting
responsibilities for the consolidated financial statements is set out in the

Independent Auditor’s Report on pages 64 to 65 of this annual report.
Going Concern

The Directors, having made appropriate enquiries, consider that the Company
has adequate resources to continue its operational existence for the foreseeable
future and that, for this reason, it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis

in preparing the consolidated financial statements.
Corporate Governance Function

No corporate governance committee has been established and the Board will
therefore be responsible for performing the corporate governance functions
such as developing and reviewing the Company’s policies, practices on
corporate governance, training and continuous professional development of
Directors and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on

compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, etc.
Internal Control

The Board along with the Audit Committee is responsible for maintaining
sound and effective internal control systems for the Company to safeguard its
assets and shareholders’ interests, as well as for reviewing the effectiveness
of such systems. The Board will from time to time conduct a review of the
Company’s and the Group’s internal control systems. The Board has reviewed
the effectiveness of the Company’s and the Group’s internal control systems,
covering financial, operational and compliance controls and risk management

functions during the Year.

In such review, the Board has considered factors such as changes since the
last review, scope and quality of management’s monitoring of risks; incidence
of significant control failings and identified weaknesses; and effectiveness
relating to financial reporting and compliance with the applicable laws and

regulations including the GEM Listing Rules.
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Auditor’s Remuneration

Cheng & Cheng Limited was re-appointed as the auditor of the Company
for the Year at the annual general meeting held on 16 September 2015.
The remuneration in respect of audit services provided by Cheng & Cheng
Limited to the Company and the Group during the Year is HK$680,000 (2015:
HK$600,000) and non-audit service assignment amounted to HK$132,000
(2015: HK$130,000) for tax service.

Delegation by the Board

The Board is responsible for decisions in relation to the overall strategic
development of the Company’s business. All Directors have formal service
contracts or letters of appointment setting out key terms and conditions
regarding their appointment. Due to the diversity and volume of the Group’s
business, responsibility in relation to the daily operations and execution of the

strategic business plans are delegated to management of the Group.

All committees, namely the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee
and the Nomination Committee, have specific terms of reference clearly
defining the authorities and responsibilities of the respective committees. All
committees are required by their terms of reference to report to the Board in
relation to their decisions, findings or recommendations, and in certain specific

situations, to seek the Board’s approval before taking any actions.

The Board review, on a yearly basis, all delegations by the Board to different
committees to ensure that such delegations are appropriate and continue to be

beneficial to the Company as a whole.
Directors’ and Officers’ Liability Insurance

Insurance cover has been taken out for Directors’ and Officers’ Liability to
provide adequate cover, as determined by the Board, in respect of the Board
members and senior management members of the Company as from June 2010

and renewed annually in June since 2011.
Shareholder Relations

The Company is committed to maintaining a high level of transparency and
employs a policy of open and timely disclosure of relevant information to
its shareholders. The commitment to fair disclosure and comprehensive and
transparent reporting of the Company’s activities can be reflected in many

aspects.
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In endeavouring to maintain an on-going dialogue with shareholders, the
annual general meeting provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange
views with the Board. All the Directors make a special effort to attend the
Company’s general meetings so that they may answer any questions from the

shareholders.

The Chairman was also actively involved in organising, and personally held the
2015 AGM and all previous meetings of the Company in order to ensure that
shareholders’ views were communicated to the Board. A separate resolution
was proposed by the Chairman in respect of each separate issue at the annual

general meeting.

The proceedings of the annual general meeting are reviewed from time to time
to ensure the Company conforms to the best practices regarding corporate
governance. The relevant circular, which is circulated to all shareholders
at least 21 days prior to the holding of the annual general meeting, sets out
the details in relation to each resolution proposed, voting procedures and
other relevant information. Members of the Board and the then auditor of the
Company attended the 2015 AGM to answer questions of the shareholders and
all the resolutions were put to the vote by poll and Tricor Tengis Limited, the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar, was engaged as scrutineer to

ensure the votes were properly counted.

The Company also communicates to its shareholders through its annual, interim
and quarterly reports and by means of announcement and circular, if and when
necessary. The Directors, the Company Secretary or other appropriate members
of the senior management also respond promptly to inquiries from shareholders

and investors.
SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS
Procedures for shareholders to convene general meetings

Subject to the bye-laws of the Company, the GEM Listing Rules and the
applicable laws and regulations, shareholders of the Company may convene

general meetings of the Company in accordance with the following procedures:

1. Shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company as at the date of deposit of the requisition (“Requisitionists”)
may require the Board to convene a general meeting of the Company by
depositing written requisitions at the principal office of the Company
in Hong Kong at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A, Southmark,
No. 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong,
specifying the business to be transacted in such meeting and signed by
the Requisitionists. Such meeting shall be held within 2 months after the

deposit of such requisition.
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2. If the Board does not within 21 days from the date of deposit of the
requisition proceed duly to convene the meeting, the Requisitionist(s)
themselves may do so in accordance with the provisions of Section 74(3)
of the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

The Company established a shareholders’ communication policy which had
been uploaded to the Company’s website (http://www.wls.com.hk) and details

could be found in the procedure.

Shareholders may also send their enquiries and concerns to the Board by
addressing them to the Company Secretary by post to the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A,
Southmark, No. 11 Yip Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

Investor relations

The Company is committed to a policy of open and timely disclosure of
corporate information to shareholders and investors. The Company updates
shareholders on its latest business developments and financial performance
through its annual, interim and quarterly reports and notices, announcements
and circulars. The Company’s website (www.wls.com.hk) provides a

communication platform to the public and the shareholders.

To strengthen its relationship with investors, the Company regularly meets with
analysts and holds interviews with reporters and columnists of the press and

other economic journals.
Procedures for putting forward proposals at a general meeting

A shareholder shall make a written requisition to the Board or the Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office and principal place of business at
Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A, Southmark, No. 11 Yip Hing Street,
Wong Chuk Hang, Aberdeen, Hong Kong, specifying the shareholding
information of the shareholder, his/her/its contact details and the proposal
he/she/it intends to put forward at a general meeting regarding any specified

transaction/business and its supporting documents.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated financial

statements for the Year.
PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The activities of its principal
subsidiaries and associates are set out in notes 41 and 15 respectively, to the

consolidated financial statements.
RESULTS AND DIVIDEND

The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on pages 66 to 67 of this

annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a dividend for the Year (Last
Year: Nil).

During the Year, there was no arrangement under which a shareholder has

waived or agreed to waived any dividends.
BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2016 is set out
in the sections headed “Chairman’s Statement”, “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of this annual report, respectively. Description of the risks
and uncertainties facing the Company can be found in the paragraph headed
“Principal Risks and Uncertainties” in the “Management Discussion and
Analysis” section of this annual report. Those discussion forms part of this

directors’ report.
Relationships with Employees, Suppliers and Customers

The Group understands that employees are valuable assets. The Group provides
competitive remuneration package to attract and motivate the employees. The
Group regularly reviews the remuneration package of employees and makes

necessary adjustments to conform to the market standard.

The Group’s business is built on a customer-oriented culture. The Group also
understands that it is important to maintain good relationship with its suppliers
and customers to fulfil its immediate and long-term goals. To maintain its
market competitiveness within the industry, the Group aims at delivering
constantly high standards of quality in the service to its customers. During the
year under review, there was no material and significant dispute between the

Group and its suppliers and/or customers.
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According to the credit rating of different customers, the Group allows a
credit period from 0 days to 90 days to customers. In extending credit terms
to customers, the Group will carefully assess creditworthiness and financial
standing of each individual customer. Management will also closely monitor all
outstanding debts and review their collectability periodically.

Environmental Policy and Performance

The Group is committed to environment protection and sustainable
development through promoting and adopting green practices in its business
activities. Initiatives within the Group include, but not limited to, waste
reduction by double side printing and separating recyclable paper, green
procurement by avoiding single-use disposable items and using office
equipment with Energy Label issued by the Electrical and Mechanical
Services Department, and energy reduction by switching off idle electronic
appliances. The Group will continually review its green practices to integrate
environmental, health and safety management and compliance considerations
into operational processes. Promoting green awareness amongst and
maintaining dialogue with employees and business partners, the Group is
determined to improve environmental performance of the daily business
operations towards establishing a sustainable environment.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

The investment properties of the Group were revalued at 30 April 2016. The
decrease in fair value of investment properties of HK$9.88 million was debited
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
for the Year. Details of the movements in investment properties of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated financial statements
and the schedule of properties on page 164.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in the property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the Year are set out in note 14 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 30
April 2016 were as follows:

ZE A TR
2016 2015
T THsTT
HK$°000 HK$’000
A0 Ui A Share premium 507,430 62,681
25tEiE Accumulated losses (110,075) (41,677)
397,355 21,0
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Subject to the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (“Companies Act”) and the
bye-laws of the Company, the Company in general meeting may make a
distribution to its shareholders out of any contributed surplus (as ascertained
in accordance with the Companies Act) but no dividend shall be paid or
distribution made out of contributed surplus if to do so would render the
Company unable to pay its liabilities as they become due or the realisable value
of its assets would thereby become less than its liabilities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors of the Company during the Year and up to the date of this report are:
Executive Directors

Dr. So Yu Shing (Chairman)

Mr. Kong Kam Wang (Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca

Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond

Mr. Ng Tang

Mr. Yuen Chun Fai

Independent non-executive Directors

Mr. Law Man Sang
Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny
Mr. Ong Chi King

In accordance with Bye-law 84 of the bye-laws of the Company, Mr. So Wang
Chun, Edmond, Mr. Ng Tang and Mr. Yuen Chun Fai will retire by rotation at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and being eligible, offer themselves
for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with the
Company for an initial term of three years. All the above-mentioned service
contracts are continuous until terminated by either party giving to the other not
less than three months’ notice in writing, or by payment of three months’ salary
in lieu of such notice.

The independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of 1-2 years
and are subject to the provision of retirement and rotation of directors under the
bye-laws of the Company.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or any of its
subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Group within one year without

payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES

As at 30 April 2016, the interests of the Directors and the chief executive
Director of the Company in shares, underlying shares and debentures of the
Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”)) which were notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”)
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO, or which were required
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO to be entered in the register referred to
therein, or which were required under the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on Growth Enterprises Market (“GEM Listing Rules”) to be notified
to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as follows:

Ji% Uy B AH B e Ay 2 3 & Long positions in shares and underlying shares
JIr R B 3 3 MR A I 433 8
Number of ordinary shares/
underlying shares held
HaHE A /R SN
(L% 1 WH=+H
e SR ) iARAR T
Total BATRARZEH
interest Percentage of the
6l N\ HE (inclusive of issued share capital
Personal deemed of the Company
HwHEA Name of Director interest interest) as at 30 April 2016
BRI+ Dr. So Yu Shing 5,536,000 11,072,000 (fftita) 0.09%
(note a)
Rkt t Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 5,536,000 11,072,000 (Bit5Eb) 0.09%
(note b)
VLER 22 A Mr. Kong Kam Wang 2,978,000 - 0.02%
MR SRR Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond 5,536,000 = 0.04%
RS Mr. Ng Tang 5,536,000 = 0.04%

R T RO (R A R E ) 2
(N

BRI HE O BRIt (R AR ) M 2R
Pl (RARIRATESE) 2R F -

Bt -

(@ % 5536000 % B £ K AH BB Oy 19 RE #5 B
Rl LA -

(b) % 5536000 & & 0y K AR B R 19 RE %5 B
BRI 354 -

Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca is the spouse of Dr. So Yu Shing, the Chairman.
Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond, is the son of Dr. So Yu Shing, the Chairman, and
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca, an executive Director.

Notes:

(a) Inclusive of interest in 5,536,000 shares and underlying shares held by Ms. Lai
Yuen Mei, Rebecca.

(b) Inclusive of interest in 5,536,000 shares and underlying shares held by Dr. So Yu
Shing.
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B e RE T SHARE OPTION SCHEMES
EN/NEIEP S P 4 P A i R R Details of the share option scheme adopted by the Company are set out in note
HRFEM 32 - 32 to the consolidated financial statements.
N AR AT N AR F AR 2 s O The following table discloses details of movements in respect of the

Company’s share options granted to the Directors (including then Directors)

during the Year:

No%-1k
e LAZRAR i 3
il FAGHER  EA-B EREE ERGEE O BREN O AREE BEGER  WMASR
(HRRALERER) Original ~ MAMH  Granted  Exercised Lapsed Bomusssue  Revised  MkFHE
HEES #kam Exercisable period exercise  Outstanding during during during  effective on exercise  Outstanding
Name of Director Date granted (both dates inclusive) price  at 15.2015 the Year the Year the Year 312015 price ~ at 30.4.2016
by i
HKS$ HKS
Bl L “E-WERS LA HZF-WERAZTARE 1.56 277,000 - - - 19%9,000 0.095 2,216,000
Dr. $o Yu Shing 14 May 2014 “E-NERACHEA
28 May 2014 to 27 May 2016
Ridi L ZE-WERATEA HoZ-WERLA-TARE 156 27,000 = = - 1939000 0195 2216000
Ms. Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca 14 May 2014 ZE-NERAZTER
28 May 2014 to 27 May 2016
Ik Ty “E-MERAZHA H-E-MERANAE 162 150000 = = - 1,050,000 0205 1,200,000
Mr. Kong Kam Wang 20 May 2014 “R-NEAAEH
4 June 2014 to 3 June 2016
98 3 ZZ-FEH-AAR H-E-RET-ANAE 256 450000 - - - 3,150,000 032 3600000
Mr. So Wang Chun, Edmond 8 November 2010 ZE-REFZALH
8 December 2010 to
7 December 2016
ZE-WERA LA - F-NELA-TARE 1.56 142,000 - - - 994,000 0.195 1,136,000
14 May 2014 “E-AELAC T
28 May 2014 to 27 May 2016
iy “E-MERLATNA H-E-MERA AR 156 692,000 - - - 484000 0195 5536000
Mr. Yuen Chun Fai 14 May 2014 ZE-NERACHEA
28 May 2014 to 27 May 2016
1,988,000 - - - 13916,000 15,904,000
Wi b SCRr P 8 2 A > AR\ R HE S el AT AR AR R Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors or the chief executive of the
TR NN H = H AR A 2 R S AT AT Company had any interests or short positions in shares, underlying shares or

ARV [ 2 SRy~ AR B Iy M 5 2 v R A AR AT debentures of the Company or its associated corporations as at 30 April 2016.
R BORA -

52 JEEIERARAE WLS Holdings Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING
BUSINESSES

During the Year, according to the GEM Listing Rules, the following Director
has interests in the following businesses which are considered to compete
or likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the business of the
Group other than those businesses where the Directors of the Company were
appointed as directors to represent the interests of the Company and/or the
Group:

B S5 11 375 R ot T
W] RE A R T 2 A4
Name of entity which are
considered to compete or

EE 3 P likely to compete with B0 230 W3
Name of Director the business of the Group Description of business Nature of interests
FIHSEE MEEREBEEAGRAR FEERHOMT RS LR YATEF - FEAH0.98% @R E
Mr. Ong Chi King (MR ) G)HEE TR 5 K PEATIRAS 2 ME 7
Deson Construction (iii) F 16 T2 Executive director and interests in

International Holdings
Limited (“Deson”)

TR AL B A RN 7
Wan Kei Group Holdings
Limited

KSL Holdings Limited

principally engaged in (i)
building construction works;
(ii) electrical and mechanical
engineering works; and (iii)
fitting out works

FERFOMIETR
K (i) - b B T AR
Principally engaged in (i)
foundation works; and (ii)
ground investigation field works

R TR - 58 &
T H & M eHs

Provision of engineering
consulting, contracting and

project management services

approximately 0.98% of issued
share capital of Deson

WL IEATIE S
Independent non-executive

director

B PUTE S (R ZF— N4
ANHZHEHT)

Independent non-executive
director (resigned on 2 June
2016)

MAAARIEEGR IR LR EE gl
bt E R R A A R E S B A LR
VR T S L B 2 4 R S R £ R 19
DU B 2675

BRUL B PR sR &4k FN > ERMANBESR
AR 2 4 i PBER AR S 45 AT AT o R 2 T R
N GE 38 RB AR B TR ) A AF o] SE 75 b 25
SR 4 [ SE 5 0 B RT R LB T o LB AR
3% [0/ A BT R A A i A ) 45 1 2

As the Board of Directors of the Company is independent of the boards of
the above-mentioned entities and the above Director cannot control the Board
of the Company, the Group is therefore capable of carrying its business
independently of and at arm’s length from the businesses of these entities.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not aware of any business and
interest of the Directors nor the controlling shareholder of the Company nor

any of their respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rule

that compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
conflict of interests which any such person has or may have with t
during the year.

ZZ—EFR  Annual Report 2016

53




54

BRI
DIRECTORS’ REPORT

B [ 32 S AT BOREOR B0y ~ A BR e 0 2 A 25
e | — B BT AR A A > AR PR A ] IR ] A
O R BOHAT A 2 W Ja 2 W) S T SE AR AR B
B AR 2N 7] 22 Al I AR A R ST AT HoAR
BN 2 B S i S EF R
BB B A AR T T 20 I A o] G A 2 W]
6 I 2 HEFI B E R 4R AT B % S HE A

e R e AR AR 2 Rl 2 2
e i

AR A =B AR RN R AT
AT At (AR 22 ) 2 3 B T AR BR A0 ) A A
O A7 T AR B B 93 v A 7 4 i o 0 Ak 191
5336k fr B 2 Rk M TR AL R BAS

WA

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”, at no time during the
Year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate, and none of
the Directors or their spouses or children under the age of 18, had any right to
subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had exercised any such right

during the Year.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS, AND
OTHERS’ INTERESTS IN THE SECURITIES OF
THE COMPANY

As at 30 April 2016, so far as are known to any Directors or chief executive of
the Company, the following parties (other than the Directors or chief executive
of the Company) had interests in the shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept pursuant to section 336 of the SFO:

Long positions

B E N

MH=+HZ

JBe 4y A 43 b

(BE#)

Y, N/ Percentage of

Hm A shareholding

Number of as at

A By WES R ordinary shares 30 April 2016

Name Capacity/Nature of Interest in the Company (Approximate)
TG I (FW) AR AF] Ha A A

Avant Capital Management (HK) Limited Beneficial owner 2,172,000,000 17.01%

B ESCHEEE SN T ANFEA=1H
A AR PR R S5 MO B AR B 336 kA7 B 2
HRC M ATat gk - A0S R LI b T 2 IR A
A AR Y A SA B e A o A AR R
£ o

SEREERABR AR WLS Holdings Limited

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2016, no other substantial shareholder
of the Company or person had an interest or short position in the shares or
underlying shares in the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept
under section 336 of the SFO.
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CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

No contract of significance to which the Company or its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director or an entity connected with a Director has or had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the

Year or at any time during the Year.

There was no contract of significance between the Company, or one of its
subsidiaries, and a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries nor any
contract of significance for the provision of services to the Company or any
of its subsidiaries by a controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries which

subsisted at the end of the Year or at any time during the Year.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The related party transactions of the Group during the Year as set out in note 39
to the consolidated financial statements constituted fully exempted connected
transactions under Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has received, from each of the independent non-executive
Directors, an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules. The Company considers all of the independent non-

executive Directors as independent.
MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the Year, the aggregate amount of turnover attributable to the Group’s
five largest customers accounted for approximately 68% of the Group’s
total turnover and the turnover attributable to the Group’s largest customer

accounted for approximately 48% of the Group’s total turnover.

The aggregate amount of purchases attributable to the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for approximately 45% of the Group’s total purchases
and the purchases attributable to the Group’s largest supplier accounted for
approximately 16% of the Group’s total purchase.

At no time during the Year did a Director, a close associate of a Director or a
shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors owns
more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) have an interest in any of the

Group’s five largest customers and suppliers.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s bye-laws or
the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on

a pro-rata basis to existing shareholders.
EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up by the

Remuneration Committee on the basis of merit, qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors are decided by the Remuneration Committee,
having regard to the Company’s operating results, individual performance and

comparable market statistics.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive to Directors
and eligible employees. Details of the scheme are set out in note 32 to the

consolidated financial statements.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the remuneration of the
members of Directors and senior management of the Company for the Year by

band is as follows:

50 21,000,000 5T
1,000,001 JC % 2,000,000 7T

A7 B B e A e BN R
1 WO B BB R 9 -

3SR R 3 1 % i

IR ARSI AS B A AR A 5 A B i 4
ER B A TR BN EE -

SEREERABR AR WLS Holdings Limited

IN 3

Number of individuals

HK$Nil to HK$1,000,000 12
HK$1,000,001 to HK$2,000,000 3

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the five
individuals with highest emoluments are set out in note 9 to the consolidated

financial statements.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-compliance with any

relevant laws and regulations that had a significant impact on it.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

The Company has maintained a sufficient public float throughout the Year.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the Year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

During the Year and up to the date of this annual report, permitted indemnity
provision (as defined in section 9 of the Companies (Directors’ Report)
Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)) was and is being in
force for the benefit of the Directors.

SHARES ISSUED

During the Year, the Company had issued new Shares (i) by way of bonus
issue, the details of which are set out in the paragraph headed “Capital
Structure — 2. Bonus Issue” in the “Management Discussion and Analysis”
section of this annual report; and (ii) by way of subscription and placings under
specific mandates, the details of which are set out in the paragraph headed
“Equity-linked Agreements — (b) Subscription and Placing Agreements” in this

report.
EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed below, during the Year, the Company has not entered
into any equity-linked agreement (as defined in section 6 of the Companies
(Directors’ Report) Regulation (Chapter 622D of the Laws of Hong Kong)).

a. Share option schemes

Particulars of the Company’s share option schemes and details of
movements in the share options are set out in the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares, Underlying Shares
and Debentures” of this report as well as note 32 to the consolidated

financial statements.
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b.

Subscription and Placing Agreements

Issue of shares under specific mandates during the Year

1.

Possible Subscription

On 19 June 2015 and 22 June 2015, the Company (as issuer)
and Shin Kong Capital Management Inc. (“Shin Kong”) and
Avant Capital Management (HK) Limited (“Avant Capital”)
(as subscribers) entered into the framework agreement and the
supplemental framework agreement respectively, pursuant to
which the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and
each of Shin Kong and Avant Capital conditionally agreed to
subscribe for Shares such that Shin Kong and Avant Capital would
hold approximately 45% and 15% respectively of the issued share
capital of the Company as enlarged by such issue (“Possible

Subscription”).

On 3 August 2015, (i) the Company (as issuer) and SKCM TMT
I, L.P. (“SKCM”) (as subscriber) entered into a conditional
subscription agreement (“SK Subscription Agreement”) in relation
to the Possible Subscription and (ii) the Company (as issuer)
and Avant Capital (as subscriber) entered into a conditional
subscription agreement (“AC Subscription Agreement”) in

relation to the Possible Subscription.

As the Company and SKCM failed to reach consensus regarding
the scope of the due diligence exercise, on 10 August 2015,
the Company and SKCM entered into a termination agreement
(“Termination Agreement”) to terminate the SK Subscription
Agreement. Besides, as the completion of the subscription of
Shares by Avant Capital under the AC Subscription Agreement
was conditional upon the subscription of Shares by SKCM
becoming unconditional and such completions taking place
simultaneously, the AC Subscription Agreement lapsed upon the

entering into of the Termination Agreement on 10 August 2015.
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New AC Subscription

Following the lapse of the AC Subscription Agreement, on 12
August 2015, the Company (as issuer) and Avant Capital (as
subscriber) entered into a new subscription agreement (“New
AC Subscription Agreement”), pursuant to which the Company
conditionally agreed to allot and issue, and Avant Capital
conditionally agreed to subscribe for 1,920,000,000 Shares (“AC
Subscription Shares”) at HK$0.06875 per AC Subscription Share
(“Subscription Price”) under a specific mandate (“AC Specific
Mandate”) to be obtained at a special general meeting of the

Company (“New AC Subscription”).

The completion of the New AC Subscription was subject to the

following conditions being satisfied:

(i) the Company having entered into an agreement or
agreement(s) in respect of a possible fund raising exercise
(“Possible Fund Raising Exercise”), which involved the
issue of not less than 360,000,000 and not more than
5,760,000,000 Shares which might be proposed by the
Company at such price being not less than the Subscription
Price whether by way of subscription by other party or by
way of placing of new Shares to independent investors
provided that (i) none of the investors shall be connected
persons of the Company or any of their respective
associates; (ii) all investors shall be independent from and
not acting in concert with Avant Capital and parties acting
in concert with it; and (iii) none of the investors, together
with parties acting in concert with it, would hold 20%
or more of the issued share capital of the Company upon
completion of such issue of Shares, within 90 days after the

date of the New AC Subscription Agreement;

(i)  the passing of the ordinary resolution(s) by the shareholders
of the Company (to the extent they were not restricted
and were entitled to vote on such resolution) at the special
general meeting approving the New AC Subscription
Agreement and the allotment and issue of the A
Subscription Shares by the Company (including th
Specific Mandate);
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(iii) the Stock Exchange granting the approval for the listing of,
and permission to deal in, the AC Subscription Shares, and
such approval not being revoked;

(iv) the compliance with the applicable requirements under the
GEM Listing Rules by the Company;

(v)  all necessary consents, approvals, authorisations, waivers,
or grant in accordance with any applicable laws, regulations
or the respective articles of association or, where applicable,
the bye-laws, to be obtained on the part of Avant Capital and
its shareholder or on the part of the Company in respect of
the New AC Subscription and the transactions contemplated
thereunder having been obtained; and

(vi) completion of the Possible Fund Raising Exercise having
taken place in accordance with its terms.

The Directors consider that the New AC Subscription represented
a good opportunity for the Company to raise funds to strengthen its
capital base, to improve its financial position for the Company’s
future development and expansion.

Underwritten Placing and Best Effort Placing

Subsequent to the entering into of the subscription agreement
with Avant Capital, on 17 August 2015, the Company entered into
(1) the underwritten placing agreement (“Underwritten Placing
Agreement”) with Black Marble Securities Limited (“Placing
Agent”), pursuant to which the Placing Agent conditionally agreed
to procure, as placing agent of the Company, placees to subscribe,
failing which, the Placing Agent itself would subscribe for, and
the Company conditionally agreed to allot and issue, 360,000,000
Shares (“Underwritten Placing Shares”) at the subscription price
of HK$0.06875 per Underwritten Placing Shares (“Underwritten
Placing”); and (2) the best effort placing agreement (“Best Effort
Placing Agreement”) with Placing Agent, pursuant to which the
Placing Agent conditionally agreed to procure, on a best effort
basis, as placing agent of the Company, placees to subscribe for a
maximum of 5,400,000,000 Shares (“Best Effort Placing Shares”),
at the placing price of HK$0.06875 per Best Effort Placing Share
(“Best Effort Placing”). Both of the Underwritten Placing and Best
Effort Placing are under a specific mandate to be obtained at a
special general meeting of the Company.
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Completion of the Underwritten Placing was conditional upon
(i) the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission
to deal in, all of the Underwritten Placing Shares; and (ii) the
specific mandate for the allotment and issue of the Underwritten
Placing Shares being obtained at the special general meeting of the
Company. Completion of the Best Effort Placing was conditional
upon (i) the Stock Exchange granting the listing of, and permission
to deal in, all of the Best Effort Placing Shares; and (ii) the
specific mandate for the allotment and issue of the Best Effort
Placing Shares being obtained at the special general meeting of the

Company.

Taking into account the time and expenses required, the Directors
considered the choice of placing and subscription over debt
financing, rights issue or open offer to be in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The Directors were
of the view that the Underwritten Placing and the Best Effort
Placing could strengthen the financial position of the Group
and provide working capital to the Group to meet any future
development and obligations. The Underwritten Placing and the
Best Effort Placing also represented good opportunities to broaden
the shareholders’ base and the capital base of the Company. The
Directors considered that each of the Underwritten Placing and
the Best Effort Placing was in the interest of the Company and the
Shareholders as a whole.

The shareholders of the Company approved, among others, the
New AC Subscription, the Underwritten Placing and the Best
Effort Placing and the grant of the respective specific mandates at
the special general meeting of the Company held on 18 November
2015. Completion of the Underwritten Placing, the Best Effort
Placing and the New AC Subscription took place on 10 December
2015. The aggregate net proceeds from the New AC Subscription,
the Underwritten Placing and the Best Effort Placing were
approximately HK$520.38 million and were intended to be applied
as to (i) approximately HK$300.00 million for the development
and expansion of the Group’s money lending business; (ii)
approximately HK$180.00 million for the investment of the Group
in the businesses of including by not limited to, financial and
securities markets, construction and ancillary services sectors; and
(iii) the remaining balance of approximately HK$ 40.38 million

for general working capital of the Group.
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As at the date of this report, the net proceeds had been used
as to (i) approximately HK$300.00 million for financing the
money lending business; (ii) approximately HK$73.75 million
for the investment of the Group, which was utilised as to (a)
approximately HK$71.75 million for the investment in listed
securities, and (b) approximately HK$2.00 million for the
investment in non-listed securities; and (iii) approximately
HK$24.38 million for general working capital of the Group,
which was utilised as to (a) approximately HK$8.08 million
for the purchase of raw material for the segment of scaffolding
services for construction and building work; (b) approximately
HK$9.80 million for the salaries and wages for the employees of
the Group; (c) approximately HK$0.65 million for the rental and
rates expenses of the Group; (d) approximately HK$1.00 million
for the legal and professional fees incurred by the Group; and (e)
approximately HK$4.85 million for other administrative expenses
of the Group. The remaining net proceeds of approximately
HK$122.25 million which have not yet utilised, remain in the bank
for intended use.

Issue of shares under specific mandate in Last Year

On 21 January 2015, the Company and Tanrich Securities Company
Limited (“Tanrich”) entered into the placing agreement, pursuant
to which the Company conditionally agreed to issue and Tanrich
conditionally agreed to place a maximum number of 540,000,000
Old Shares (“Placing Shares”), on a best effort basis, to not less than
six placees at the placing price of HK$0.30 per Placing Share under
a specific mandate to be obtained at a special general meeting of the
Company (“2015 SM Placing”).

The shareholders of the Company approved, among others, the 2015
SM Placing and the grant of the specific mandate at the special general
meeting of the Company held on 5 March 2015. Completion of the 2015
SM Placing took place on 27 March 2015. The net proceeds from the
2015 SM Placing were approximately HK$159.76 million and were
intended to be applied as to (i) approximately HK$30.00 million for
repayment of bank loans and other loans; (ii) approximately HK$33.00
million for repayment of the convertible bonds due 2015 in the
aggregate principal amount of HK$30,000,000 issued by the Company
on 28 August 2014 (“Convertible Bonds”) and the payment of interest
accrued thereon; (iii) approximately HK$30.00 million for financing
the development of the money lending business; (iv) approximately
HK$25.00 million for purchase of factory unit for warehouse storage
purpose; (v) approximately HK$17.00 million for expansion of design
and fitting out services of the Group; and (vi) the remaining balance
of approximately HK$24.76 million for general working capital of the
Group.
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As at the date of this report, the net proceeds had been used as to (i)
approximately HK$24.24 million for repayment of bank and other loans;
(ii) approximately HK$31.78 million for repayment of the Convertible
Bonds and the payment of interest accrued thereon; (iii) approximately
HK$30.00 million for financing the money lending business; (iv)
approximately HK$17.00 million for expansion of design and fitting
out services of the Group; and (v) approximately HK$25.98 million
for general working capital of the Group, which was utilised as to (a)
approximately HK$12.18 million for the purchase of raw material for
the segment of scaffolding services for construction and building work;
(b) approximately HK$6.45 million for the salaries and wages for the
employees of the Group; (c) approximately HK$2.03 million for the
legal and professional fees incurred by the Group; and (d) approximately
HK$5.32 million for other administrative expenses of the Group. The
remaining net proceeds of approximately HK$30.76 million, which have

not yet utilised, remain in the bank for intended use.

DONATIONS

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the Year amounted to
HK$637,559 (Last Year: Nil).

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting of
the Company to re-appoint Messrs. Cheng & Cheng Limited as independent

auditor of the Company.
On behalf of the Board
So Yu Shing

Chairman

22 July 2016
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CHENG & CHENG LIMITED

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
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To the Shareholders of WLS Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda with limited
liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WLS Holdings
Limited (“Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) set out on pages 66 to 162, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 30 April 2016, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for
the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other

explanatory information.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company (“Directors”) are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
Directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to

fraud or error.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 90 of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to

any other person for the contents of this report.
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We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants.
Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
made by the Directors, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and

appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the financial position of the Group as at 30 April 2016 and of its financial
performance and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies

Ordinance.

Cheng & Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 July 2016

Yeung Chun Yue, David
Practising Certificate number P05595
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

HE-T—NFPH=+HILF/E  For the year ended 30 April 2016

“E A RN
2016 2015
Wit E T#x THIT
NOTES HK$°000 HKS$’000
BEH Turnover 3 155,451 136,641
BH A B AS Cost of sales (131,633) (118,885)
BVl Gross profit 23,818 17,756
HAthuse A Other income 5 4,203 1,956
HoAthiezs & (B518) > 4R Other gain and (loss), net 6 3,412 =
Y AT Operating and administrative expenses (34,975) (28,099)
&Y N FE (V) /1Al (Decrease)/increase in fair value of
investment properties (9,880) 5,071
PRSI RE 2 N (AR T Change in fair value of call option (1,641) 1,610
Y -~ RRE MR A Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 81 418
HH A — [H] B 2 = B9 Ui 2 Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 30 202 =
P2 7 L ] M R A 5 2 s 4R Loss on early redemption of convertible
bonds - (743)
Y2~ B ik fs 2 RS E Loss on write-off of property, plant and
equipment (8) (1,237)
Rl & R AR Finance costs 7 (2,230) (5,575)
JEAG B2 F) 2 SE4 Share of results of associates 206 1,315
R B i G 1R Loss before taxation (16,812) (7,528)
BiIH Taxation 8 (5,689) (206)
AR 1R Loss for the year 10 (22,501) (7,734)
PATR AN AL 2 4E (B598) Wi #s ¢ (Loss)/income for the year attributable to:
EN/NEIL ERERE DN Equity holders of the Company (18,197) (9,655)
I e A i Non-controlling interests (4,304) 1,921
(22,501) (7,734)
o I s 1R — A g Loss per share — basic and diluted 12 (0.225%: Al (0.9%: A1)
(HKO0.225 cent) (HKO0.9 cent)

66 ERZBARAT WLS Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

(Continued)

HE-T—NFEPH=+HIEF/E  For the year ended 30 April 2016

“F R L
2016 2015
i T#x THIT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$°000
AU 1R Loss for the year (22,501) (7,734)
Hopth AT (F18) s Other comprehensive (loss)/income:
B E I EHH - Items that may be reclassified to
profit or loss:
GNP AN /NI b e S Exchange differences on translation
JEE A 1 BEE 5, 25 R of financial statements of overseas
associate (13) =
it E RS 2 N FEE4E Fair value gain on available-for-sale
investment 16 16,352 =
A Ho A A T i 5S Other comprehensive income for
I Bg B TE the year, net of tax 16,339 _
A 2T (8 ) Ml ss S AR Total comprehensive (loss)/income for
the year (6,162) (7,734)
DA N M A A 4 2 T Total comprehensive (loss)/income
(548 Wi g HA%H - for the year attributable to:
ARAFIRERS A N Equity holders of the Company (1,858) (9,655)
IE P2 I 25 Non-controlling interests (4,304) 1,921
(6,162) (7,734)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

RZF—NFIA=+H At30April 2016

S SR AR
2016 2015
B3 T THsIT
NOTES HK$’000 HK$’000
I Uit B Non-current assets
wE ¥ Investment properties 13 40,220 84,100
L/E BN E ] Property, plant and equipment 14 36,019 42,566
R SR I Deferred tax assets 28 4,335 7,335
AT N\ 2 A g Interests in associates 15 17,502 17,309
Al Available-for-sale investments 16 45,361 =
143,437 151,310
i B Current assets
HoAth 4 il & Other financial assets - 1,641
7 AR A LS T EE Financial assets at fair value through
B Ay 4 Tl profit or loss 17 59,902 -
TEWIE K Trade receivables 18 50,232 49,099
R WS AR (] 4 K Retention monies receivables 20 2,396 5,276
JREE Wi Bk e ) S Loan and interest receivables 21 374,081 =
JEI K 5 A 4 TREZIA Amounts due from customers for
contract work 19 18,998 34,115
Py Inventories 22 355 313
TR ~ 4 I Prepayments, deposits and
A 37 B other current assets 23 2,853 3,072
JRE AR [m] B A0 TEL Current tax recoverable 29 29
SRAT 45 Bk M Bl Bank balances and cash 24 230,005 129,009
738,851 222,554
it By £ Current liabilities
WEAT PG4 TREFE Amounts due to customers
for contract work 19 2,546 772
JREAST IS 3 o S A R A} 3 T Trade and other payables 25 16,148 23,617
AT A5 ] 4 2 T Retention monies payables 1,186 2,361
Rl AL A R I — BDHAER 4 Obligations under finance leases
— current portion 26 180 519
JREASH R 3 ol 1 Current tax payable - 582
SRATHR Bank loans 27 34,424 35,603
HoAth 2K — A Other loan — secured 20,000 =
HATIE L Bank overdrafts 27 8,361 12,062
82,845 75,516
B & B A Net current assets 656,006 147,038
A T B £ AR Total assets less current liabilities 799,443 298,348

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (Continued)

RZF—NFMNF=+H At30April 2016

ZE N Sl S
2016 2015
iER: Tt T
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
I B £ R Non-current liabilities
il A 4 A A Obligations under finance leases
— JE B A &R 4> — non-current portion 26 653 8
R SE B TE B A Deferred tax liabilities 28 2,603 114
3,256 122
A TE Net assets 796,187 298,226
JBEAS B A Capital and reserves
A Share capital 29 127,670 127,177
(72 Reserves 673,695 154,733
EN/NEIEERER DN Equity attributable to equity holders of the
JRE A HE 4 Company 801,365 281,910
FEHE I 2 Non-controlling interests (5,178) 16,316
HE 25 S5 Total equity 796,187 298,226

FOOE162H Z A B ME R T —RFL
A = R H e R T8 > WA
IR EE

SO YU SHING
#HH

Director

The consolidated financial statements on pages 66 to 162 were approved and

authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 22 July 2016 and are signed

on its behalf by:

g 5% It
YUEN CHUN FAI
HH

Director
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

HE-T—NFPH=+HILF/E  For the year ended 30 April 2016

AR AR
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
it R % ik
Tk RBRN  FAER  GORE BRERE  BEE BEdy  WRBE ERRE RN b ] I
Equity
Share component of Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger option ~ Warrant  convertible  Exchange  revaluation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium surplus Teserve Teserve Teserve bonds Teserve Teserve losses Total  inferests equity

Tér Tt Tt TRt T T T Tt T T T T T
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKSO00  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
W R (B
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)

RoZ-WERA-H At May20l4 13883 143,393 - 20 1,644 200 - - - (61,679) 99,623 (6454) 93,169
2E(BR)/IER  (Los)fincome and total
S2H(ER) /I comprehensive (loss)fncome

for the year - - - - - - - - - (9,659) (9,655) 1921 (7,734)
RibhE Grant of share options - - - - 113 - - - - - 173 - 113
i Bxercise of warrans 200 13000 - - = - - - - S S
frlimR e Bxercise of share opions 1% 9l - - = = - - - . 1079 _ 1079
EL U Subscription of shares 3,19 10,946 - - - - - - = = 14,142 - 14,142
ARRHER Expenses on subscription of
shares - (1%5) - - - = = = = 3 (129) - (15)
BRI Issue of convertbl bonds - - - - - - 1615 - - - 1615 - 1415
il — WEAR Acquisiton of a subsidiary - - - - - . , _ _ _ SN N
LEEY 0l Transfer to contributed surplus S (1T 15734 - - = - : - _ . B} B}
EHEE Placing of shares 108000 54000 - - . . - B B BTN S 1M
RHRERF Expenses on placing of shares - (2,140) - - - - = = - - (2,140) - (2140)
ERBRERN Share options lapsed during
the year - - - - (1,003) - - - - 1,003 - - -
RUMHRREREN  Eapenses on redemption of
convertible bonds - - - - = = () = = = () - (1)
ITHRERREEE  Bouity component of convertible
[EsRER bonds written back on
redemption - - - - = - (%) - - SR (K} R (K
UREEHEAR: Transfer to accumulated losses
upon:
R - Bxercise of warrants - - - - - (200) . - - 20 - _ _
~JE R ~Redemption of convertible
bonds - - - - - - (263) - - 263 - - -
REF-TEMA=TH A0 Apil 2015 11m 62,681 157,334 1M 2,364 - - - - (69.868) 281910 16,316 298,226
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

HE-T—NFEPH=+HIEF/E  For the year ended 30 April 2016

LY TN 1]
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
AR TRERS % FER
Wh RUBER  WERE  oBNE RRERE  RER EERY  BARE ERGE  RhER ] I
Equity
Share component of Investment Non-
Share Share  Contributed Merger option ~ Warrant  convertible  Exchange  revaluation Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve bonds reserve reserve losses Total ~ inferests equity
Tér Tt Tt TRt T T T Tt T T T T T
HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'00  HKSO000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
i3 9 N
(Note 1) (Note 2) (Note 3)
REZ-RERA-A Al May 2005 nm 62,681 157334 m 1364 - - - - (69.868) 281,910 16316 298226
KEEER Loss for the year - - - - - - - - - (18197 (18,197 (34 20
JlRT (B8 RlE  Orher comprehensive
(loss)fincome - - - - - - - (13 16,352 - 16,339 - 16,339
REESAH(ERIR  Toal comprehensive (lss)/

e income for the year - - - - - - - (13) 16,352 (18,197) (1858) (4,304) (6,162)
Bl k) Capital reduction (Note 4) (120,819) - 108 - - - - - - - - - -
kB4R Expenses on capital

reorganisation - - (210) - - - - - - - (210) - (210)
BREHZHER  Amount tansfered o set off
(J3ES) against accumulated losses
(Note ) - - (42318) - - - - - - 2318 - - -
BOAR i) Issue of bonus shares (Note ) U3 - (W31 - - - - - - - - - -
BhkER Expenses on ssue of bonus hares - - (26) - - - - - - - ) - 2%)
RAEE Placing of shares 76800 451,200 - - - - - - - - 58000 - 58000
RERNER Expenses on placing shares - (6,451) - - - - - - - - (6,451) - (6,451)
HE-MKEATES  Disposal of asubsidiary - - - - - - - - - - - (164)  (16945)
BRAFEERERNRE  Dividend paid to non-controlling
interests - - - - - - - - - - - (45) (145)
REZ-AEWAZFR  At30 April 2016 7670 507430 191,087 m 2,364 - - ) 16,352 “smn 801365 (5,178 796,187
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ok 1 Ao 5 T R (45
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (Continued)

HE-T—NFPH=+HILF/E  For the year ended 30 April 2016

)

&

A AR T 2 T A B AR LR SRR — 4
JNH =N H 8T 2 IR Il OR o A
I e T 5 1 8 M 9 Vi IR A R ) 2 &
2 R A T 2 Y <R

AEEZEHMEREALFCEST ZRA
HERBREAEER —FF—F+—H
“tERET 2 EEEAREARE A D
BATIRATH(H 2 2258 -

A S5 8 2 T B 523 0 4 4 2 B
FLI 1 A2 776 9 J% 0 LT B2 1 0 e e 2 24
FE -

MoFE—FAERLATFHA - Ehe @i
JEAE A (TAEAL) » Hep i KR A&

(a) 5 GRS B AR AR (DA RE A I I
0.20% 7619 B B AT R (188 et 1) 151
FEBH0. 199 0 B ) > B0 A I A 1)
2 T (B K H10.20 %5 TG HI K 220,013 G »
F LAk AR A 7 B8 AT AR ([ A 1
W) s

(b)  BRERCAHI WA - B TE (H0.20% 0
2 A B E AR R B AT B B M PR AN £
- (20) A I TE (EL0.01 #5 7T 2 #7 B A
([T eAm 1) 5 K&

(c)  PRIBEAAS 1) 9k o AR 2 ) B A 2 o
H %) 120,819,000 # JT 1 51 A B 4% 2
— JUN—4E R A% (B EFT) NI R E
P /NN O

JiAS B A A AR S F ORI =& — AR N A
AR /Nl Nl R
ZREMAREALN T — AN A U ARk
1% o AN T I E AR £ 400,000,000 7T
40,000,000,000 A% 4 Ji% T8 {E 0.01 %5 76 [ 585 1’
%y > Hh635,887,634 57 B4 EL 5547 -

ZRE A RN FE—HAEANH HIUH A%
% BRASA R ABR 2 BB R B B LUK
RN TR EE B 2 B8 442,318,000

MRoE—HERA+HHA > EREEIREE
Fele A H A AR - i ZF—HAEANH
TS H O (BPEE E AL EEATHER] Z R sk )
& B AR A SR 44 A AR 4 B B R R AT AL
B o FEHE SRR — () B B A L B8 - (7)
JEEAT B ([ AL 35T 1) o AT R AEAT AN 7] B
FOR ZF—HAEN A /N H BT 2 AN TR
FER K & A o AR AT IR T — HAR
LH=H% > BHHE > © 878G
H 1 25,087,101,0728% °

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

Notes:

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the amount transferred from share
premium amount upon the cancellation of the entire amount standing to the credit
of the share premium account as at 28 August 2014 pursuant to a special resolution
passed by the shareholders at an extraordinary general meeting held on that date.

The merger reserve of the Group represents the difference between the nominal
amount of the share capital issued by the Company in exchange for the nominal
value for the issued share capital of the subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the
Group’s reorganisation on 23 November 2001.

The share option reserve of the Group represents the fair value of share options
granted to the directors and employees of the Company at the relevant grant dates.

On 15 May 2015, the Board proposed to implement the capital reorganisation
(“Capital Reorganisation”) which involved the following:

(a) the issued share capital of the Company would be reduced through a
cancellation of the paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.19 on each of the
then issued shares of HK$0.20 each (“Old Shares”) such that the nominal
value of each Old Share would be reduced from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01
(“Capital Reduction”);

(b) immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the authorised but
unissued Old Shares of HK$0.20 each be subdivided into twenty (20) new
shares of HK$0.01 each (“Shares™); and

(c) the credits arising in the books of the Company from the Capital Reduction
of approximately HK$120,819,000 would be credited to the contributed
surplus account of the Company within the meaning of the Companies Act
1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The shareholders of the Company approved the Capital Reorganisation at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2015. Immediately
following the Capital Reorganisation which become effective on 19 June 2015,
the authorised share capital of the Company was HK$400,000,000 divided into
40,000,000,000 Shares of HK$0.01 each, of which 635,887,634 Shares were in
issue.

Immediately following the Capital Reorganisation becoming effective on 19
June 2015, the credit balance in the contributed surplus account of the Company
had been transferred to set off against the accumulated loss of approximately
HK$42,318,000 of the Company as at that date.

On 15 May 2015, the Board proposed, subject to the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective, a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) of Shares on the basis of seven
(7) bonus shares for every one (1) Share held by the shareholders of the Company
whose names appear on the register of members of the Company on 26 June 2015,
being the record date for the purpose of determination of entitlement to the Bonus
Issue. The shareholders of the Company approved the Bonus Issue at the special
general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2015. The Bonus Issue was
completed on 3 July 2015, immediately after which the number of Shares in issue
increased to 5,087,101,072.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

BE—F—NFNA=1THILFE

For the year ended 30 April 2016

ZE A —ER—HAE
2016 2015
iz Tl T
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
BB Operating activities
SN, Loss before taxation (16,812) (7,528)

B TEAE R Adjustments for:

FLR A Interest income (8,402) (1)

il A Finance costs 2,230 5,575

e Depreciation 9,592 5,887

WAEYE - BRE KA R A Gain on disposal of property,

plant and equipment (81) (418)

Y ~ W7 ki z Loss on write-off of property,

R plant and equipment 8 1,237

8 — [T 2 ) A Wi i Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 30 (202) -

JREAG B2 /A Rl 2 S 4R Share of results of associates (206) (1,315)

P R T 4 AR 5 2 e AR Loss on early redemption of convertible bond - 743

JRE R 3k M 3% 1 <53 3T Allowance for bad and doubtful debts on trade

RS receivables and retention monies receivables 921 2,509

TR R ~ %4 K HAR R E Write-off of prepayments, deposits and

B 2 MR other current assets - 2,874
Bea 2 N TEWAE (B8 n) Decrease/(increase) in fair value of investment
properties 9,880 (5,071)
BT R B REZ AFE Fair value of share options granted to employees - 1,723
A FAERT AR 5 Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (15,091) -

A it B (E Impairment of available-for-sale investment 11,679 -

PR IRE . N TS Change in fair value of call option 1,641 (1,610)
B EE SRz R Operating cash flows before movements

BeRE) in working capital (4,843) 4,605
N HEER RN EEEE Increase in equity securities held for trading at

JRe A 75 5 1 fair value (44,811) -
8 - NI bR Decrease in amounts due from associates - 34
FENCA B N Al R D Decrease in amounts due from joint ventures - 15
TEW K F A4 TR aEssn Increase/(decrease) in amounts due from

(W) customers for contract work 15,117 (9,411)
A8 B (Increase)/decrease in inventories 42) 461
TASTIE - 454 S HA Decrease in prepayments,

T B deposits and other current assets 219 702
FEW Ik (34 m) b (Increase)/decrease in trade receivables (1,485) 7,312
JRE i R 4 T D Decrease in retention monies receivables 2,311 592
JHE i K B S Tl Increase in loan and interest receivables (365,700) -
e % F & 4 TR RIE Increase/(decrease) in amount due to customers

i,/ (b) for contract work 1,774 (5,680)
JRE A5 Rk e L A B AT S T (Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables

(D) /S (7,287) 8,129
OB ARF PR 63 3K (D), B4 (Decrease)/increase in retention monies payables (1,175) 582
EH (TR /R &% Cash (used in)/generated from operations (405,922) 7,341
BB SRR Hong Kong Profits Tax paid (725) (2,113)
7R I A 3B Hong Kong Profits Tax refunded 14 115
BEEK(R),/ EH4eEH Net cash (used in)/generated from

operating activities (406,633) 5,343
ZZE—NEFH  Annual Report 2016
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Fr Ay Bl Al Ak ()
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Continued)

BE T NFHA=1THILFE

For the year ended 30 April 2016

ZE A —R A
2016 2015
iz Tl T
NOTES HK$°000 HK$’000
B Investing activities
B ALE Interest received 21 1
R ~ E Mk s Purchase of property, plant and equipment (2,321) (15,726)
T AT S R Acquisition of available-for-sale investments (40,688) =
HEWE - RE Rk e Proceeds from disposal of property,

RES e plant and equipment 288 512
I ERATAR 3K 2 BEBL Release of pledged bank deposit - 680
WA — B s R A Acquisition of interests in an associate 37 - (16,000)
7SI — O e A ) A Net cash outflow for acquisition of assets through

HE A& TR acquisition of a subsidiary 36 - (21,547)
B R ) 1 B4 A A Net cash inflow from disposal of a subsidiary 30 17,004 -
REEHER B SFHE Net cash used in investing activities (25,696) (52,080)
E R Financing activities
AL Interest paid (2,209) (4,558)
B A5 TR AR 4 2 Finance lease charges paid (21) (63)
s RAT R New bank loans raised 67,503 65,601
IR RAT Bk Repayment of bank loans (68,682) (71,203)
75 Rl L A 7R I Repayment of obligations under finance leases (633) (682)
EL IR AT IR P HE 2 1 LS Dividend paid to non-controlling interests (245) -
Je A Hl ok Capital reduction (210) =
BATALI Issue of bonus shares (26) _
A0 B e Exercise of share options - 1,079
S A4y i 5 4 Y v 4 Net proceeds from placing of shares 521,549 159,860
oA B Repayment of other loan - (9,650)
HAh B i Increase in other loan 20,000 -
17 (AR e o Exercise of warrants - 15,000
BT R R T Net proceed on issue of convertible bonds - 28,800
§ 1] ] 4 fe £ Redemption of convertible bonds - (30,275)
TR Ry 4 AR Proceed on subscription of shares - 14,142
o H R E B 2 BlA A Net cash generated from financing activities 537,026 168,051
W& T B &S IE H 34 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 104,697 121,314
PHA—HZBE LB 2% E Cash and cash equivalents at 1 May 116,947 (4,367)
PRMA=+HZHE&RBE%MHEE Cash and cash equivalents at 30 April 221,644 116,947
Bl R Bl &5 HIE H 5565 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents
WITHB A4 Bank balances and cash 230,005 129,009
SRATE X Bank overdrafts (8,361) (12,062)

221,644 116,947

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. —kHEIHE

AR T T B A B e M BT 2 — ] A2 A el
HREABZARAF - HBRAO R AT G2
S A RS ) (T2 T 1) A S (T A ZEAR 1) |
T o A4y ) kS g 47 % Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda °
AN F) AU R R T B S B S W
AT B AT 40 2E AT 1 1 5% R R JRE 355 A B2 10RE 1001 -
1006% °

ACHE P A R A 5 T i TR BE R
PAEMHs - 5 B AR B HoAB AR5 2 3675
B B o 5 RS -

HEGA MBS MR T LIB TR IR - EARAAL
A hRE & W -

2. HEGHBUR
(a) HHEY

% S AR S R R T AR R A i Rl A
2 7 B 5 i ot A ) (T A i o B S o
B P A 90 ) 2 0 A A S o N~
Rt ([ e shEll]) Rl REEA
G 51 (A Fof B A J3E B B [ 1 5 7% 27 T
A RV (553258 ) ) 2 P TR R Z A A o 74
SRR A MB RIS H B A A RS
A SEAR 2R BRI (AR BTk ) 2
BT PR RE -

(b) &35 A 5 e 35 o L 0k e
BAETUAFEHA BB EYEL M TA

b > BEEF AR B HER T AR R IR s A S E A
o

P s A — e L B B A R 2 A B
e o

1. GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted company
and continued in Bermuda with limited liability and its shares are listed on
the Growth Enterprise Market (the “GEM”) of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). The registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda. The
head office and the principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong
is located at Rooms 1001-1006, 10th Floor, Tower A, Southmark, No. 11 Yip
Hing Street, Wong Chuk Hang Aberdeen, Hong Kong.

The principal activities of the Group are the provision of scaffolding and
fitting out services, management contracting services, and other services
for construction and buildings work, money lending business and securities

investment business.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars

(“HK$”), which is also the functional currency of the Company.
2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), which include all
applicable individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong
Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretations issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance which for this financial
year and the comparative period, as permitted by the GEM of the Stock
Exchange (“GEM Listing Rules”), continue to be those of the predecessor
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 32). The consolidated financial statements also
comply with the applicable disclosure provisions of the GEM Listing Rules.

(b) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical
cost basis except for investment properties and certain financial instruments
which are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period, as

explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in
exchange for goods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. HEFHBUR @

(b) ot oA it 30 B L (w0

PRI T 2 8 2 e g A
JP 38 5 vt B — TEUAL 7 P SO AR RS —
TR RS RO A - My e AR 2 ELE B A
BB 15 SRR R A (5 9l R H AR At o
T 3 ¥ 2 BRI (B Hh il s e > NS
R TG 2 BETE R P R A
A7 72 T IR 1 & 25 B IR BERr L o AE AR5 S
e R R AN/ B B Y T (B TE R B
T LARERE > {E 7 s B i USR5 2958 T DAy
Ty R AT AR L R DA A 2
R 2 385 ~ A Erat e RIS 1798 TR
EE N A E S LR T-E AR AN IR
NFER R (Bl > s g et e RS2 58 [ 7
B2 ] T S B R o R R 369 [
FEE AEL | B B D) BR AB -

WA > R B B AP EEFE R
O3 SPE R S A BRG] B AR BE DA M % A5
AEEBEA-FETEOEEE > gRAK—
J& ~ 5 G B = Y AT E AR wRa
T

o AR R EE H AR E
7 B A AR LE T R T 35 P ORAE AR B8 ) A ik
ESH

o TJEEA RS B BR T 58— g A (B
B L B R SR - B E SR AT
HHEER MBS R A 5 &

o R RS EE A E A ATB
S A o

FRE =B NI A = B LA
BEHAPT AR 2 5 O RS - T
SURWIE B — TN A = T H LA
B MR T 4R I A R SO 2 7
T B TR B 4R R 5

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(b) Basis of preparation of consolidated financial statements
(Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of
an asset or a liability, the Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take those characteristics into
account when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these consolidated financial
statements is determined on such a basis, except for share-based payment
transactions that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17 “Leases”, and
measurements that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair value,
such as net realizable value in HKAS 2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS

36 “Impairment of Assets”.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are
categorized into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the
fair value measurements are observable and the significance of the inputs to the

fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement

date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within
Level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly or

indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The significant accounting policies and methods of computation used in the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 30 April
2016 are consistent with those adopted in the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2015, except for the adoption

of the new and revised HKFRSs as explained below.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. HEEFHBUR@®
(c) HAHFBBBHRER([FEBY
e )

A [ A AR AR B U RE T B A i R
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FETHENEI0M BT REmAEE A
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(c) Application of amendment of HKFRSs
The Group has applied the following amendments to HKFRSs issued by the
HKICPA for the first time in the current year:

Amendments to HKAS 19 Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2010 - 2012 Cycle

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2011 - 2013 Cycle
The application of the amendment to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial performance and positions for the

current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in the consolidated
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

2. HEFHBUR @ 2.

(d) AR i 1H 3 R A 3 2 BT RT R (d)
il 7 v S 2 e o8 e )

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective

AL 1 10 A A AR S 0 L LA L o R 2R AR

The Group has not early applied the following new and amendments to

AT B KEAG BT 7 s A 5 i YR B

HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet effective:

e e SHTR HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments’

BB s R 1458 ERRERE HKFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts!

BB B s 155 REAHEF G HKERS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers®

FHRAH s R 163 il g HKERS 16 Leases’

BHUHRERAE LSBT GRS gt Amendments to HKFRS 11 Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint Operations'

B a5 2 57T THHE Amendments to HKAS | Disclosure Initiative!

FikastEARE 2 T THiE Amendments to HKAS 7 Disclosure Initiative?

Fib e 125 T FARERNELR AR EE Amendments to HKAS 12 Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized Losses*

b EFHER S 165 K EEEin 1 AL Amendments to HKAS 16 and Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation'
B GFHENER BT HKAS 38

Fibaar 165 R R - R Amendments to HKAS 16 and Agriculture: Bearer Plants'
FlEENRE BT HKAS 41

Fib et ERRTE T B S Amendments to HKAS 27 Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements'

BRI R ERIS 1058 R REAHABENARAE Amendments to HKFRS 10and ~ Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and its Assocate or Joint Venture*
FikGarERR8 8 BT EZMmER L ERE A HKAS 28

BB R EAIE 085 REER  ERGARS Amendments to HKFRS 10, Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception’
FEMBREEAR 23R HKFRS 12 and HKAS 28
FikaaHERIR8 L T

g e A RS SR-CERCR-NERM AR Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2012 - 2014 Cycle!

B R SR R A

. A E N — H LR B 4R 9 4R
BEM A% - Fu AR ATIE A o

2 I S e = Il = B = e
BEMIMI AR - SRR ATHE T o

g T E— NAE— A — B B2 1% B iR 1 4F
BEMIMI AR - SRR AR ATHE o

2 AR H AR o

9 W ZE U — A — B s & B R B4
BEHIMI AR - SRR ATHE T o

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2016, with

earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual period beginning on or after 1st January 2017, with

earlier application permitted.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2018, with

earlier application permitted.

4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be

determined.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1st January 2019, with

earlier application permitted.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. HEGHBUR @
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments

HKFRS 9 issued in 2009 introduced new requirements for the classification and
measurement of financial assets. HKFRS 9 was subsequently amended in 2010
to include requirements for the classification, measurement and derecognition
of financial liabilities, and in 2013 to include the new requirements for general
hedge accounting. Another revised version of HKFRS 9 was issued in 2014
mainly to include (a) impairment requirements for financial assets and (b)
limited amendments to the classification and measurement requirements by
introducing a ‘fair value through other comprehensive income’ (FVTOCI)

measurement category for certain simple debt instruments.

Key requirements of HKFRS 9:

U all recognised financial assets that are within the scope of HKAS 39
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are required to
be subsequently measured at amortised cost or fair value. Specifically,
debt investments that are held within a business model whose objective
is to collect the contractual cash flows, and that have contractual
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding are generally measured at amortised cost at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. Debt instruments that are
held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets, and that
have contractual terms that give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal
amount outstanding, are generally measured at FVTOCI. All other debt
investments and equity investments are measured at their fair value at
the end of subsequent accounting periods. In addition, under HKFRS 9,
entities may make an irrevocable election to present subsequent changes
in the fair value of an equity investment (that is not held for trading)
in other comprehensive income, with only dividend income generally

recognised in profit or loss.
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(d)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 9 — Financial Instruments (Continued)

with regard to the measurement of financial liabilities designated as
at fair value through profit or loss, HKFRS 9 requires that the amount
of change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is presented in other
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes
in the liability’s credit risk in other comprehensive income would create
or enlarge an accounting mismatch in profit or loss. Changes in fair
value attributable to a financial liability’s credit risk are not subsequently
reclassified to profit or loss. Under HKAS 39, the entire amount of the
change in the fair value of the financial liability designated as fair value

through profit or loss is presented in profit or loss.

in relation to the impairment of financial assets, HKFRS 9 requires an
expected credit loss model, as opposed to an incurred credit loss model
under HKAS 39. The expected credit loss model requires an entity to
account for expected credit losses and changes in those expected credit
losses at each reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition. In other words, it is no longer necessary for a credit event to

have occurred before credit losses are recognised.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the adoption of HKFRS 9 in

the future may have an impact on amounts reported in respect of the Group’s

available-for-sale investments. However, it is not practicable to provide a

reasonable estimate of that effect until a detailed review has been completed.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(d) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (Continued)

HKFRS 15 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers

HKFRS 15 was issued which establishes a single comprehensive model for
entities to use in accounting for revenue arising from contracts with customers.
HKFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance including
HKAS 18 Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
Interpretations when it becomes effective.

The core principle of HKFRS 15 is that an entity should recognise revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that
reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange
for those goods or services. Specifically, the Standard introduces a 5-step
approach to revenue recognition:

. Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

. Step 2: Identify the performance obligations in the contract

. Step 3: Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in

the contract

. Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance
obligation

Under HKFRS 15, an entity recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying
the particular performance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far more
prescriptive guidance has been added in HKFRS 15 to deal with specific
scenarios. Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS 15.

The directors of the Company anticipate that the application of HKFRS 15 in
the future may have a material impact on the amounts reported and disclosures
made in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. However, it is not
practicable to provide a reasonable estimate of the effect of HKFRS 15 until the
Group performs a detailed review.

The directors of the Company do not anticipate that the application of other

new and revised HKFRSs will have a material effect on the amounts recognised
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(e) Significant judgements and estimates

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the directors of the Company to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are
believed to be reasonable and relevant under the circumstances, the results of
which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets
and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results

may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis.
Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the
estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future

periods.

The directors have considered the development, selection and disclosure of the

Group’s critical accounting policies and estimates.
Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, the directors have
made the following judgements which have the most significant effect on the

amounts recognised in the consolidated financial statements.
Revenue recognition

When a contract is judged to be a construction contract, revenue is recognised
using the percentage of completion method. The percentage of completion
method is made by reference to the stage of completion of projects determined
based on the proportion of contract costs incurred to date and the estimated

costs to complete.

Rental income arising on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-
line basis over the lease term regardless of when the cash rental payment is

received.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(e) Significant judgements and estimates (Continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Income from rendering money lending services is recognised over the

contractual period on a straight-line basis.

Realised gains or losses from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL”) are recognised on a trade date basis whilst the unrealised gains or

losses are recognised from valuation at the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it
is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
utilised. Significant judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred
tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of

future taxable profit together with future tax planning strategies.

The Group has tax loss carry forwards amounting to approximately
HK$120,266,000 (2015: approximately HK$126,890,000).

Further details on deferred taxes are disclosed in note 28.
Investment in available-for-sale investments

The unlisted investment contains the 49% of the equity interests in a private
company. Based on the composition of the board of directors, the Group has no
control or significant influence over the private company, it is classified as an
available-for-sale investments. It is held for an identified long term strategic
purpose so the Group does not intend to dispose them in the foreseeable future.
It is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of

the Company are of the opinion that fair values cannot be measured reliably.
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2.

(e)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Significant judgements and estimates (Continued)

Estimates and assumptions

(i)

(if)

Allowance for bad and doubtful debts

The Group makes allowances for bad and doubtful debts when there is
objective evidence that receivables balances are impaired. The amount
of the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective
interest rate computed at initial recognition). Where the actual future
cash flows are less than expected, a material impairment loss may arise.
The directors have exercised a considerable amount of judgement in
assessing the ultimate realisation of these receivables including the
current creditworthiness and the past collection history of each customer.
If the financial conditions of customers of the Group were to deteriorate,
resulting in an impairment of their ability to make payments, additional

allowance may be required.

Fair value measurements and valuation processes

Some of the Group’s assets are measured at fair value for financial
reporting purposes. The directors of the Company determine the

appropriate valuation techniques and inputs for fair value measurements.

In estimating the fair value of an asset, the Group uses market-observable
data to the extent it is available. Where input of Levels 1 and 2 are not
available, the Group engages third party qualified valuers to perform the
valuation. The directors of the Company work closely with the qualified
external valuers to establish the appropriate valuation techniques and

inputs to the model.

The Group uses valuation techniques that include inputs that are not
based on observable market data to estimate the fair value of certain
types of financial instruments and non-financial instruments. Notes 13
and 16 provide detailed information about the valuation techniques,
inputs and key assumptions used in the determination of the fair value of

various assets and liabilities.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(e) Significant judgements and estimates (Continued)
Estimates and assumptions (Continued)
(iii) Allowance for loan and receivables

The policy for collective impairment allowances for loans and
receivables of the Group is based on the evaluation of collectability
and ageing analysis of accounts and on management’s judgement.
A considerable amount of judgement is required in assessing the
ultimate realisation of these loans and advances, including the current

creditworthiness, and the past collection history of each loan.
(iv)  Share-based payments

The Group measures the cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees by reference to the fair value of the equity instruments at
the date at which they are granted. Estimating fair value for share-
based payments requires determining the most appropriate valuation
model for a grant of equity instruments, which is dependent on the terms
and conditions of the grant. This also requires determining the most
appropriate inputs to the valuation model including the expected life of
the option, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about
them. The assumptions and models used for estimating fair value for

share-based payments are disclosed in note 32.
(v)  Construction contracts

The Group’s profit or loss arising from construction contracts is
determined by reference to the latest available budgets of individual
construction contract prepared by the Group and based on management’s
best estimates and judgements. Provision is made for foreseeable losses

as soon as they are anticipated by management.
(vi) Property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management reviewed the estimated useful lives, residual
values and depreciation method of the property, plant and equipment.
During the year that the estimated useful lives on metal tubes and catwalks
become shorter, from ten years to five years, since the future economic
benefits on such property, plant and equipment become lower. The

depreciation rates change from 10% to 20% per annum during the year.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(f) Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements
of the Company and entities controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries.

Control is achieved when the Company:
. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with

the investee; and
. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or more of the three

elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over
the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses control of the subsidiary.
Specifically, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated income statement from the date
the Group gains control until the date when the Group ceases to control the

subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income are attributed
to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling interests. Total
comprehensive income of subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the
Company and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-

controlling interests having a deficit balance.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(f) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the acquisition method.
The consideration transferred in a business combination is measured at fair
value, which is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of the
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the Group to the former
owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in the consolidated profit or loss as incurred. At the acquisition date, the
identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are generally recognised

at their fair value at the acquisition date.

Changes in the Group’s ownership interests in existing
subsidiaries

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, a gain or loss is recognized
in profit or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the aggregate
of the fair value of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (ii) the previous carrying amount of the assets (including
goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary and any non-controlling interests.
All amounts previously recognized in other comprehensive income in relation
to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or
loss or transferred to another category of equity as specified/permitted by
applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any investment retained in the former
subsidiary at the date when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on
initial recognition for subsequent accounting under HKAS 39 “Financial
Instruments: Recognition and Measurement”, when applicable, the cost on

initial recognition of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
Business Combinations

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the
event of liquidation may be initially measured either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. The choice of measurement basis is made on

a transaction-by-transaction basis.
The results of subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year are included

in the consolidated profit or loss from the effective date of acquisition or up to

the effective date of disposal, as appropriate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(f) Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Where necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by

other members of the Group.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances between group

enterprises are eliminated on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries represent the interests of outside
shareholders not held by the Group in the results and net assets of the Group’s

subsidiaries.
(g) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment including land and buildings held for use in the
production or supply of goods or services, or for administrative purposes, are
stated in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if

any.

Depreciation is recognized so as to write off the cost of items of property, plant
and equipment, less their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using
the straight-line method, at the following rates per annum:

Leasehold land and buildings Over the term of the lease

Plant and machinery 20%
Metal tubes and catwalks 20%
Gondolas over 9 years
Gondolas’ related equipment 10%
Motor vehicles 20%
Furniture and fixtures 20%
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(g) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of the reporting period, with the effect of any changes in

estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their expected useful
lives on the same basis as owned assets. However, when there is no reasonable
certainty that ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term, assets are

depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued
use of the asset. Any gain or loss arising on the derecognition of the asset
(calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the item) is included in the consolidated profit or loss in the year in

which the item is derecognised.
(h) Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals and/or for capital
appreciation. Investment properties include land held for undetermined future

use, which is regarded as held for capital appreciation purpose.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost, including any directly
attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at fair values using the fair value model. Gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of investment properties are

included in profit or loss for the period in which they arise.

An investment property is derecognized upon disposal or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from the disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
property (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in profit or loss in the period in which

the property is derecognized.
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EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(i) Associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group or Company has significant
influence, which is the power to participate in, but not control or joint control,
over its management, including participation in the financial and operating

policy decisions.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are incorporated in the
consolidated financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under
the equity method, investments in associates are carried in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost as adjusted for post-acquisition changes
in the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate, less any identified impairment loss. When the Group’s share of
losses of an associate equals or exceeds its interest in that associate (which
includes any long-term interest that, in substance, forms part of the Group’s
net investment in the associate), the Group discontinues recognising its share
of further losses. An additional share of losses is provided for and a liability is
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or constructive

obligations or made payments on behalf of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using the equity method from
the date on which the investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of
the investee is recognized as goodwill, which is included within the carrying
amount of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognized immediately in profit or loss in the period in which

the investment is acquired.

Where a group entity transacts with an associate of the Group, profits and
losses are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s interest in the relevant

associate.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(j) Impairment of non-financial assets other than goodwill

At the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the carrying amounts
of its tangible assets to determine whether there is any indication that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss, if any. When it is not possible to estimate the recoverable
amount of an individual asset, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”) to which the asset belongs. When a
reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets
are also allocated to individual CGUs, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis

can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for

which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is estimated to be less than its
carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced to its
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized immediately in profit or
loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the
asset (or CGU) is increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount
that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized
for the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is

recognized immediately in profit or loss.
(k) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is

calculated using the first-in, first-out method.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course

of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs

necessary to make the sale.
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EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments
Financial assets

The Group’s financial assets include available-for-sale investments, financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, loan and interest receivables,
deposits, trade and other receivables, retention monies receivables, bank
balances and cash and other financial assets. Financial assets are recognised on
the trade date.

Financial assets at FVTPL

The financial assets at FVTPL of the Group comprise of investments held
for trading and derivatives that are not designated and effective as a hedging
instrument.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses
arising on remeasurement recognized in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognized in profit or loss excludes any dividend or interests earned on the
financial assets.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. Loans and
receivables are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment losses.
Any changes in their value are recognised in the profit or loss.

Interest income is recognized by applying the effective interest rate, except for
short-term receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives that are either
designated or are not classified as (a) financial assets at FVTPL or (b) loans and
receivables.

Equity securities held by the Group that are classified as available-for-sale
financial assets and are traded in an active market are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period. Changes in the carrying amount of available-
for-sale financial assets are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated under the heading of investment revaluation reserve. When the
investment is disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the investment revaluation reserve
is reclassified to profit or loss (see the accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(I) Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets (Continued)

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a quoted market price
in an active market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured and
derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such unquoted
equity investments are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses
at the end of each reporting period (see the accounting policy on impairment of
financial assets below).

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for indicators of
impairment at the end of each reporting period. Financial assets are considered
to be impaired when there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the
estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or prolonged decline
in the fair value of the security below its cost is considered to be objective
evidence of impairment.

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial
re-organization; or

o disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of
financial difficulties.

For certain categories of financial assets, such as trade receivables, assets
that are assessed not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed
for impairment on a collective basis. Objective evidence of impairment for a
portfolio of receivables could include the Group’s past experience of collecting
payments and observable changes in national or local economic conditions that
correlate with default on receivables.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the amount of impairment loss
recognized is the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s

original effective interest rate.

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the impairment loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present
value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market rate of
return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment loss will not be reversed in

subsequent periods (see the accounting policy below).

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by the impairment loss
directly for all financial assets with the exception of trade receivables, where
the carrying amount is reduced through the use of an allowance account.
Changes in the carrying amount of the allowance account are recognized
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered uncollectible, it is
written off against the allowance account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts

previously written off are credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be impaired,
cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period in which the impairment

takes place.

For financial assets measured at amortized cost, if, in a subsequent period,
the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the
previously recognized impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss to the
extent that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortized cost would have been had the

impairment not been recognized.

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments, impairment losses
previously recognized in profit or loss are not reversed through profit or loss.
Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognized in
other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investment
revaluation reserve.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

() Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, retention
monies payables, obligations under finance leases, bank loans, bank overdrafts
and other loan. Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group becomes a

party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the obligation

specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of
a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.
The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees paid or received that form an integral part of
the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognized on an effective interest basis.

Derecognition

The Group derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to
the cash flows from the asset expire, or when it transfers the financial asset
and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognized in profit or

loss.

The Group derecognizes financial liabilities when, and only when, the
Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or they expire. The difference

between the carrying amount of the financial liability derecognized and the
consideration paid and payable is recognized in profit or loss.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(m) Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event and it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made

of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognized as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration
required to settle the present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation.
When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to settle the
present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash flows

(when the effect of the time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are
expected to be recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognized as
an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and the

amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

(n) Leased assets

Classification of assets leased to the Group

Assets that are held by the Group under leases which transfer to the Group
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership are classified as being held

under finance leases. All other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of the Group at their
fair value at the inception of the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the
minimum lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is included
in the consolidated statement of financial position as obligations under finance

leases.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses and reduction of
the lease obligation so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately in profit
or loss, unless they are directly attributable to qualifying assets, in which
case they are capitalised in accordance with the Group’s general policy on
borrowing costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals are

recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(n) Leased assets (Continued)

The Group as lessee (Continued)

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line
basis over the lease term, except where another systematic basis is more
representative of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under operating leases are

recognised in the period in which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases,
such incentives are recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of
incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental expense on a straight-line
basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time

pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

The Group as lessor

Rental income from operating leases is recognized in profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognized as an expense on a straight-

line basis over the lease term.
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EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(o) Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual group entity,
transactions in currencies other than the entity’s functional currency (foreign
currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the
transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary items denominated
in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign

currency are not retranslated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the

period in which they arise.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial statements, the
assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign operations are translated into
the presentation currency of the Company (i.e. HK$) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income and expenses items are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period. Exchange differences
arising, if any, are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in equity under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(p) Revenue recognition and amounts due from/to customers
for contract work

Revenue is measured at the fair value of consideration received or receivable.

Where the outcome of a construction and buildings maintenance contract can
be estimated reliably, revenue and costs are recognised by reference to the
stage of completion of the contract activity at the end of the reporting period, as
measured by the proportion that contract costs incurred for work performed to
date relative to the estimated total contract costs. Variations in contract work,
claims and incentive payments are included to the extent that the amounts can

be measured reliably and their receipt is considered probable.

Where the outcome of a construction and buildings maintenance contract
cannot be estimated reliably, contract revenue is recognised to the extent of
contract costs incurred that probably will be recoverable. Contract costs are

recognised as expenses in the period in which they are incurred.

When it is probable that total contract costs will exceed total contract revenue,

the expected loss is recognised as an expense immediately.

Where contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised
losses exceed progress billings, the surplus is shown as an amount due from
customers for contract work. For contracts where progress billings exceed
contract costs incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses,
the surplus is shown as an amount due to customers for contract work. Amounts
received before the related work is performed are included in the consolidated
statement of financial position, as a liability, as advances received. Amounts
billed for work performed but not yet paid by the customer are included in the

consolidated statement of financial position under trade and other receivables.

Sales of gondolas are recognised when title passes to customers.

Provision of services revenue is recognised when services are rendered.
Interest income from a financial asset is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable, which

is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the

expected life of the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount.
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EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(q) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready
for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are recognised in the
consolidated profit or loss in the period in which they are incurred.

(r) Retirement benefit costs

i) Short term employee benefits and contribution to defined
contribution plan

The Group participates in defined contribution retirement benefit
schemes for those employees who are eligible to participate.
Contributions are charged to the consolidated profit or loss as they are
paid/become payable in accordance with the rules of the scheme.

ii)  Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The fair value of services received determined by reference to the fair
value of share options granted at the grant date is expensed on a straight
line basis over the vesting period, with a corresponding increase in
equity (share option reserve).

At the time when the share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to share premium.
When the share options are forfeited or are still not exercised at the
expiry date, the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to retained profits.

(s) Taxation

Taxation represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable
profit differs from profit as reported in the consolidated profit of loss because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other
years and it further excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit, and is
accounted for using the liability method.
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

(s) Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities

in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is able
to control the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable that the

temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each
reporting period and it is reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that
sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be

recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated, without discounting, at the tax rates that are
expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset is
realised. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the consolidated profit or loss,
except when it relates to other comprehensive items, in which case the deferred

tax is also dealt with in the other comprehensive income.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to settle its current

tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets
for investment properties that are measured using the fair value model in
accordance with HKAS 40 “Investment Property”, the carrying amounts
of such properties are presumed to be recovered through sale, unless the
presumption is rebutted. The presumption is rebutted when the investment
property is depreciable and is held within a business model of the group whose
business objective is to consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment property over time, rather than through sale. If
the presumption is rebutted, deferred tax liabilities and deferred tax assets for
such investment properties are measured in accordance with the above general
principles set out in HKAS 12 (i.e. based on the expected manner as to how the

properties will be recovered).

ZZE—NEFH  Annual Report 2016

101



102

B 05 W B ik

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. HEFHBUR @

(s) BEIH (@)

RV o 08 S 38 VLA 4R 2 R M0 B R S
ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ%ﬁm T WAL it e B L A

wd o FU 3 % A0 S A SR 23 Sl HEAt 4 T
&ﬁﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ%%ﬁﬁ%o%%ﬁmiﬁﬁ
HEED A2 EREFHEBAEILT - BiB
MBS A gE R -

t) HEEWHE&ZEMEIEH
MGABRERBRTS > HE LRSS HER
T R R R B L A R BB 7 =
A1 A F 00 20 97 B B v 2 2 £
LT = A PR T B SRAT K o Sl R R A A
A T — T4 o

(u) BN+

(a) fELLT AL MIZALSEZAL 28
Tl BELAS A [ AT B

() PR R A
(i) BAEEMAELE K

(i) 2 A 45 [ s AR 45 B BE N m) Y
B o
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2. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)
(s) Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognized in profit or loss, except when they
relate to items that are recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively. Where current tax or
deferred tax arises from the initial accounting for a business combination, the

tax effect is included in the accounting for the business combination.

(t) Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents represent short term highly liquid investments which are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and which were within three months of
maturity when acquired, less advances from banks which are repayable within
three months from the date of the advance and which form an integral part of
the Group’s cash management.

(u) Related parties

(a) A person, or a close member of that person’s family, is related to the

Group if that person:
(i)  has control or joint control of the Group;
(ii)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of the Group or the

Group’s parent.
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(u)

(b)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(CONTINUED)

Related parties (Continued)

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following conditions

applies:

@

(i)

(iii)

(@iv)

v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

The entity and the Group are members of the same group (which
means that each parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related

to the others).

One entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or
an associate or joint venture of a member of a group of which the

other entity is a member).

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third party.

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity is

an associate of the third entity.

The entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit of

employees of either the Group or an entity related to the Group.

The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person identified

in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of the

entity (or of a parent of the entity).

The entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, provides
key management personnel services to the Group or to the Group’s

parent.

Close members of the family of a person are those family members who

may be expected to influence, or be influenced by, that person in their

dealings with the entity.
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3. E¥EH

3. TURNOVER

“E N e S D
2016 2015
T#x THTT
HK$°000 HK$’000
Ry N nk TREAR ML DL RIS 2 Contract revenue in respect of construction and
G #lias buildings work for the provision of
— BALRS s — scaffolding services 84,782 105,671
— NG S AE IR HS — fitting out services 55,235 18,733
EH A KR Management contracting services - 2,753
MM LAES ~ BB SO T4 Gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment
Bt 2 2 e R HEAE IR installation and maintenance services 3,730 9,484
A B A Loan interest income 11,704 =
155,451 136,641

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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4. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports reviewed
by the chief operating decision-maker that are used for resources allocation
and assessment of performance focuses specifically on the revenue analysis by
principal categories of the Group’s business and the profit of the Group as a
whole. For the year ended 30 April 2016, the Group has six reportable segments
— (i) scaffolding services for construction and buildings work, (ii) fitting out
services for construction and buildings work, (iii) management contracting
services for construction and buildings work, (iv) gondolas, parapet railings
and access equipment installation and maintenance services, (v) money lending
business, and (vi) securities investment business. These segments are managed
separately as they belong to different industries and require different operating
systems and strategies. There are no sales or other transactions between these
reportable segments. An analysis of the Group’s segment information for the
years ended 30 April 2016 and 2015 is presented below:

LR
Witk
BRAERBGH
BEER LEER
KRR RETH EA T
RETH KRR 3¢ Gondolas,
REME  BELIERE Rl parapet
HRmE WHBRE  Management railings
Seaffolding Fitting out contracting and aceess Figde
services for services for services for equipment E
construction construction construction  installation and LR Securities
andbuildings ~ and buildings  and buildings  maintenance  Money lending investment AR Gh
work work work services business business Unallocated ~ Consolidated
T T T T Tk Tk T T
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BREZFnERA=FHILEE  For the year ended 30 April 2016
e REVENUE
E-p Nl External sales 84,782 55235 - 3730 11,704 - - 155451
Hlg R (BR) 5 Other gain and (loss), net - - - - - 341 - 3412
A Other income 1,197 - - - - - 1938 373
At Total 86,579 55035 - 3730 11,704 34 1,938 162,598
IS Segment result (3,085) 1075 (41) (3,110) 141 314 (9,014) (4,010)
LEUTON Other income 468
REMEATHZED Decrease in fair value of investment
properties (9,880)
AEME A THES Change in fair value of call option (1,641)
A B skl Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 81
B D Gain on disposal of a subsidiary 02
VEN T4 (i Loss on write-off of property,
plant and equipment @)
Fices Finance costs (2,230)
FEltGEAT 2 Share of results of associates 206
RfinER Loss before taxation (16812)
BE Taxation (5,689)
KEEER Loss for the year (22,501)
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4. HEF ) 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
RS
Vit
BREBEH
BRER ZEER
BEER EELE M
HELE BEER it Gondolas,
ROME  BETRRNR Al parapet
BRI WEBMRE  Management railings
Scaffolding Fitting out contracting and access WARE
services for services for services for equipment 1
construction~ construction construction  installation and e Securities
andbuildings ~ and buildings ~ and buildings ~ maintenance ~ Money lending investment KA ih
work work work services business business Unallocated ~ Consolidated
Titx T T T Tk Tk T Tk
HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000 HKS'000
REZ-AENA=1R At 30 April 2016
{3 ASSETS
HERE Segment assets T340 13057 15,675 3,408 409,260 105263 260024 $82,88
fifd LIABILITIES
AR Segment liabilties 55,641 4,646 - 1,300 30 - 24484 86,101

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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4. BEB @ 4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Al 43 75 B Other Segment Information
M LAER
Bt R
B BH H
BRER BRER 2EER

BETH BEER TR e s
REME  RETERM s Gondolas,
BRRE  REBRE A #RE  parapet railings

Scaffolding ~ Fittingout ~ Management and access b4

servicesfor ~ servicesfor contracting equipment ek £%

construction  construction services for installation and Money Securities
and buildings ~ and buildings constructionand  maintenance lending ~ investment ARE e
work work  buildings work services business business ~ Unallocated  Consolidated

Tk T Tk Tk T Fibn Tk T
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000

RE-ZNENA=FHILEE For the year ended 30 April 2016

BN Capital expenditure (1,862) (329) - (130) - - - 2320
fi# Depreciation (8,043) (106) - (443) - - (400) 9,592
TR R B 2502 Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
R on trade receivables and retention
monies receivables (586) - - (335) - - - 921)
REMELNTHERD Decrease in fair value of investment
properties - - - - - - (9,880) (9,880)
AREZ ATHEED Change in fair value of call option - - - - - - (1,641) (1,641)
TATEAREZ Fair value gain in financial assets at fair
SREEATHEKR value through profit or loss - - - - - 15,091 - 15,091
Ak B Impairment of available-for-sale
investment - - - - - (11,679) - (11,679)
HEME - R Rl Gain on disposal of property, plant and
equipment 81 - - - - - - 81
3~ B Rkl 2 BUEBE  Loss on write-off of property, plant and
equipment 8) - - - - - - ®)
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4. HBEF =

)

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

HoAth 23 58 & B ) Other Segment Information (Continued)
Al LR
B i
T IRAE 5 bt
BRER ZEER
RETR A M
BEER BRER REFH Gondolas,
RETRES  RETREME H#MR%  parapet railings
M4 e M % B % MR Management and access
Scaffolding Fitting out contracting equipment
services for services for services for  installation and
construction and ~ construction and  construction and maintenance KAH ki
buildings work  buildings work  buildings work services Unallocated Consolidated
T T T T T T
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HKS’000 HK$’000 HKS’000
REZZ T4 For the year ended 30 April 2015
MA=+HIREE
Yok REVENUE
A External sales 105,671 18,733 2,753 9,484 = 136,641
HAbfA Other income = - = - 1,617 1,617
fot Total 105,671 18,733 2,753 9,484 1,617 138,258
LS Segment result (489) 602 (280) (1,179) (7,380) (8,726)
SCHbA Other income 339
HEMENTHz8m Increase in fair value of
investment properties 5,071
R 7 AT EEH Change in fair value of call
option 1,610
HENE - BE Rikfilkis Gain on disposal of property,
plant and equipment 418
JE2 i ) ] G o B AR Loss on early redemption of
convertible bonds (743)
W% BERikfE 2 MEEE  Losson write-off of
property, plant and
equipment (1,237)
g R A Finance costs (5,579)
FEGR N 7] 2 4R Share of results of associates 1,315
BBt A s 4 Loss before taxation (7,528)
fiH Taxation (206)
AR R Loss for the year (7,734)

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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4. BEB @

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Ho At 23 3B & B (0) Other Segment Information (Continued)
TR -
Wi A
T RAE 15 25 b
HRER EER
RELR B0 Mot
BEER HRER R Gondolas,
RETRRE  BEIERME AHRF  parapet railings
A R M F#BME  Management and access
Scaffolding Fitting out contracting equipment
services for services for services for  installation and
construction and construction and construction and maintenance FoH ot
buildings work  buildings work  buildings work services Unallocated Consolidated
T Tk T Tk T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
REZ—HAENAZTH At 30 April 2015
0 ASSETS
SbERE Segment assets 103,913 11,021 14,855 4,654 239.421 373,864
fifd LIABILITIES
AR Segment liabilities 69,514 4,097 54 561 1412 75,638
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4. BER @

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Ho At 23 3B & B (0) Other Segment Information (Continued)
TR -
Wi A
T RAE 15 25 b
HRER EER
RELR B0 Mot
BEER BEER ROLEN Gondolas,
RETRRE  BEIERME AHRF  parapet railings
A R M F#BME  Management and access
Scaffolding Fitting out contracting equipment
services for services for services for  installation and
construction and construction and construction and maintenance FoH B
buildings work  buildings work  buildings work services Unallocated Consolidated
T T T T T T
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS$°000
BEZZLE For the year ended
WA= R OEAEE 30 April 2015
AR Capital expenditure (14,603) (495) - (372) (444) (15,914)
e Depreciation (5,042) (14) - 431) (400) (5,887)
FEMC Rk R AR & 5O Allowance for bad and doubtful
R debts on trade receivables and
retention monies receivables (1,780) (497) - (232) - (2,509)
BEME L AT-ERE Increase in fair value of
investment properties - - - - 5,071 5,071
e 7 NTEEH Change in fair value of call option = - - - 1,610 1,610
HEWE - B R Gain/(loss) on disposal of property,
s/ s8) plant and equipment 430 = = - (12) 418
AR T GE % 2 B4 Loss on early redemption of
convertible bonds - - - - (743) (743)
W13 ~ B st < MUERRHE. Loss on write-off of property,
plant and equipment (1,237) - - - - (1,237)

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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4. BRER @)
o 35k 4y 4
B B M 3 T A b MR RS B K B W kv

(9 B TE 3 o 8 7E T WL A ) Sl T A Ml AR
Pz EE LR

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Geographical segments
The geographical location of customers is based on the location at which the

services were provided or the goods delivered. The geographical location of the

specific non-current assets is based on the physical location of the asset.

W IV B B
Revenue Non-current assets
BN ZE T I S/ SR —HAE
2016 2015 2016 2015
T T Tt THsI0
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
s Hong Kong 155,451 136,619 93,741 151,310
T Macau - 0 _ _
155,451 136,641 93,741 151,310
FEEEER Information on major customers

AAEERE » AR (ZF T4 0 —4)
£ B AGASE B A R AR 10% DL BRI % S
HEATI G o K A% EEEFF & B Pl i
BEZ SN WF

During the year, the Group had transactions with one (2015: one) customer who
contributed to over 10% of the Group’s total revenue for the year. A summary

of revenue earned from this major customer is set out below:

RN el S
2016 2015
T# THIT
HK$°000 HK$°000
oKH A RS J RE TR R Revenue earned from scaffolding services for
BB 2 s o A5 i s construction and buildings work:
ZFE— Customer 1 68,554 100,449
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5. HAtBA 5. OTHER INCOME
7 42 1
Group
—Z—A R
2016 2015
T# THT
HK$°000 HK$°000
HMRE ol as > 1R Foreign exchange gains, net 2 _
FLE WA Interest income 21 1
IR N Rental income 1,938 1,617
HETE IS A Sundry income 445 338
138 0 SRR 4 (5 18) Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts
(Note 18) 1,797 -
4,203 1,956
6. IHAtWas K (E54R) - 6. OTHER GAIN AND (LOSS), NET
“E N RN
2016 2015
T#n THTT
HK$°000 HK$’000
N PEFF AR R Z Fair value gain on financial assets at fair value
Sl N FE I R through profit or loss 15,091 =
ATk A A R Impairment of available-for-sale investment (11,679) -
3,412 =
7. BEEEA 7. FINANCE COSTS
—EF—A “E—HE
2016 2015
Tkt THsTT
HK$’000 HK$°000
SRATEE R A Interest on bank loans 2,040 2,213
A B R S Interest on other loans 169 507
il AR 4 2 35 2 LS Interest on obligations under finance leases 21 63
A % {25 A1) S, Interest on convertible bonds - 2,792
2,230 5,575
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8. BiIH

8. TAXATION

“E N TR —HAE
2016 2015
T#n THTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
Pl T AL 3 - Taxation comprises:
T RSB Hong Kong Profits Tax
A Current year 200 711
FRiIGEE LT EAT Over-provision in prior years - (1,029)
200 (318)
R HE R T Deferred tax
AR Current year 5,489 504
5,689 206

T v I 15 B AR B5 47 FF 7 v Al 51 I SR B Uk A1) A
16.5% 2 Fi R (—F—F4F 0 16.5%) ©

R A 4 [ 17 4 PR AR S A T ZE 4800 T D o e
FEBL Z MERRBLUE A - B At R TE A S A
(ZF—RAF ) -

W 50 T s 4 B 5 i A 22 T Wi i 3R BT 7
ZBUIAZ BRI

Provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made at the rate of 16.5% on
the estimated assessable profits arising in Hong Kong during the year (2015:
16.5%).

No Macau Complementary Tax has been provided as the Group had no

assessable profits subject to such tax during the year (2015: Nil).

Loss before taxation is reconciled to taxation in profit or loss in the

consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income as

follows:
S S TS
2016 2015
T# THTT
HK$°000 HK$°000
B i s 48 Loss before taxation (16,812) (7,528)
AR I A U L 2 ) 2 B R Tax at tax rate applicable in the relevant
jurisdictions (2,770) (1,187)
TN 2 B S 2 B i Tax effect of expenses not deductible for tax
purpose 6,940 1,931
HIEBL 2 WA 2 B 5 28 Tax effect of income not taxable for tax purpose (1,850) (1,383)
Tl R 2 B TE s 18 2 B R Tax effect of tax losses not recognised 3,959 2,181
) 18 15 R AR 2 B IE s R Utilisation of tax losses previously not recognised (590) (307)
JE AR R 2 5t Over-provision in prior years - (1,029)
Pl TE Taxation 5,689 206
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9. EHMEEME 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS
(a) HEFME (a) Directors’ emoluments
Hlm -
Bk
HAb g BiRHA BAEHZ
Other l Bk Ji 2 )
emoluments: M4 Contributionto  Equity-settled A4
ik Salariesand  Discretionary retirement share option Total
Fee  other henefits bonus  benefit schemes expenses emoluments
lif3 Tix Tt Ttz TH#x T Tix
NOTES HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000

BEZZ-AH  For the year ended
WA=+HIESERE 30 April 2016

WhES Executive Directors

BRI $o Yu Shing - 1,123 184 18 - 1,325
i Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca - 749 152 18 - 919
kR Wo Siu Lun 1 - - - - - -
87 Kong Kam Wang - 960 110 18 - 1,088
93 So Wang Chun, Edmond - 456 111 17 - 584
Rl Ng Tang - 560 1,030 18 - 1,608
AL Yuen Chun Fai 2 - 618 140 18 - 776

Bk Independent Non-Executive Directors

%5 Fung Ka Shuen 3 - - - - - -
Wi Yeung Po Chin 4 - - - _ _ -
P4 Lam Kwok Wing 5 - - - - - -
Bk Law Man Sang 6 120 - - - - 120
Wik Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 7 120 - - - - 120
B Ong Chi King § 120 - - - - 120
kT Total 360 4,466 1,7 107 - 6,660
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9. HTHMEEME w0 9. DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES”’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)
(a) HEFME (a) Directors’ emoluments
HA S -
ek
HA A BIKEA ies3-va
Other BE S REER
emoluments: MfEfe4  Contributionto  Equity-setled falilE
e Salaries and Discretionary retirement share option Total
Fee other benefits bonus  benefit schemes expenses emoluments
pi tr Pee  Tee  Tex T bR
NOTES HK$°000 HKS’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BE 20 For the year ended
WAZTHIEEE 30 April 2015
wrES Executive Directors
BRIR S0 Yu Shing S 1,514 2 18 113 1,668
b3l Lai Yuen Mei, Rebecca - 895 15 18 113 1,041
PR Wo Siu Lun 1 - 190 - 6 64 260
8% Kong Kam Wang - 935 2 18 64 1,037
Lt $o Wang Chun, Edmond = 456 % 16 58 554
" Ng Tang - 30 0 18 % 680
e B Yuen Chun Fai 2 - 369 4 12 268 691
BuJk#fiES  Independent Non-Executive Directors
iy Fung Ka Shuen 3 83 - - - - 83
B Yeung Po Chin 4 53 - - - - 53
TS Lam Kwok Wing 5 83 - - - - 83
3¢ Law Man Sang 6 3 - - - - 3
Wik Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny 7 7 - - - - 7
B Ong Chi King § 7 = = = = 7
st Total 20 4719 144 106 962 6,201
Fi&E Notes:
1. BIJRBHE A R — MU A BT ATES - L. Mr. Wo Siu Lun resigned as an executive director with effect from 5 September 2014.
2. BB MRS A = — 4 LA B R T TS - 2. Mr. Yuen Chun Fai was appointed as an executive director with effect from 5 September
2014.
3. WRBSEENR " F—RFEN A — AR B T E 3. Mr. Fung Ka Shuen resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 1
Ho April 2015.
4. BB B e AR B — DA+ 2 ] — H BT L JE AT 4. Mr. Yeung Po Chin resigned as a an independent non-executive director with effect from 1
#f o December 2014.
5. MREASE R ZF— RN A — HBHEBL AT # 5. Mr. Lam Kwok Wing resigned as an independent non-executive director with effect from 1
Ho April 2015.
6. BESCESAER ZF—E T ] — HER T A B 6. Mr. Law Man Sang was appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect
HiTES - from 1 December 2014.
7. BB A =R — AR H — H R A 3 7. Mr. Chan Ngai Sang, Kenny was appointed as an independent non-executive director with
frd - effect from 1 April 2015.
8. EFHMEER-FE—RFENA— A EZEAE LR 8. Mr. Ong Chi King was appointed as an independent non-executive director with effect from
i - 1 April 2015.
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9.

(b)

R NEE A m)

D K <

BE FZNENH=THIEE - REETR
HiEHFMA LA NL (CF—HE  4)
AN EVE R > H GG RSl gE G P
HEMFEI () o ARFFERR T — 2 (ZF— R4 -
— %) N Z FHEREE RS W

9.

(b)

DIRECTORS’ AND EMPLOYEES"’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Employees’ emoluments

During the year ended 30 April 2016, the five highest paid individuals included

four directors (2015: four), details of whose emoluments are set out in note

9(a) to the consolidated financial statements above. The emoluments of the one

(2015: one) remaining individual for the year are as follows:

—F—NE  —ZEF

2016 2015

Tt T

HK$’000 HK$°000

S 4 S oAt AR A Salaries and other benefits 745 798
AR A T 4K Contribution to retirements benefits schemes 18 18
1 fE AL Discretionary bonus 80 13
843 829

R T — 44 5B S s N L 2 S A A

The emoluments of the one remaining highest paid individual other than

T directors are within the following bands:
“FR SFE A
2016 2015
Z 21,000,000 ¥ 7C Nil to HK$1,000,000 1 1

(c)

JRTE AR I > AR S [ 7 S8 ] A 5 2
A AR i ASE 5 1 387 P A L S A il P < 1
Ty TN 755 B SO e 22 5% B 2 AT 2 e
WA A I S0 S SR AT T M <6 o

ST R AT < A L
FRAR N 7] B A S T 055 1A IR

LIRS AT E RS E A
B AR A A R H RS

TEALTS 2 RA SR I 2 RO 2640 - W AR
B % AT L S AR fE -

AN T SE 2 AT AR A A A IS B4R A AT ]
RE ISR AR » BEARNFEH R E R E
22 Tk TH] B A B K ) g 2 B AR 4 B 26 S
BB ZERZY ~ ZPRAEH > HEE
39A PR -

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

(c)

The Group did not pay the directors or any of the five highest paid
individuals any emoluments for inducement to join the Group or upon
joining the Group or compensation for loss of office, and none of the
directors has waived any emoluments for both years.

The executive directors’ emoluments shown above were mainly for
their services in connection with the management of the affairs of the
Company and the Group.

The independent non-executive directors’ emoluments shown above

were mainly for their services as directors of the Company.

Bonus was determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

Significant transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to the
Group’s business to which the Company was a party and in which a
director of the Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year

are disclosed in note 39.
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10. A 4F B s R 10. LOSS FOR THE YEAR
“E N TR —HAE
2016 2015
T#n THTT
HK$’000 HK$’000
AAEE RO AN, (FEA) FI4IH : Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging/
(crediting):
JREMSCHR 3 e O [ 42 5k HL 2 Allowance for bad and doubtful debts
SR AR A on trade receivables and retention monies
receivables 921 2,509
2 5P (] ] R R A 5 e Loss on early redemption of convertible bonds - 743
TEATERIE ~ 4% 4 M AR B & E MU Write-off of prepayments, deposits and other
current assets - 2,874
1% BT 4 Auditor’s remuneration 680 583
THERR Ay B 32 2 A7 B AR Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 5,914 13,558
Yreg Depreciation 9,592 5,887
W CAEARZHESLMEILSEE  Less: Amount capitalised in construction contracts (8,467) (4,484)
1,125 1,403
Y - R Kk 2 Wi Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (81) (418)
W~ WE KA 2 R 1R Loss on write-off of property, plant and equipment 8 1,237
b R T SR AR 4 2 B AR 4 Minimum lease payments for operating leases in
respect of land and buildings 2,547 2,668
W CBAEAR L EEASLMEN A% Less: Amount capitalised in construction contracts (1,752) (1,728)
795 940
B LA (B 4) Staff costs including directors’ emoluments
— A GEE 2 W RE 2 — Equity-settled share option expenses - 1,723
— DA A 7 254 — Settled by other means 38,723 31,485
38,723 33,208
W CAEARZHESLMEILSEH  Less: Amount capitalised in construction contracts (15,247) (15,089)
23,476 18,119
11. kS 11. DIVIDEND

FEAERREE - ANFENH =11 IL4F No dividend has been proposed by the Directors for the year ended 30 April
BRI E (- —HAF %) o 2016 (2015: Nil).
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12. k&R
e YN o iE)

LA AR IR YR NAE H =+ H
1E 4R B AR N ) RE 45 R A N BEAS B 18 A LAY
18,197,000% 7€ ( =& — T 4F : 9,655,000 7T )
K = F— NEN A =+ B k4 BT A
J 53 o RE ST 2 1% %08,074,937,000 8 ( —F—
4£ 1 1,105,318,0008%) 75

R A S A LR T R 2 T~ 3 2 2 e i E
CAF B WA > DI — & — a4 NA
—t—BAERZBEGEH - BF-HFE=H
NHERZBBEHE - F-HELA=ZHiE
11 2 ALICEEAT -

RIABZE —ZF—NENA =+ IRFER R
B R > S MR A A R 2 1 AR AT o
RECEATAE > BT R W2 55 RR RS 2 47 A
iR TR BB A A % 47 BE 2 -4 T AR o

I 4 ) 4R
A AT 5 2 B S S 2 i Y Ml R TG e

THER S » SO 0 T 51 2 4 o L
g -

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

12. LOSS PER SHARE
Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share is based on the loss attributable to the
equity holders of the Company totaling approximately HK$18,197,000 (2015:
HK$9,655,000) for the year ended 30 April 2016 and on the weighted average
number of 8,074,937,000 (2015: 1,105,318,000) ordinary shares outstanding
during the year ended 30 April 2016.

The weighted average numbers of ordinary shares for the purpose of calculating
basic earnings per share have been retrospectively adjusted to reflect the share
consolidation with effect from 21 August 2014, the share consolidation with
effect from 6 March 2015 and the bonus issue completed on 3 July 2015.

During the year ended 30 April 2016, the computation of diluted earnings per
share did not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding share options
because the exercise price of those share options was higher than the average

market price for shares for the year.
Diluted loss per share
No adjustment has been made to the loss per share amount presented for the

year as the impact on the share options has an anti-dilutive effect on the loss per

share amount presented.
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13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

THIT
HK$’000
R E—UENH =1+ H At 1 May 2014 36,370
75 i A R A JB 2w A B E (B RE36) Acquisition of assets through acquisition of a
subsidiary (Note 36) 42,659

FEZ 3 Increase in fair value 5,071

R_F—HEHH—H At 30 April 2015 84,100

0B — T B m (B aE30) Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 30) (34,000)
NPEZ WD Decrease in fair value (9,880)
W2 ANEMNH=1H At 30 April 2016 40,220

A% B [ 7 5 s 2 B G S T H R A A £
Ao MARRE LS A AL o AEE G E
PILAPEBREEE - M08 R A BRSIMERE
W o R F—NFENH=+H HEWE
2 HR 1A {H £940,220,000 % 70 ( —F —H4F 4
84,100,000%: 75) ©

N

At (L BT LA 307 6 8 A A R | Bk A AT RE
A BR A | AT S Ak - DL E
43 Al b e B 4R ] A BR 2 ] & Dragon Oriental
Investment Limited 54 Z & FER —F—7~
A =T HBAVE(CE—RAA - R
T A A BRI 1 T B AR A BRA /T R
B2 G EETESIAGE) - i a2
RRIE A IR AR B FF AR 2R o

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Hong Kong, held under a
long term lease and rented out under operating leases. The Group’s investment
properties are measured using the fair value model and are classified and
accounted for as investment properties. At 30 April 2016, the carrying amount
of such investment properties amounted to approximately HK$40,220,000
(2015: approximately HK$84,100,000).

Fair value hierarchy

Independent valuations were performed by the valuers, Vigers Appraisal &
Consulting Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, to determine the fair value
of investment properties held by Wui Loong Holdings Company Limited and
Dragon Oriental Investment Limited (“Dragon Oriental”) respectively as at
30 April 2016 (2015: independent valuation performed by Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited for investment properties held by Wui Loong Holdings
Company Limited). The revaluation gains recognised in respect of investment

properties are included in the profit or loss.
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13. EME @)
O AR % 2 ()

2 2 91 S AR 4 T (A B o A B BCIR
WA A T R 2 BB % - RS R
R R 3 AL T A A S
AV SRR B A B S A o AT
LR A

- HEfRfhE  EERS RS EZ
ONPAE o RV FHE H 7R T B T 8 A
[Fi 5 R A A R R R A

- HIERhE RS SRR A
SFE - BIAFF G 58— S B g I
RARMA B Y - A
SERR TR R U T 35 BB 2 B

- CEEERAh(E ¢ R T B 2 EOR

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

The following table presents the Group’s investment properties measured at
fair value in the consolidated statements of financial position in accordance
with the fair value hierarchy. The hierarchy groups the investment properties
into three levels based on the relative reliability of significant inputs used in
measuring the fair value of the investment properties. The fair value hierarchy
has the following levels:

- Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level 1 inputs
i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities at the measurement date

- Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level 2 inputs i.e.
observable inputs which fail to meet Level 1, and not using significant
unobservable inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market
data are not available

- Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant unobservable

FHEZATE inputs
REZ-ANENA=ZTHR
A AR 4
Fair value measurements as at
30 April 2016 categorised into
R H At ]
S (6]
RN (BB =8
WMH=+H Significant
(A i< other
Fair value at observable inputs
30 April 2016 (Level 2)
THIT T
HK$’000 HK$’000
KU AR T R Recurring fair value measurements
ELS <L/ E Investment properties:
—WE-F — Commercial — Hong Kong 40,220 40,220

A T 22 TSR T A S 48 1 2 B DL L
B 2 F R AT (LSRN T A Bt

AR A — BRI — 2 TSI e E R
A S IR A R E A =

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

During the year, there were no transfers of fair value measurements between
Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
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13. BEWE @)

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

REZFB-RENA=ZTHE
W PR B
Fair value measurements as at
30 April 2015 categorised into

BRI A
B MR
S K (GEZ#)
WA=+H Significant
2 other
Fair value at observable inputs
30 April 2015 (Level 2)
T o T HsI0
HK$°000 HK$°000
KA A L Recurring fair value measurements
BEWE Investment properties:
— ¥ T — Commercial — Hong Kong 84,100 84,100
A 4K i AR ) Valuation processes of the Group

IR ALEBN R EY RO T —NFENA
= H R ST Al L R AR T R
fili A R 2 A B R M AT (R 1A PR 2 R Al
5 46 3 70 S R 552 G 0 k2 iy e 7 A 0 i
GBS R AR S A AR AR B
Mo A (E A SE R AEER -

7S ] ) S 5 4 ) el B S A (L A
o AT A AR o A5 AR S B 7 A6 (L At il
(BB R B A (L A R A T el o o

5B oy P B R A A (B0 e
A B

JA AR F AR ) 1) 7 s BB 260 P BT 4%
T35 B A8 228 BRIV U 26 09 T 355 T LS
22 5 M AT o B DA AR G 1) 3 2 IR L 2 S e 2
AL H ) S T E -

B0 B KA 2 1 4 B P PR A (ELE AT - AT A
BOEY M F > HBIRHG 2 e m R -

A4 E B G 2E B 2 W 2E T A A (BT A
) SE AR PR B TH A ) £91,938,000% 7T (—
F—TA4E © #11,617,00087T) - A BIFEE R
BRFRE3S o WA N SRR B W 2 A 2 B
S -

Horp—TERCE ) 3 O R AR 52 T A £ B
SRATRVE (FLFfEE33) o

All of the Group’s investment properties were revalued as at 30 April 2016
by firms of independent professionally qualified valuers, Vigers Appraisal
& Consulting Limited and RHL Appraisal Limited, both being members of
the Royal Institute of Chartered Surveyors and the Hong Kong Institute of
Surveyors, and have appropriate qualifications and recent experience in the
valuation properties in the relevant locations.

The Group’s financial controller reviews the valuations performed by the
independent valuer for financial reporting purposes. The financial controller
holds discussions with the independent valuer on the valuation assumptions and
valuation results.

Valuation techniques and inputs used in Level 2 fair value
measurements

The fair value of investment properties located in Hong Kong which were
tenanted as at the date of valuation, is determined using market comparison
approach by reference to recent sales price of comparable properties on a
price per square foot basis using market observable transactions of similar
properties.

There has been no change from the valuation techniques used in the prior year.
For all investment properties, their current use equates to the highest and best
use.

The property rental income earned by the Group from its investment properties,
all of which are leased out under operating leases, amounted to approximately
HK$1,938,000 (2015: approximately HK$1,617,000), further details of which
are included in note 35. There are no direct operating expenses arising on the
investment properties in either years.

The investment properties have been pledged to secure bank facilities granted
to the Group (see note 33).

ZZE—NEFH  Annual Report 2016

121



122

B 05 W B ik

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. W3k ~ W7 B st fli

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

iR ] SBE BMIER 3193

3 E2 [ TAEHR BT 3 KE

Leasehold Y3 b Metal  Gondolas %¥  Furniture
landand  Plantand  tubes and and related Motor and Ht
buildings machinery  catwalks equipment vehicles fixtures Total

T T T T T T T
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$°000  HK$'000  HKS$'000  HKS$'000  HK$'000

A COST
REFE—WFERA—H At 1 May 2014

WE Additions

ifi= Disposals

s Written off
REF-REMAZ1A At30 April 2015

NE Additions

i Disposals

G Written off
REFE—AFEA=TH At 30 April 2016

it DEPRECIATION
WEF—WERA—H At 1 May 2014
SERRE Provided for the year

18 el Eliminated on disposals
0 o ] Eliminated on written off
MEE—HEMA=+H At 30 April 2015
SERE Provided for the year
18 el Eliminated on disposals
0 o Eliminated on written off
REFE—AFEA=TH At 30 April 2016

T i CARRYING AMOUNTS
REZF—AFEMA=1H At 30 April 2016
MEE—HEMA=TH At 30 April 2015

ASE B LA T AR TR i > DRI
B AHA -

A E—NEWH = H > A E DLRNE LA
A 2 Mean IR B 2 MR T {E £7945,000% 76 (—
T—HAF : 41880,00090) °

A 1 M 2 o B A ST DA 45 T A 4 [ Y
SRATRAE (RREE33) ©

A5 A A A B2 LAl AH A R 5 T 3k B [

TEEE Z AR 939,000 00 (- F — RAR ¢
188,000% JC) ©

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

9273 1,068 37,629 7,015 7,014 7,059 69,258
- 198 14322 355 85 954 15914

- (560) - - (1,194) 107 (1.861)

- (193)  (6,840) - - 625  (1.638)
9273 513 45,111 7,370 5,905 7481 75,653
- - 1,825 130 939 366 3,260

- - - - (720) - (720)

- - (10) - - - (10)
9273 513 46,926 7,500 6,124 7,847 78,183
1,685 1,068 15,335 5,061 5,561 6,678 35,388
230 29 4,485 346 587 210 5,887
- (560) - - (1,112) 05)  (1,767)

- (193)  (5.603) - - 625  (6421)
1915 344 14217 5407 5,036 6,168 33,087
229 40 8,038 356 43 306 9,592
- - - - (513) - (513)

- - ) - - - o)
2,144 384 20,453 5,763 4,946 6,474 42,164
7,129 129 24473 1,737 1,178 1373 36,019
7,358 169 30,894 1,963 869 1,313 42,566

The leasehold land and buildings of the Group are situated in Hong Kong and
are held under long term leases.

At 30 April 2016, the carrying amounts of machinery and motor vehicles
of the Group included approximately HK$945,000 (2015: approximately
HK$880,000) in respect of assets held under finance leases.

The leasehold land and buildings have been pledged to secure bank facilities
granted to the Group (see note 33).

The amount of additions acquired by the Group during the year by means of
finance lease is HK$939,000 (2015: HK$188,000).



15. AW 2 F 2 HE g

Ao B R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES

S S
2016 2015
T#x T
HK$°000 HK$’000
JREAL & Y Share of net assets 7,161 6,968
[ Goodwill 10,921 10,921
18,082 17,889
Wk EUEE 1R Less: accumulated impairment loss (580) (580)
17,502 17,309
R E—NENA =11 - BT 275 Particulars of the associates at 30 April 2016 are as follows:
A Bk LB AT
*¥ e A 2 T £ e
B R ks, i Proportion of
Form of B B 0 30 nominal value of
BE AR 4 business Place of incorporation/ Class of issued share capital FEEH
Name of associate structure operation shares held held by the Company Principal activity
ZRAE CR-EHA
2016 2015
BM Technologies Limited ERL A LRI T 36.36% 36.36% &R
Incorporated British Virgin Islands  Ordinary Investment holding
ERRNERAR REf L ik LB 36.36% 3636%  CIEESE
Wui Chun Building Material Limited Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Dormant
RERRFERBRAR Haulw Hils LR 20% 20%  FHERIEER
([5Z3aiR3k ) Incorporated Hong Kong Ordinary Real estate agency

AP Assets Limited (“AP Assets”)

business
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15. R BiE A [l BEfR () 15. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (CONTINUED)
NEREYZHEREE _F—A4ENA=1+H
IR 2 BARCE R > BB st & s EUOR (AT
o] 22 B SR 3 SR A B 4 R T

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information of AP
Assets, which is the Group’s material associate, for the year ended 30 April

2016 adjusted for any differences in accounting policies, and reconciled to the

THI{EL AR carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements:
e L
2016 2015
T#x THIT
HK$°000 HKS$’000
T A Current assets 40,950 40,647
I B A Non-current assets 1,372 601
i & A Current liabilities (9,244) (9,099)
EEN=E Non-current liabilities 171) (209)
JR A HE 4 Equity 32,907 31,940
e A Revenue 34,602 23,494
Thi ) K 2 T g AR Profit and total comprehensive income 966 6,576
AR M 2 B A A Group’s effective interest 20% 20%
A [ T A1k v ) B A T i i AR Group’s share of profit and total
comprehensive income 193 1,315
LA 45 9] 2 T A wIARE 2 A Reconciled to the Group’s interests in the associates
Bia s rl EEFEZ B Gross amounts of net assets of the associate 32,906 31,940
A 2 F L Group’s effective interest 20 % 20%
AL [ BT AL B N T B HE Group’s share of net assets of the associate 6,581 6,388
[ Goodwill 10,921 10,921
TE47 & BB 3R 2 HR T {E Carrying amount in the consolidated
financial statements 17,502 17,309

HEENFENA =+ HILEE > RBELS
Al Z M > JZERBR R S B (E B R B
B o AN ZF—NERLA ZTARHEHE
JRAIZ BRBRER MR o FEAE B R A5 A BB R
FM 5143 o K AR P R s 1R AN A5 R B period, the Group does not recognise further impairment on goodwill in current
T3 IR0 > A A TSI AS T B30 A AR A B R year.

FEfEH o

For the year ended 30 April 2016, there is a significant change in fair value of
interests in associates, AP Assets. Subsequently on 26 May 2016, the Group
has wholly disposed of its interest in AP Assets. Details are stated in note 43.

An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
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16. {1 E

16. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS

2016 2015

—F A CER—HAE

HK$°000 HK$’000

T#x THsTT

A T A R 2 Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 35,040 =
I EHRERESE Unlisted investment funds at cost 8,321 =
JEETHRE > A Unlisted investment, at cost 2,000 =
45,361 -

RS I B TR AR R A T S BT BRLAT
WiEREE - F EHRERENATHECD 2%
BB G B R O B A A i AR i 7
FE o UM o BB G TR AR A FE
NVEAEE & B > R R /s B A B 0 1E
{H o

BEE—NENH =4 HIRER > 7R A
A TH W g P R A A T (B 2 Bk 2R AN
16,352,000% 7C ( —F — T 4F « fi) » WA &
AL A A S B o

AREEBPAENIEAIE ETHIE - NAFH A 4
% 5520,000,0003 70 o %% &R EC W B =
IR H 1 > DASOAS B2 [ A A 5 2 R AR B
W o AIREIITR » FF b T 4R R A W (E
FHE o N ARM A EISEN IR - AREREZR
8 e 18 5 11,679,000 7T ( - F — FL4E -
488 ) SIF AR S T A TSI A AR 4 (A flE 58 A 18 4 2%
E o

REE—RNFEZH—H > AREEE R AR
N (A ) W] 2 42 W 4 B ) IR Ching”s
Diamond Collection Limited 2 49% JIt # » B
4 % E % 2,000,000 # JG ° Ching’s Diamond
Collection Limited & E HERE 173 - HA
£E [ %} Ching’s Diamond Collection Limited %
A BEHIRE » T LA IS I 2 w4k o B % (H Ak
A) o

BTG - HA TR C i RIS H
9 > DABCAS SR BA AT Z R AR BE 8 o
T2 FUAB(E 2 5 I R R RER > DAEOAR
N FHEH R Mk ] SE R R A AR - wOR
TR AR S A R (E R

The fair values of listed securities are based on bid prices quoted in active
markets in Hong Kong. The fair values of the unlisted investment funds have
been determined by reference to the quotation provided by the fund manager
of the investment funds at the reporting date. The directors believe that the
estimated fair values provided by the fund manager of the investment funds are
reasonable, and that is the most appropriate value at the end of the reporting
period.

For the year ended 30 April 2016, the gain on the fair value change in the
investments of approximately HK$16,352,000 (2015: Nil) were recognised
in other comprehensive income and reflected in the investment revaluation

reserve.

The Group acquired the unlisted investment funds at cost of HK$20,000,000
during the year. It is held for an identified long term strategic purpose so the
Group does not intend to dispose them in the foreseeable future. It is measured
at cost less impairment loss at the end of the reporting period. Due to prolonged
negative indicator, an impairment loss of HK$11,679,000 (2015: Nil) was

regarded as irrecoverable and was recognized in profit or loss during the year.

On 1 March 2016, the Group, through Bright Advantage Limited (“Bright
Advantage”) an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired
49% of the equity interests in Ching's Diamond Collection Limited (Ching’s
Diamond) at a total cash consideration of HK$2,000,000. Ching’s Diamond
principally engaged in jewellery business. As the Group has no control or
significant influence over Ching’s Diamond, it's regarded as an available-for-
sale investment carried at cost.

The unlisted investment, at cost are held for an identified long term strategic
purpose so the Group does not intend to dispose them in the foreseeable future.
It is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the reporting period because
the range of reasonable fair value estimates is so significant that the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that fair values cannot be measured reliably.
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18 £5 DL A F 18 16 5 B 17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
& THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

[

5
A
ﬁﬂL%

e

S®-AE EHAF
2016 2015
T T
HK$°000 HK$°000

R AR R RS BT - Equity securities held for trading at fair value:
B E RS Listed in Hong Kong 59,902 =

MR LATIEE - Analysed as:

W) G Current assets 59,902 =

A BT 8 £ A B2 1 4 A% 2 i@ I U Bl The investments represent listed equity securities investments that offer the
AN BB B M 2 VE 4 [ P T e A o 2 4% Group the opportunity for return through dividend income and fair value gains.

B o S BN A E B H B B ER o BT They have no fixed maturity or coupon rate. The fair values of listed securities
R 1 4 -8 (B T AR 5 7 S 0 OR 9 T A are based on the bid prices quoted in active markets in Hong Kong.
H oo

o

75 A8 2 DA -1 (B3 HR 1) <6 il 7 LA VS DT 31 The investments are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
H

18. WK 18. TRADE RECEIVABLES

—®—xE  —R—GF

2016 2015

T THETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

JRE AT B K Trade receivables 50,584 51,128
I SR SR A Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (352) (2,029)

50,232 49,099
ISR AN N 2 S BT - Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as

follows:

L S

2016 2015

T ke THsTT

HK$°000 HK$°000

) At beginning of the year 2,029 248

RIS Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 352 2,029
ASBe Il 2 MR AR Amounts written off as uncollectible (232) (248)

8 ] RS AR A Reversal of allowance for bad and doubtful debts (1,797) -

A At end of the year 352 2,029

126 ERZBARAT WLS Holdings Limited
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18. FEWCR K (=)

e 7 A1 VRS R A 118 1) 7 TR A
2 IRE WS 3 HE 45 40352,0009 00 (- F—FLA4F ¢
#92,029,000%5 75) © R FIl 75 5 (E 2 8 i B sk B
HiRBR 2 KPP AR > HFE NS0T
i o

1e] 45 22 ] 2 5 443 2 A BT ARGE A B 2 S04
FEA A AR A o R BRI
B R A R ORSRE A A T

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the above allowances for impairment of trade receivables of
the Group are allowances for individually impaired trade receivables of
approximately HK$352,000 (2015: approximately HK$2,029,000). The
individually impaired receivables relate to customers that were in default and

only a portion of the receivables is expected to be recovered.

The credit terms given to each individual customer were in accordance with the
payment terms stipulated in the relevant tenders or contracts. The aged analysis
of trade receivables as at the end of the reporting period, based on the invoice

date and net of impairment is as follows:

——A St
2016 2015

Tt T T

HK$°000 HK$°000

90 H 4 Within 90 days 25,822 25,121
91—180H 91 to 180 days 1,075 2,148
181—365H 181 to 365 days 2,128 709
1A Above 1 year 21,207 21,121
50,232 49,099

BT R AT > LB EFATEETS 2
FEEREREREF ZGERE - KEn R
SR R B 2 B ARl B A AR R 8% -

Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential
customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. Majority of
the trade receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no default

payment history.
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18. FEWCR K (=)

R WA SR 4 2 A S s 30 7 30 ) AR v (L
#124,410,000%5 0 ( —F — HAF  £923,978,000
W0 B B 5 EWCR AR < dly M BB R I e
BE K 58 By H AR B 0 15 AL R a8 20 % S I By ]
W I 5 A S S (LM PR AR

A 0L A 11 ) B B R E 7 B < R WSR3
ZIREE AT

18. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

Included in the trade receivables are trade debtors with aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$24,410,000 (2015: approximately
HK$23,978,000) which are past due at the reporting date for which the Group
has not provided for impairment loss as there has not been a significant change
in the credit quality and amounts are still considered recoverable based on

historical experience.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are past due but neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as follows:

B SN 2 ZE—HAF

2016 2015

Tt THETT

HK$’000 HK$’000

> =8 A Over due less than 3 months 1,075 2,148
it = | H = IR H Over due 3 months to 9 months 2,128 709
41 A B A LR A Over due over 9 months 21,207 21,121
24,410 23,978

JE Wi R 3K 40 17,065,000 76 (& — FHA4F 4
17,134,000 70 ) £ 7] — $RATHEHVE 2 — MR AT
fll 2 5 AR (RLfEE33) -

19. BEWe, (HERH) % P & 5 T#

K IH

Trade receivables of approximately HK$17,065,000 (2015: approximately
HK$17,134,000) have been pledged to a banker to secure general banking
facilities granted to the Group (see note 33).

19. AMOUNTS DUE FROM/(TO) CUSTOMERS
FOR CONTRACT WORK

B S “E R4
2016 2015
T# THTT
HK$’°000 HK$°000
HE A R A N A Contract costs incurred to date plus attributable
bl ASR AT R profits less recognised losses 170,885 184,613
L s % JRE WA JE T Progress payments received and receivable (154,433) (151,270)
16,452 33,343
Ve A & 5y Analysed for reporting purposes as:
MEWE P& 4 TR0 Amounts due from customers for contract work 18,998 34,115
JEAT % 5 A 4 TR 2K0E Amounts due to customers for contract work (2,546) (772)
16,452 33,343

REU, (REAT) 22 5 4 4 TR 3R IE 9 & B4 465 B 1
FEFHR R IR B+ A & o

Both balances of amounts due from/(to) customers for contract work are

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

expected to be settled within twelve months after the end of the reporting
period.
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20. FEWCOR 1F 20. RETENTION MONIES RECEIVABLES

e ——AF

2016 2015

T#x T

HK$°000 HK$’000

JRE Wi AR [ 4 Retention monies receivables 2,965 5,756
W SRR A Less: Allowance for bad and doubtful debts (569) (480)

2,396 5,276
RIEIRBHERE R Z SF T Movements in allowance for bad and doubtful debts during the year were as

follows:

S —— it

2016 2015

T#x T

HK$°000 HK$°000

LI At beginning of the year 480 20

SRR Allowance for bad and doubtful debts 569 480
ASHEM 1] 2 TR Amounts written off as uncollectible (480) (20)

R At end of the year 569 480

A [ 42 491,103,000 T ( & — 14 - 4 Retention monies receivables of approximately HK$1,103,000 (2015:
2,678,000% It ) C ) — 4R4T HEAFE 25 — MR 4R 47 approximately HK$2,678,000) have been pledged to a banker to secure general

Rl 2 R (R EE33) o banking facilities granted to the Group (see note 33).
T BA S 1A R SR 38 R HE A 22 569,000 4% 7 (2015: The allowance for bad and doubtful debts of HK$569,000 (2015: HK$480,000)
480,000%57T) J5 B33 KA aER [B] o represents the past due and uncollectible at the end of the reporting period.
21. BEWCR R R AE 21. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
ZE R ZE—HAE
2016 2015
Tt THETT
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
— 4 A B R Amount due within one year 374,081 =

ZZE—NEFH  Annual Report 2016 129



o vy S R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

21. BEWCER K B A B a0 21. LOAN AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)
DUTR 2 A &5 58 H B AT & 5 Bk 1 AR 4 A The following is an aged analysis for the loans and receivables to finance

customers at the end of the reporting period:

TR N RN

2016 2015

T#x THIT

HK$’000 HK$°000

T Current 374,081 _
REEFAH > RIS R R At the reporting date, loan and interest receivables consisted of:

TR N Sl 2

2016 2015

T# THTT

HK$’000 HK$’000

DA R AAEHEAR 2 550 Amounts secured with guarantor 31,216 -

DL 5 ME R 2 S50 Amounts secured with securities 227,879 -

DIYE IR N B Z-AEHCHR 2 5 Amounts secured with guarantor and securities 15,217 =

FE DA R N B S VE R 2 28 Amounts secured without guarantor or securities 99,769 =

374,081 -

T M Al 0t A Y A R A (B (A A The table below summarises its credit quality (gross balances net of impairment

) ¢ allowances):
—B—NE CE AR
2016 2015
T o THETC
HK$°000 HK$°000
5 8E &= Credit quality
it I 7 44 = A 51 Ik (1 Neither past due nor individually impaired 374,081 =
AN A2 T B0 07 35 oA A 20 R S R K ) R A fi A The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding loan and interest
BERE BRI 8RR R A o 4% AR E receivables so as to minimise credit risk. The granting of loans is subject to
R SR AL ) AR o T 2 S A R i e approval by the management, whilst overdue balances are reviewed regularly
PEEAT AT o MBI 3R B R B AR T 40 7 AR for recoverability. Loan and interest receivables are charging on effective
e 2 BB AR > AP EAESE £ 128 interest rate mutually agreed with the contracting parties, ranging from 8% to
(T —FAF 4] o 12% (2015: Nil) per annum.

FANAEATHT % P R - A GBS F 2 Before accepting any new customer, the Group assesses the potential

BREAREAERF W - A Kah customer’s credit quality and defines credit limits by customer. All loan and

I A 2 JB g B 7 S LR T Bk o interest receivables that are neither past due nor impaired have no default
payment history.
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22. & 22. INVENTORIES
B e S
2016 2015
Tt TiE
HK$’000 HK$’000
JEUR Raw materials 355 313

23, BAHAOR e ROL A0 B
Vi

FATE ~ 8 RIS S 2 e T

23. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
CURRENT ASSETS

Details of prepayments, deposits and other current assets are as follows:

SR®-AE SFHA
2016 2015

T T

HK$°000 HK$°000

TE AT K Prepayments 1,128 599
i Deposits 814 392
At 90 B Other current assets 911 2,081
2,853 3,072

R oFE—NENHA =+ H > 3 M A EOE -
iz 4 B HoAth 7 B A A B E (—F— T
4 2,874,00047C) ©

24. SITH R R &

SRAT S R S B 4 L5 AR 45 ) T 4 2 B4 % R 3
W H A =A8 A BT 2 B IRAT K o SRATES
SR T A 4F BE $5 A F0% £.0.26% 2 B R 5B, -

At 30 April 2016, no repayments, deposits and other current assets were
considered impaired (2015: HK$2,874,000).

24. BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances and cash comprise cash held by the Group and short term bank
deposit with an original maturity of three months or less. The bank balances

carry interest at rates ranging from 0% to 0.26% for both years.
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25. WEAFHRask B 2L fth £k ak 2

JRE A5 B 3k % At FRE 5 5K TH £ 45 R ASF B K 40
11,664,00095 76 ( — & —F4F © £718,991,000%
J.) > HURER MR :

25. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Included in trade and other payables are trade payables of approximately
HK$11,664,000 (2015: HK$18,991,000) with an aged analysis as follows:

RN SR —HAE

2016 2015

T#x THsTT

HK$°000 HK$’000

90H A Within 90 days 9,199 15,058
91—180H 91 to 180 days 952 3,326
181—365H 181 to 365 days 1,513 243
R 14F Above 1 year - 364
JEAST e AL A Total trade payables 11,664 18,991
oAt AT FRIE Other payables 309 477
e Accruals 4,175 4,149
JRRE A TR o e L At A5 3 I Total trade and other payables 16,148 23,617

The credit period on sub-contracting services ranged from 30 days to 90 days.

Iy IR 2 S A TF30REIOKR o« AEHD
il 52 B R B A LR > WEOR AT A R AN R I
G &M R fEE -

26. i &M A R

The Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are settled within the credit timeframe.

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

I A 0 5F ik

Minimum

It AR #9155k BLE
Present value of

lease payments minimum lease payments

RN ZEZ N R R ZE AR
2016 2015 2016 2015
Tt ARV Tt Tt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
RIERERIA AT ZIA © Amounts payable under
finance leases:
—4ER Within one year 221 534 180 519
BEERERN In the second to fifth year
(5 E RWAE) inclusive 714 8 653 8
935 542
o R AE R Less: future finance charges (102) (15)
& RE 2 BE Present value of lease obligations 833 527 833 527
W R NBEM A2 Less: Amount due within
FIH (it i B A & one year shown under
H R HI7R) current liabilities (180) (519)
R FZ BT 2 FIH  Amount due after one year 653 3
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26. @bE A A m)

7 42 18 DA Rl FHL A0 LB T 8 SR © 78
THEERATIE - HE E—AENH =10
IEAERE > B R R AR R R A T-5.26 L 57.03
Ji o FIZR T A K H W E o Fra #E B L E
R K S 5L HOID IS s SR G 3 BRRT L %%
PE -

ASAE 2 Rl AR A R DA AR A R
Jr AL -

R AR 2 R R A RIS 2 S (T
R A T A A B 4 L A R 2 R T 85
A a7 B 2 (L 78 5 ) BELAH B R 1 (BLAR 4 o

27. RITHRRIEX

SRATBEAR % S0 DASE [ 2 W) 2 B A SR A
RS e R AR

A 45 B i A BRAT BE AR I35 S0 3 i R T 5 R R
FHE > AP AR IR G — 0 A & W 8R4 T IF] 247 2
1.5 2 s et R R 1258 (& —
A DU SRE— A A B s ERAT IR PR B 1.5
JE Z BRI R N1.258) -

ERERRMAEBZRITER LB L2 AFE
(T AR B ikt R AR B 4 W 42 i o4 JUD R 2 g
T35 Fll e 4 Bl 2 BUE R ) BELAR [ (ELAR A o

SRAT SRR B2 57 2 W KA 2w A R B RE
33

26. OBLIGATIONS UNDER FINANCE LEASES

(CONTINUED)

The Group leases certain of its machinery and motor vehicles under finance
leases. The average lease term is four years. For the year ended 30 April 2016,
the effective borrowing rate ranged from 5.26% to 7.03% per annum. The
interest rate is fixed at the contract date. All leases are on a fixed repayment
basis and no arrangement has been entered into for contingent rental payments.
The Group has options to purchase the machinery and motor vehicles for a
nominal amount at the end of the lease term.

The Group’s obligations under finance leases are secured by the lessor’s charge

over the leased assets.

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s finance lease obligations,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting period

approximate the corresponding carrying amounts.

27. BANK LOANS AND OVERDRAFTS

Bank loans and overdrafts are secured by the Group’s properties and corporate

guarantee and are repayable on demand.

All the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts carry interest at 1-month Hong Kong
Interbank Offered Rate (the “HIBOR”) plus 1.5% per annum to Hong Kong
Dollar Prime Rate (the “Prime Rate”) plus 1.25% per annum (2015: 1-month
HIBOR plus 1.5% per annum to Prime Rate plus 1.25% per annum).

The directors consider the fair values of the Group’s bank loans and overdrafts,
determined based on the present value of the estimated future cash flows
discounted using the prevailing market rate at the end of the reporting period,

approximate the carrying amounts.

Details of the pledged assets for the bank loans and overdrafts are set out in
note 33.
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28, WHEMIEE E (AK) 28. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)
S CE—TAE
2016 2015
T TH#T
HK$’000 HKS$’000
RSB T T Deferred tax assets 4,335 7,335
AL A £ Deferred tax liabilities (2,603) (114)
1,732 7,221

T A A AR RO R E AR T Movements in deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised by the Group during

BRERIIE G E (A DA A B ) the current and prior years are as follows:
A S B g
o 328 % 3 v ®&
Accelerated Unrealised
BilE 18 tax gain on M5t
Tax losses depreciation investment Total
THsTT THIT THsIT THsTT
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
ATE—PH4ERLH —H At 1 May 2014 10,401 (2,656) - 7,745
FEA (FBR) 18 47 Credit/(charge) to profit or
(FfF5E8) loss (Note 8) 204 (728) - (524)
A F—HAEMA=1H
K At 30 April 2015 and
—E-HEAA—H 1 May 2015 10,605 (3,384) - 7,221
FEA (F0RR) B i Credit/(charge) to profit or
(Bf5E8) loss (Note 8) (3,000) = (2,489) (5,489)
A —NAE A =+ H At 30 April 2016 7,605 (3,384) (2,489) 1,732

i S A B R R R R 2 AR A B IE A RN A Details of unrecognised deferred tax assets at the end of the reporting period are
T as follows:

e
2016 2015

T#x T

HK$’000 HK$’000

L/ ER & ] Property, plant and equipment 253 (246)
R B B JE e 4R Unrecognised tax losses 12,238 10,332
12,491 10,086

A BB HBLE R > B B AR AR IR Ak For the unrecognised tax losses, the deferred tax assets have not been
TEB > %G B 26 I R HE 52 7R 4E B JE & recognised in the consolidated financial statements due to the unpredictability
o T g 48 T 4 PR HA 4k e o of future profit streams. The tax losses may be carried forward indefinitely.

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited



Ao B R M
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

29. AR 29. SHARE CAPITAL
[if: ZBAE Y S i eSSk “E-HAE
Par value 2016 2016  Par value 2015 2015
T Jid T it h# T
HKS$ No. of shares HK$’000 HKS No. of shares HK$°000
el Authorised
WEA—H At I May 0.20 2,000,000,000 400,000 0.01  10,000,000,000 100,000
B REE.0ETZ Rt Share consolidation of every four shares of
A AR — B (0. 041 70 2 HKS$0.01 each into one consolidated share of
G HKS0.04 each - - (7,500,000,000) =
0.20 2,000,000,000 400,000 0.04 2,500,000,000 100,000
5 R 0,04 T 2 MR Share consolidation of every five shares of
AR — AR (02076 T 2 HK$0.04 each into one consolidated share of
AR HKS$0.20 each - - (2,000,000,000) -
020 2,000,000,000 00000 020 500000000 100,000
B ok Increase in authorised share capital 0.01 - - 020 1,500,000,000 300,000
A (W2 G)) Capital Reduction (Note (i)) 38,000,000,000 - - -
RIWA=1H At 30 April 0.01  40,000,000,000 400,000 0.20 2,000,000,000 400,000
TR RERIA Issued and fully paid
REA—H At | May 0.20 635,887,634 127111 0.01 1,384,312,693 13,843
LA Exercise warrants - - 0.1 200,000,000 2,000
LS G G Issue of shares under Share Option Scheme 0.01 13,840,000 138
0.20 635,887,634 127,177 0.01 1,598,152,693 15,981
B AR (50.01 s 70 2 it Share consolidation of every four shares of
B B B — e (50,04 7T 2 HKS$0.01 each into one consolidated share of
R HKS$0.04 each - - (1,198,614,520) -
- - 0.04 399,538,173 15,981
Rl Subscription of shares - - 0.04 79,900,000 3,196
635,887,634 127171 0.04 479,438,173 19,177
TR (004 70 2 it Share consolidation of every five shares of
A R — B 160207 70 2 HKS$0.04 each into one consolidated share of
AR HK$0.20 each - - (383,550,539) =
A (M 3E ) Capital reduction (Note (1)) - (120,819) = =
BATALIR (ki) Issue of bonus shares (Note (ii)) 4,451,13438 44,512 = =
B e (Wi i) Placing of shares (Note (ii)) 0.01  7,680,000,000 76,800 0.20 540,000,000 108,000
RIUA=FH At 30 April 0.01  12,767,101,072 127,670 0.20 635,887,634 127,177
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29, A (m)

lIGRIOE

BERE i) -

W i) -

A F—RFERA IEH HHGERETR
AT (AT > EHYPRTIIFIE

(a) BB EBURA (DI T B AT A
0.19% TG 25 BR ) - B4 B 2 847 1y
2 T8 (B B 0. 2095 TG HIl s 220,01 #5 9T »
FE D ﬁf JJMV\ 7] B BT AR (T JBeA il
W)

(b) 228 B A W AR o R T (EL0.20 %5 7T
2 B E AR R AT A A BF AR S
A (20) et B 1T {EL0.0 1 I 22 58 e 40y
(FEr ety 1) 5 K&

(c) ] 8 A W) 3ok T 7 AR 2 R B H R A 2 3
IR % 120,818,000 & JC i 51 A A %& 2
— N4 A FIE (BB E7T) P AT R
AN BRI o

A BHBEANABRER -F—HFEANA
WANIEE X Fipa /Nl 7 2 N < o
DR ATEHR —F—RFEAH T ILH AR
% > AN I I R AR 5 400,000,000 95 TC
40,000,000,000 8 45 &% T#i EL0.011 5 70 1 37 I 14
HH1635,887,634/B8T I 7y B #E 4T

ATER—HAERATHHE > EHGIER F
HﬁzigigﬂftﬁﬁTﬁ s A B —RAENH N

(B R 7 AL SRS AT REA 2 50 8% H ) & 50 A2
15&%@%3‘12&/\1%%% AL - HEUE L4
FEA — (1) IO IR 3488 i % - (7) BRC AT e (AT e 3%
111) o ALRBEAT AN R R —F —AAFN
VERWANER ¥ /N ] S N R
ALMEEATIA B —TAEBH = A e - BhEH
% AT A BOE B N %5,087,101,0720% ©

AT —RENA+TZH > AN A (fE AT

B B (B s ) A BR A R (5 )
1’575’7 RN G LR EW - BHALNFAD
A A a@ﬂ%&&%&ﬁn‘u'ﬁm%amw&mﬁ
i 58 05 8 4 1£0.06875 5 IC ([ 5B W18 1) 28 1
1,920,000,000 % 7 i 173 » rEHJ%EfﬁAZLV\%J
S BRAAR A A AT AS D 3R 360,000,000 % I 153 e
2 145,760,000,000 B B (35 1 i k(T 7T BE 4 &
T 1) 5 U B AT AR AR A B o HA B
ARAGF S (R AR W I )

MoE—FAAENANA T > AN F B RKE
A 77 A7 PR v (1 f 85 3 ) 57 57 fic B 1wk -
PRI > AN T B A R 2 B AR AR O (f
Fy AN A) 2 Tl B L) R D iR 7S 4 AR i A LA R
W R (R AR A > B B BT R )
360,000,000 & B4 (L8 B 5 S IE |) o AN H]
B i B AR FR IR T 7 55— Bl B Wk o R - A
AFE B A R E ﬁ}iui%ﬁ’*@fﬁ%h%ﬁ
fﬁ 1’#?%@‘72@3*&1& DN L TR

PRI ER ﬂ%%%s 400,000, ooonHx%‘W%#
Jﬁ B il s 35 IE )

875 P T OE - 9B T A B IO K R R
WHEER - —HE+—H P AAARRZ
Hﬁ%%ﬁlﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁmﬁ SR ST
VB kI A T B S TR A R TR
#£¢F+4H+Dmﬁ BHEEAE > BRI
¥ H N %12,767,101,072/% -

EEZERARAT WLS Holdings Limited

29. SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED)

Note (i):

Note (ii):

Note (iii):

On 15 May 2015, the Board proposed to implement the capital reorganisation
(“Capital Reorganisation”) which involved the following:

(a) the issued share capital of the Company would be reduced through a
cancellation of the paid up capital to the extent of HK$0.19 on each of
the issued shares such that the nominal value of each issued share would
be reduced from HK$0.20 to HK$0.01 (“Capital Reduction™);

(b) immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the authorised
but unissued share of HK$0.20 each be subdivided into twenty (20) new
shares of HK$0.01 each (“New Shares™); and

(c) the credits arising in the books of the Company from the Capital
Reduction of approximately HK$120,818,000 would be credited to the
contributed surplus account of the Company within the meaning of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended).

The shareholders of the Company approved the Capital Reorganisation at the
special general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2015. Immediately
following the Capital Reorganisation which become effective on 19 June 2015,
the authorised share capital of the Company was HK$400,000,000 divided into
40,000,000,000 New Shares of HK$0.01 each, of which 635,887,634 New Shares
were in issue.

On 15 May 2015, the Board also proposed, subject to the Capital Reorganisation
becoming effective, a bonus issue (“Bonus Issue”) of New Shares on the basis of
seven (7) bonus shares for every one (1) New Share held by the shareholders of
the Company whose names appear on the register of members of the Company
on 26 June 2015, being the record date for the purpose of determination of
entitlement to the Bonus Issue. The shareholders of the Company approved the
Bonus Issue at the special general meeting of the Company held on 18 June 2015.
The Bonus Issue was completed on 3 July 2015, immediately after which the
number of New Shares in issue increased to 5,087,101,072.

On 12 August 2015, the Company (as issuer) and Avant Capital Management
(HK) Limited (“Avant Capital”) (as subscriber) entered into the subscription
agreement pursuant to which the Company has conditionally agreed to allot and
issue, and Avant Capital has conditionally agreed to subscribe for, 1,920,000,000
new shares at the subscription price of HK$0.06875 per share (“Subscription
Price”), subject to the Company having entered into agreement(s) relating to
the issue of not less than 360,000,000 and not more than 5,760,000,000 shares
by the Company (“Possible Fund Raising Exercise”) and the completion of
such Possible Fund Raising Exercise, which conditions are not capable of being
waived (“New AC Subscription”).

On 17 August 2015, the Company and Black Marble Securities Limited
(“Placing Agent”) entered into the placing agreement pursuant to which the
Company has conditionally appointed the Placing Agent to procure, as placing
agent of the Company, not less than six placees to subscribe, failing which, the
Placing Agent itself will subscribe, for 360,000,000 shares at the Subscription
Price (“Underwritten Placing”). The Company and the Placing Agent also
entered into another placing agreement pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally appointed the Placing Agent to procure, on a best effort basis,
as placing agent of the Company, not less than six placees to subscribe for
a maximum of 5,400,000,000 shares at the Subscription Price (“Best Effort
Placing”).

The Underwritten Placing, the Best Effort Placing and the New AC Subscription
had been approved by the shareholders at the special general meeting of the
Company on 18 November 2015. The Underwritten Placing, the Best Effort
Placing and the New AC Subscription were completed on 10 December
2015, immediately after which the number of shares in issue increased to
12,767,101,072.
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30. B — IS A W

i #iDragon Oriental %51 % B #

B ZF—N4HE=H=+1—H > Talent Gain
International Limited * 482y ] [H] 4% 2 % W& 2

A 8 H A Dragon Oriental (i & Aij /4 48 42 ]
2GS T 1951% 2 FBHE - BLa AU 2
17,340,000%5 7T ©

Dragon Oriental & i B H & K& & 10 5HE

30. DISPOSAL OF A SUBSIDIARY

Disposal of 51% equity interest in Dragon Oriental

On 31 March 2016, Talent Gain International Limited, an indirectly wholly-
owned subsidiary of the Company disposed of 51% of its entire equity interest

in Dragon Oriental, a wholly owned subsidiary of the Group for a cash

consideration of HK$17,340,000.

Details of assets and liabilities of Dragon Oriental at date of disposal were as

e follows:
R
HK$’000
85 1 Net assets disposed of:
B (HfE13) Investment property (Note 13) 34,000
SRATHS R Bl Bank balance and cash 336
A AT BRI Other payables (182)
JREAST B HA B T Current tax payable (71)
HE Total net assets 34,083
W IR AR Less: Non-controlling interests (16,945)
17,138
RSl il A L& Gain on disposal of a subsidiary:
A AE Consideration received 17,340
OB T Net assets disposed of (34,083)
I 1 I 2 Non-controlling interests 16,945
202
8 1 B B Net cash inflow arising on disposal:
HEeRE Cash consideration 17,340
T IR ERAT A R S B Less: bank balances and cash disposal of (336)
17,004

WEFRENA =+ HIEEEZRN - ZHE
W o > ) 36 A S T 1) 5 A B 4 v A I A K

=
R o

The subsidiary disposed of during the year ended 30 April 2016 did not

contribute significantly to the results and cash flows of the Group during the

year prior to the disposal.
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31. AR w BRI R 31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY

28 2 1] e Ok 2 BE IR Bl e & R Information about the statement of financial position of the
T Company at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

RN R —HAF
2016 2015
Tt Tt
HK$°000 HK$’000
IR By A Non-current assets
Y2 ~ Bk kAt Property, plant and equipment 249 332
B A F 2 A Investments in subsidiaries 7 7
256 339
il B2 g3 Current assets
AR ST I Jo5 2 ) Amounts due from subsidiaries 681,424 310,316
FEATERIE ~ $e4e M HAh R B B Prepayments, deposits and other current assets 245 190
JESE [a] B 1A 5 T Current tax recoverable - 8
SRATHS R S Bl 4 Bank balances and cash 76,895 1
758,564 310,515
B £ Current liabilities
JEAST B g 2 ) kTR Amounts due to subsidiaries 39,911 2,394
HC Al JEE A R T Other payables 432 581
40,343 2,975
it B B A A Net current assets 718,221 307,540
A R Total net assets 718,477 307,879
W% AS T it i Capital and reserves
&S Share capital 127,671 127,177
it He Reserves 590,806 180,702
HE 45 AR Total equity 718,477 307,879
531953 [oyc % i
SO YU SHING YUEN CHUN FAI
o EF
Director Director
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31. RA BRI E @)

31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

AN w2 BEENT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
R R
L E ki
R I Equity
Bt i 2 BMEG  WRHEGE RGf  componentof  HzHEH
Share  Contributed Share option Warrant  convertible Accumulated M
premium surplus reserve reserve bonds losses Total
T T T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
RZZ—MWERLA—H  At1May2014 143,393 - 1,644 200 - (34,127) 111,110
ZEEHERA2EER  Loss and total comprehensive
loss for the year - - - - - 9,016) (9,016)
R M 1 Grant of share options - - 1,723 = = - 1723
Gl o Exercise of warrants 13,000 = = = = = 13,000
171 8 e Exercise of share options 941 - = = = = 941
R Subscription of shares 10,946 = = = = = 10,946
RN 02 Expenses on subscription
of shares (125) - - - - - (125)
BT R Issue of convertible bonds = = = = 1,615 = 1,615
e ERNE 0k Transfer to contributed surplus (157,334) 157,334 - - - - -
e 3 L & Placing of shares 54,000 - - - - - 54,000
e & 2 Expenses on placing of shares (2,140) = = = = = (2,140)
AF TR R TR RE R 3% Share options lapsed during
the year - - (1,003) - - 1,003 -
B AR ES M Expenses on redemption of
convertible bonds - - - - (1) - (1)
Tt u R S I Fei &S Equity component of
il x| convertible bonds written
back on redemption - - - - (1,351) - (1,351)
s ZatE R Transfer to accumulated losses
upon:
— TR — Exercise of warrants = - - (200) - 200 _
— W TR — Redemption of
convertible bonds - - - - (263) 263 -
MEE—FHEMA=TH At30 April 2015 62,681 157,334 2,364 = = (41,677) 180,702
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31. AL\ BRI 2 (1) 31. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)
AN w2 BEENT - A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows:
W
AR 2
B I HE Equity
Bt i TABN RN # i component of itk
Share  Contributed ~Share option Warrant  convertible Accumulated ik
premium surplus reserve reserve bonds losses Total

T T T T T T T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

REE—HERA—H  At1May 2015 62,681 157,334 2,364 = = (41,677) 180,702

2FERLA2TEE  Loss and total comprehensive

loss for the year - - - - - (110,716) (110,716)
et i B Placing of shares 451,200 - - = = = 451,200
FRcAy i & % Expenses on placing of shares (6,451) - - - - - (6,451)
BAHI Capital reduction - 120,819 - - - - 120,819
A Expenses on capital reduction - (210) - - - - (210)
SHEEERMZGEE  Amount transferred to set off

against accumulated losses - (42,318) - - - 42,318 -
BITHIR Issue of bonus shares = (44,512) = = = = (44,512)
BITARER Expenses on issue of bonus

shares - (26) - - - - (26)
RZZ—AENA=+H At 30 April 2016 507,430 191,087 2,364 - - (110,075) 590,806

ANFR T HEREMA =+ B At kT The Company’s reserves available for distribution to shareholders as at 30
JB A 2 Ak i 5 397,355,000 70 (= & — FLAE - April 2016 were HK$397,355,000 (2015: HK$21,004,000).
21,004,000#57T) ©
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32. BB REGHE

ANFRFE A =+ R H R
IR R AN T —F——F A=+ H
A7 2 B SR AR K 8 580N ] IR R T T R R
Kk o PLERRCHERTBIAC LR > AR RIABAEE
LA A P P - A R Rl et ) 2 it
VLRI 452t 2 J TR A KL 4%k AT U R R %%
F e

RFEARFR FE——FNA =+ HERANZ
JcHE R & ([RH8 ) 2k > ARFERE ([E
FE ) T HER IR A R BT A B 2
A 2 R H (R AR 24 A SCHAT o] & 2 ]
BUAT ~ FRENAT BB S IR AT 3 AR 4 F AT Ao
BB 2 R 2 AT AR R ) ) 4 B RO o DA AR
AT > FEARASEESR - 5 ERIER
TR o AR R B B A A AT AT H At S B R =
H H T i¥ RAT S T A R R A T T T A
BEAT AR RBL > TR 2 BRAFIR T T - A5
A A2y A E 34T A 30% o w2 AR
HE-Z -/ \A-thARLE—EEH -

PRAT 7+ A8 S0 PR ol AR A2 N 452 1 R
P52t 2 B P MR (L4 O AT (o % 1 AR A o I PR )
M 28 AT B T84T 2 2 BB > A5
BANTF CBEITRARBEL1% > BRIFE (a) 0 ik
SROAT B LR 5 K (b) AR AL T AR R A AN B T
2 b PR B HE o B A BT i A HE RS A SR
AME LT -

REMEE Y T o AR ()4
etz B St B TR >
HE AR O 2 F TR 2 B R
e AR s ) A T B SEAR Z M T 5 () g
B M IR T H o S R T
A TRAT RN o B P Ty A A
2 H R TR 36 B AR 3E 4 R AE SR PR A
DN F B AR AR 2 P E TR 5 B () e T
H s =FUERmEERHE -

HRPE B 2 WK SR T A 2 i 2 R (o
RN 2 30 ] 1 B Ry 2 S sl A A7 1 MEAR 4
REH AR A AT R R 2 S0 R A B R
RO I R HE 2 HORE R+ 4F o AR PRS2 R
X o N7 R 7 A ZR R A RS B A SV 1 O AT AT A
W It 2 — R HLE

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The share option scheme adopted by the Company on 25 November 2001 was
terminated by a written resolution passed by the shareholders of the Company
at the annual general meeting of the Company held on 30 August 2011. Upon
termination of this share option scheme, no further share options under this
scheme could be granted, but the provisions of this share option scheme will
remain in full force and effect to the extent necessary to give effect to the
exercise of those share options granted prior to its termination.

Under the terms of the Share Option Scheme adopted by the Company on 30
August 2011 (the “Option Scheme”), for the primary purpose of providing
incentive to directors, eligible employees and consultants, the board of
directors of the Company (the “Board”) may, at its absolute discretion, offer
full-time employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries, including
executive, non-executive and independent non-executive directors of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries or any consultants or advisors of any
member of the Group, to take up options to subscribe for shares of the
Company. The maximum aggregate number of shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised under
the Option Scheme and any other share option schemes of the Company must
not, subject to the conditions set out in the Option Scheme, exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time. The life of the Share
Option Scheme was effective until 29 August 2021.

The maximum number of shares issued and to be issued on the exercise of
options granted and to be granted (including both exercised and outstanding
options) to a grantee in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the total
issued share capital of the Company in issue, unless (a) a shareholder circular
is dispatched to the shareholders; and (b) the shareholders approve the grant of
the options in excess of the limit referred to herein. A nominal consideration of
HKS$1 is payable on acceptance of each grant.

The subscription price was determined by the Board, but may not be less than
the highest of (a) the closing price of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme apply, on the
date of the Board proposing such grant; (b) the average of the closing prices
of the Company’s shares on the GEM as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date of
offer of the options or, where certain conditions set out in the Option Scheme
apply, the average of the closing prices of the Company’s shares on the GEM as
stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of the Board proposing such grant; and (c) the
nominal value of the shares.

An option may be exercised in whole or in part in accordance with the terms
of the Option Scheme at any time during a period to be notified by the Board
to each grantee that the period within which the option may be exercised shall
not be more than 10 years from the date on which the offer of the grant of the
options is made in accordance with the terms of the Option Scheme. There is no
general requirement on the minimum period for which an option must be held
before an option can be exercised under the terms of the Option Scheme.
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32. I RE T B ) 32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

1R B (4533 Fr Ak o 7l e F A > 5 ) 2 4 Details of movements in the Company’s share options held by employees
. (including directors) are as follows:

o
/e S T
KRBT LAZRAR REFNE
TR FAfHEE  HA—H LAk FERFTHE N RAL AREAT  BEAEE NA=Z+H
(ERMAREEN) Original AT Granted  Exercised Lapsed Bonus Issue Revised AT
ZE N Bl A Exercisable period Exercise Outstanding during during during  effective on Exercise Outstanding
2016 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price  at 1.5.2015 the year the year the year 3.7.2015 price at 30.4.2016
BT T
HKS$ HKS$
EEs “F-FE CR-FUE 2.56 450,000 - - - 3,150,000 032 3,600,000
Directors +—H/AH TZHAAHZ
8 November 2010 CER—NE
+=AtH
8 December 2010 to
7 December 2016
TR i =% — Y4 1.56 1,388,000 - - - 9,716,000 0.195 11,104,000
HA+MH HHAZT/AHZE
14 May 2014 ZENE
HAZ+tH
28 May 2014 to
27 May 2016
e S lif: S B F 4 1.62 150,000 - - - 1,050,000 0.2025 1,200,000
HHZ+H ANHMHZE
20 May 2014 ZE N
ANHZH
4 June 2014 to
3 June 2016
1,988,000 - - - 13,916,000 15,904,000
EE TR TR —RAE 2.56 340,000 - - - 2,380,000 0.32 2,720,000
Employees +—HN\H TZHANHRZE
8 November 2010 SR
+ZAtH
8 December 2010 to
7 December 2016
CR— Y4 B F 4 1.62 150,000 - - - 1,050,000 0.2025 1,200,000
HHZ+H AHMHZE
20 May 2014 ZENE
ANH=H
4 June 2014 to
3 June 2016
490,000 - - - 3,430,000 3,920,000
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32. FEBCHERHE () 32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)
R
/2 e LHZRAR REF—N
T FEAfTHE  HH—H AR £ FERATHE AR R ABES Bl MA=TH
(ERWABTEALERN) Original WM AT Granted  Exercised Lapsed Bonus Issue Revised AT
RN BB Exercisable period Exercise Outstanding during during during effective on Exercise Outstanding
2016 Date granted (both dates inclusive) price  at 1.5.2015 the year the year the year 3.7.2015 price at 30.4.2016
HK$ HKS$
#HhY U e g U1 25 W 1.56 427,000 - - - 2,989,000 0.195 3,416,000
L INw HA+IMH Z+AHE
Directors’ 14 May 2014 ZE—NERH
Associates ~“ttH
28 May 2014 to
27 May 2016
427,000 - - - 2,989,000 3,416,000
Ji ) U HoE—mERA 1.56 1,384,000 - - - 9,688,000 0.195 11,072,000
Consultant HH+MEA il NG
14 May 2014 ZE-NERHA
Zt+th
28 May 2014 to
27 May 2016
1,384,000 - - - 9,688,000 11,072,000
Ml 4,289,000 - - - 30,023,000 34,312,000
Total
RS AR AT (I IR 2
Number of share options exercisable at the end of the 4,289,000
reporting period
INREFS 176 1.7484 - - - 1.7484

Weighted Average Exercise Price
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32. B RE ST B )

AF 7o L% 1 i MR 1] 5 1T 422 2 1) RS 119 2P
2% OB AT EFHE o TR B
RER fl et AT EARSE [ —IHA G -
A SR AT

32. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The fair values of services received in return for share options granted is
measured by reference to the fair value of share options granted. The estimate
of the fair value of the share options granted is measured based on the Binomial
model. The inputs into the model were as follows:

%2 ATk

e - i It M-
CEBAE CRB ZRF Z%-Sh 0 ZBRAY SRSk ZR-SE 0 ZR0E ZBBRAL C%-nE SRRk R0k
JRRHEA-EH WBHB-RH WHRHEC-EE MREA-EH Option2013B WRMEC-EN WEED-BR WHEA-EF Option20158 WRHEC-HM WRED-HR WREL-EF
Option 2009A Option 2011B  Option 2011C Option 2013A - Director Option 2013C Option 2013D Option 20154 - Directors Option 2015C Option 2015D  Option 2015E
-Director ~ -Employee - Employee - Directors associate - Consultant - Employee - Directors’ associate - Consultant - Employee - Directors
Rt Date of grant “ERNE CZ-FE CZ-ZE T “FZ-TF “F-"fF “Z-TF CZ-E CFZ-PE CFZ-mE CE-UE CZ-[E
EAZH F=AAR FAAR A=ARE t-ARR F-AAR F-ARE EATNA RATEA EATEE EATNME EACHH
2May 2008 8 November ~ 8 November ~ 9 November 9 November 9 November 9 November 14 May 2014 14 May 2014 14 May 2014 14 May 2014 20 May 2014

2010 2010 2012 2012 2012 2012

AV Fair value 0.061617C 00605 005828  0.01078E  0.0107#5C  00108%X  0.0101L  0.020487%  0.0204%C 002028 001948 0.02125E
HK$0.0616  HKS0.0605 ~ HKS0.0582  HK$0.0107 ~ HK$0.0107 ~ HK$0.0108 ~ HK$0.0101 ~ HKS0.0204 ~ HKS0.0204 ~ HKS$0.0212  HKS0.0194  HK$0.0212
RS Optionlife 6.5 6.14F 6.1 pL3 2F 2F vF 2046 2044 2046 2046 204
(43t (in years) 6.5 years 6.1 years 6.1 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 2 years 2.04 years 2.04 years 2.04 years 2.04 years 2.04 years
RHARE Grant date share price 0217878 0.1287c 0.2%7C 006l 0061 0.06LBT 0061 0.078%T 0078 0078 0.078BT .08
HKS$0.217 HKS0.12 HK$0.12  HKS$0.061 HK$0.061 HK$0.061 HK$0.061  HKS0.078  HKS0.078  HK$0.078  HK$0.078  HKS0.081
frfitE Exercise price 0207 0128 0128k 0061 0061 0061 00l 0078 0078 0078 0078 0.081XC
HKS0.217  HKS0.128  HKS$0.128  HKS$0.061 HK$0.061 HKS0.061  HKS0.000  HK$0.078  HK$0.078  HKS$0.078  HKS$0.078  HKS0.081
LN Expected volatility 1% 82% 82% 66% 66% 66% 66% 1% 1% 1% 1% 1%
ke Dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0%
AERE B RA S Annual risk free interest 2467% 1.276% 1.276% 0.188% 0.188% 0.188% 0.188% 0.328% 0.328% 0.328% 0328% 0.367%
E Btk Staff turnover rate 1.8% 11.5% 11.5% 33% 33% 0% 21.6% 10.7% 10.7% 0% 26.8% 10.7%

R DA £y oy BB 1 22 PRk > R =%
—NERZE-TENA =+ M B E 2
T B0 TR AT B S PSR 2 A B30 SO T
M) o

2 [ A A TR R A AR A R Y B IR T R
B % (=& —FHAF ¢ 1,723,000%70) ©

R E—NENA =+ H o R E R
FREAEE v B A7 (o B P A 0 T 1 e 40 B L A A
I FERE H C AT IR 20.27% (= F— 4
0.67%) °

R R OR AR N AR PR R T A
34,312,000 {73 1 A 47 8 1) B B RE o 2 A 28 A
T IRF 1 AR R A > 7% BIOAT o 1o SRR AT 1 1 B A
HE 16 3 S48 A1 8547 34,312,000 B AS 28 ) 3% 28 i
N BHANE AR 343, 1209 IC > DA K 7E A A7 vk A
7,155,720 96 CRFEFEEATBI L) ©

HRIEA S F Y B T B B = I B E > R
BB —HFELH TR HBEBITRGZ
10% (R1508,710,107 B4y > AH & A A< 2 & ik
AAFESR F I E AT A 3.98%) ©

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

In accordance with the terms of share-based arrangement, options issued prior
to or during the financial years ended 30 April 2016 and 2015 are fully vested
before the date of exercisable period.

During the year, the Group did not recognise expenses (2015: HK$1,723,000)
in relation to share options granted by the Company.

At 30 April 2016, the number of shares in respect of which options had been
granted and remained outstanding under the Option Scheme was 0.27% (2015:
0.67%) of the shares of the Company in issue at that date.

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had 34,312,000 share options
outstanding under the two option schemes of the Company. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present capital structure of
the Company, result in the issue of 34,312,000 additional ordinary shares of the
Company and additional share capital of HK$343,120 and share premium of
HK$7,155,720 (before issue expense).

The maximum number of shares in respect of the Option Schemes of the
Company must not exceed 10% of the shares in issue as at 16 September 2015
(i.e. 508,710,107 shares, being 3.98% of the issued shares of the Company as at
the date of this annual report).
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33. ik

RS IR > A E AR NI E A A AL
PR — R SRAT R 2 A R

33. PLEDGE OF ASSETS

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has pledged the following assets

as securities against general banking facilities granted to the Group:

RN e Sl S

2016 2015

Tt Tt

HK$’000 HK$°000

BEYE Investment properties 40,220 40,200
FHE 4 3 fe e Leasehold land and buildings 7,129 7,358
JREMS IR R Trade receivables 17.065 17,134
JRE A £ 8 45 K I Retention monies receivables 1,103 2,678

34. ARAEHE

/S ) e SVANC I S S
7 AT T B R A A MR EAR

35, AiE
() BEAKYE

A S T R 0 ARSI I A ] AR (=%
— A ) o

(ii) RE A R R ZPE
¥ (Y3 PN

TR IR > AS SR AR R AS AT $h0H 58 FHL AT I
T 50 S D 30 0 A 2 A AR e G L B AR R 3

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 30 April 2016 and 2015, the Group did not have any material contingent

liabilities or guarantees.
35. COMMITMENTS
(i) Capital commitment

The Group did not have any capital commitment at the end of the reporting
period (2015: Nil).

(ii) Operating lease commitments and arrangements
The Group as lessee

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had commitments for future

minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases which fall due

T 8 as follows:
SBoAE FnA
2016 2015
T#x THTT
HK$’000 HK$°000
—F R Within one year 702 1,934

mEHAFEE S TREZHAE - AALFEN
—EE AT o AR A R MRS o

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable for certain of its warehouse
quarters. Leases are negotiated for terms of one year to two years and rentals

are fixed during the lease terms.
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35. A& )
(i) RBEMAREE S ZPE @)
AR A 2 AL

RS IOR > ACHE B SRR 5 T 51 R A SR AR A
e O GIAE O

35. COMMITMENTS (CONTINUED)
(ii) Operating lease commitments and arrangements (Continued)
The Group as lessor

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had contracted with tenants for the
following future minimum lease payments:

RN A

2016 2015

Tt THsTT

HK$°000 HK$’000

—4EN Within one year 441 1,204
B AERE A (HEE R W) In the second and fifth years inclusive - 624
441 1,828

36. 25 3 WAL B R 2 ) R R

BE T —HFMNA=1HIE

Dragon Oriental Investment Limited{& &5 4 3£ +F
F oo H R TGRS WL L W E R
HA - UEEER —F—WENLH=THAEE
B SOAEAE o VRO B 2 iU i
P A 22 5 i B MG i — {1 A 7 i L 5 - 3t o

[=15]

M BB o

36. ACQUISITION OF ASSETS THROUGH
ACQUISITION OF A SUBSIDIARY

For the year ended 30 April 2015

Dragon Oriental Investment Limited is engaged in property holding and its
principal asset is a residential unit in a building constructed on a leasehold land
in Hong Kong. The consideration was determined based on the fair value of
such residential unit as of 30 September 2014. The acquisition was treated as an
acquisition of assets as the transaction involved the acquisition of a residential
unit in a building constructed on a leasehold land in Hong Kong only.

Dragon Oriental

Investment
Limited
THTT
HK$°000
W H e e B B W ¢ Asset acquiried and liabilities recognised at the
date of acquisition are as follows:
HEYE Investment property 42,659
SRATAS R S Bl Bank balances and cash 153
JREASS B B I Current tax payable (76)
JRE A B 3 S EL At B A 3 T Trade and other payables (188)
BEF(E Net assets 42,548
REELLTFH 5 R EAT - Consideration satisfied by:
C A B 4 (045 B i B A PR B4 2 ) Cash paid (including acquisition-related direct costs) 21,700
W 2 B & i R Net cash outflow arising on acquisition:
Wi 2 B4 AR A Consideration paid in cash (21,700)
FIT sl 2 SRAT 45 B M B4 Bank balances and cash acquired 153
(21,547)

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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37. Wl A W 37. ACQUISITION OF AN ASSOCIATE
B E—NE+—HTILH > AEEBEH#E On 19 November 2014, the Group, through Estate Sun Global Limited
Estate Sun Global Limited (42 7] [ 4% 4 & ¥t (“Estate Sun”) an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company acquired

J& A ) W I BRBR Bk 2 20% EHE - BlAAUE 20% of the equity interests in the AP Assets at a total cash consideration
£516,000,000%5 JC ° 72 51 B BR 4= FAE 5 Hh of HK$16,000,000. AP Assets is principally engaged in real estate agency

RBLZEFS U o 12 BRERBR O & —PU4E | — business. Further details of the acquisition are set out in the Company’s
H+JLH 52 o A BRSO IZ BEER BR 2 6 #R announcement dated 19 November 2014. The acquisition was completed on
BAFR -FE—NE+—H T ILHBRZAE 19 November 2014, and AP Assets became an indirect owned associate of the
A o Company.
FIT Ul 2 B R AR S R FEIE AR Details of the net assets acquired and goodwill are as follows:
RN
2015
THIT
HK$°000

1 f £ A8 Purchase consideration

— OB & — cash paid 16,000
i Wi B 2 R VR AR N TE Fair value of net assets acquired (5,073)
7%z SR BRER AR GR B IRE 2 /57 Fair value of call option of 7% shares of AP Assets (6)
[k Goodwill 10,921
TSI 1 P i e BT RfERR B RN T The recognised amounts of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed

as at the date of acquisition are as follows:

e S T

2015

Tt

HK$°000

Y2~ MR Kkt Property, plant and equipments 48
JHE A R R B At R Wi k0 Trade and other receivables 6,107
SRAT &G 8k M Bl 4 Bank balances and cash 28,882
JREAST B 3K e S Al JE A} 3 T Trade and other payables (9,673)
JUT S 2 AR Net assets acquired 25,364

ZZE—NEFH  Annual Report 2016

147



148

B 05 W B ik

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

38. B ok A Gt S

HOoFFERES A —H# > REFCHALN
) S HA S B S F T A A e B T2 A
&Rt - mEEFTE A BB ERATHEZ E
B E o WIBREAEE > ALK HE
B MR 5 A T T 4 T R AR B i
AZS5%E TS AERMER > i F— A
FENH— B DU H 1,500 0 5 R (&
—U4EN H— H AT A4S H 1,250 70) » #sh2
MR & B MR -

A 2 T 47 B M 4t R AT R 2 B AR 491,150,000 35
Je( T FE—TAE  #)1,176,000% 70) +8 A 4E [ 1)
AR EIEME 2 K o

SR S ) e A T ) A A R
W iR TR R o fE R A BT
BRI > A5 [0 A 3= 3k 01 4 i i R 0B B
iAo R EANE R CE—RAENH = A
Ho 37 48 352 e A3t R PR e A 42 i SR 2
R REMHHEK -

39. HHEANLERS
(i) BEALRS
AR > A% S BB A 3T R A5

38. RETIREMENT BENEFITS SCHEME

With effect from 1 December 2000, the Group has arranged for all qualifying
employees of the Company and its Hong Kong subsidiaries to join the
MPF Scheme. The MPF Scheme is a defined contribution scheme managed
by independent trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, both the Group and
the employees make monthly contributions to the MPF Scheme at 5% of
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation, subject to a cap of HK$1,500 per month effect from 1 June 2014
(before 1 June 2014: HK$1,250 per month) and thereafter contributions are
voluntary.

The total cost charged to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income
of approximately HK$1,150,000 (2015: approximately HK$1,176,000)
represents contributions payable to the MPF Scheme by the Group.

The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF Scheme. No forfeited
contribution is available to reduce the contribution payable in the future years
as at 30 April 2016 and 2015.

39. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(i) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group entered into the following transactions with related
parties:

SBNE SFHE
2016 2015

T#x T

HK$°000 HKS$’000

A H — S 7 BRS B IRFE LA Fitting out service income from an associate 788 -
Wl IE BT IE > He AR Acquisition of unlisted investment, at cost 2,000 -

AR AR [ B 2N - 2 S BRI S R A AR
WR KA FE o

(i) FEBFHAEME

JRAE IR > AT HE T R At T L B 2 T
EWE

Details of the balances with the Group’s related parties are set out in the
consolidated statement of financial position and respective notes.

(ii) Compensation of key management personnel

The remuneration of executive directors and other members of key
management during the year was as follows:

“FAN —E-AF

2016 2015

T# 70 T#T

HK$°000 HK$°000

LA Short-term benefits 9,518 4,863
B RAR A Post-employment benefits 204 106
JBeAs 5 55 2 DA A9y S A5 2 3 Equity-settled share-based payments - 962
9,722 5,931

BUTHE S (I8 LB TN ) Z W8 5 i 35
2= 5 ol i A B A IR\ SR B R T 3
BAREE

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

The remuneration of executive directors, who are also members of key
management, is determined by the Remuneration Committee or senior
management having regard to the performance of individuals and market
trends.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Al T H 2 JE ) Categories of financial instruments
e SN 2 TR —HAE
2016 2015
Tkt THsTT
HK$’000 HK$°000
4 il Financial assets
W[t R Available-for-sale investment
s i eI Equity securities listed in Hong Kong 35,040 =
JE B AR Unlisted investment fund at cost 8,321 =
JEETHHE > A Unlisted investment, at cost 2,000 =
I 4H 5 ¥ O o R AR SIE FVTPL
HoAth 4 il Other financial assets - 1,641
ZAE 45 LA TEESIR )4 A& E  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 59,902 -
B2k B WUk JE Loans and receivables
TEATERIE ~ 4% 4 M HAb R B & = Prepayments, deposits and other current assets 1,725 2,473
JEE i B Trade receivables 50,232 49,099
JE AT A% ] 4 2K TE Retention monies receivables 2,396 5,276
SRAT & R M B 4 Bank balances and cash 230,005 129,009
B A B R Loan and interest receivables 374,081 -
763,702 187,498
4 il £ 15 Financial liabilities
e B 5 PR AR At amortised cost
JRE A B 3 S JEL At B A 3 T Trade and other payables 11,973 19,468
JREASH R ] 4 3 Retention monies payables 1,186 2,361
il L A0 7R A Obligations under financial leases 833 527
RITER Bank loans 34,424 35,603
Ho A B — Other loans-secured 20,000 =
AT X Bank overdrafts 8,361 12,062
76,777 70,021

AL EHE /TR ERTI - 255 SRl
THRFEE A2 LB o T SCH B A Sl
TRA B 2 g B o [ A1 % 45 L B 2 BOK
L A L A LB > DAREAR B A AT
RO BRIBURLE 2 A I -

The Group’s major financial instruments are listed in above table. Details of
these financial instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments and the policies on how to mitigate
these risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors these
exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented on a timely and

effective manner.
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40. 455 B A P ()
1 )R B

305 A . — AR H =+ H KRB AT %
ZRME > RIS A [ A R O R A A T T 2
HAZ 2 e KA B R 4 B R S5 A B IR DL 2R )
B2 a2 MR o i A< 45 [ I i TH 2 iR
MELEFREGRBMEZEF » MALEKZE
2 A5 BRI o AR HIR - AR 1 R A A
W R & B I 4 fe K& 5 40 il 728 AR 4 s 4
JEBE KT F528% (. —FAF 0 26%) KX52% (—
F—HAF 133%) o IR AR FH R AL
B 1) d K A 5 % 5 B T 44 e K BAHG %5 5 43 ill
AR E R A11% (ZF—RAF - &)
F16% (% —FHAF ) - Ly KRR R
5 B0 JE\ M > A SR S MR 2 5T A B 2 (G
FRAH ~ 15 S0t S HAh B e i it 2 BOR > DA
R R TSR it A 0 7 A R A 2 R I o W Ab
AR R A A B Al T I i AR K
Z AT [ A RE > DARRE AR AT SRS W] i e AR A
EHRE R - ST E > R S AL
2 A5 BB B K R AR o

AT S I B BB S 2 R BB AR A
MR > JRUER Z% 3 T 2 SR AT B A5 B m] 5 2 & Al
1 o

B 4 9 B ) R JE B
AR T S TR ) ) S 2 RAT A R R SRAT A K
T S5t B T 7R 52 ) 0 R B 2 B 4 0 ) 3 Ja B

7 ] Sf7 B o) M) S P BORE o AR 2 [ L
B R R 2 R AR E R o

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Credit risk

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in the event of the counterparts’
failure to perform their obligations as at 30 April 2016 in relation to each class
of recognised financial assets is the carrying amounts of those assets as stated
in the consolidated statement of financial position. The Group is exposed to
concentration of credit risk as the carrying amounts of the receivables are
arising from a limited number of customers. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group has a certain level of concentration of credit risk as 28% (2015: 26%)
and 52% (2015: 33%) of the total trade receivables, arising from the Group’s
largest customer and the two largest customers, respectively. At the end of the
reporting period, the Group has a certain level of concentration of credit risk as
11% (2015: Nil) and 16% (2015: Nil) of the total loan and interest receivables,
arising from the Group’s largest customer and the two largest customers,
respectively. In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has policies in place for determination of credit limits, credit approvals
and other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken to
recover overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amount
of each individual trade debt at the end of each reporting period to ensure that
adequate impairment losses are made for irrecoverable amounts. In this regard,

management considers that the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The credit risk on bank deposits and unlisted investment funds is limited

because the counterparties are banks and creditworthy financial institutions.

Cash flow interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate risk through the changes in
interest rates related mainly to the Group’s variable-rates bank loans and bank
deposits and balances. The Group does not have an interest rate hedging policy.
The management of the Group would monitor and manage its exposure to

fluctuation in interest rates.
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40. 455 JE B 4 PR ()
) 2 Rk B 4y B

VAR B BBURR B 23 A 75 A1 s 1) 3 538 18l 8 3 R 45 0
AREEAE N T - S O R U 5% F I T 3 3R
SR By N g PN (3
] 25 Rl By #1908 At e (8 P B R BT W 1%
Ty i FHL I 2 M) e ] e S B AR ) 2 BT A o

A5 R 2 B R 5 1% 0T AT E A A A R R
B AEBEBE _F - ANENA =+ H ILEE
) s 4519 184 = ek 4D £9357,000 0T (—F — T
£ 1 £9337,0008 50) o BLTT B B A4 E T
S ERATAE B R R R o

2% G2 T £ 1) 25 fg R B BRL % 4 A L ST e K o
5 o

i B ¥ < A b

U B8 < T A AR P A SETE B A BB R TR
HBA 2 AR B 4R N e 2 Jm By - W) & &
R i 8 PR 08 35 7 228 20T HL 0 P ( 2 A
B <l T EE AR o

FAE 2 ) R B PR AR R B o R
A 0 K A AR S AT A 4 [ 9
T L RATEEERAKF »

7% 42 B DA TR 1B 4 U o0 A A HE O B A 4
Wi o PR TEM 2 B4 T oK T B s AR SR B 2 B
& AR REM AT T A B A E R B & & T
K oo BBk > ERATRNE O A UMEARRE 25
RF—INEMA =1 H o AREE A Z 81T
Bl 44 4H 49 85,500,000 7 7 ( & — HA4F ¢ 4
60,500,000 75 ) » H 1 %762,785,000 % 7T ( —
F—HAE © £947,665,000% TC ) 1A IR HE B
Jiﬁ o

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined assuming that a change
in interest rates had occurred at the end of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rates for financial instruments in existence
at that date. A 1% increase or decrease is used when reporting interest rate
risk internally to key management personnel and represents management’s

assessment of the reasonably possible change in interest rates.

If interest rates had been 1% higher/lower and all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s loss for the year ended 30 April 2016 would have
increased/decreased by approximately HK$357,000 (2015: approximately
HK$337,000). This is mainly attributable to the Group’s exposure to interest

rates on its variable rate bank loans.

The Group’s sensitivity to interest rates has not changed significantly from the

prior year.
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that a group entity will encounter difficulty in raising
funds to meet commitments associated with financial instruments. Liquidity
risk may result from an inability to sell a financial asset quickly at close to its

fair value.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash. The
Group monitors and maintains a level of bank balances deemed adequate to

finance the Group’s operations.

The Group employs projected cash flow analysis to manage liquidity risk
by forecasting the amount of cash required and monitoring the working
capital of the Group to ensure that all liabilities due and known funding
requirements could be met. In addition, banking facilities have been put
in place for contingency purposes. As at 30 April 2016, the Group’s total
available banking facilities were approximately HK$85,500,000 (2015:
approximately HK$60,500,000), of which approximately HK$62,785,000
(2015: approximately HK$47,665,000) were utilised at the end of the reporting

period.
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40. 455 JE B A PR () 40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
it B 4 B () Liquidity risk (Continued)

RRE IR > O FT AR ITB AR - A& The maturity profile of the Group’s and Company’s financial liabilities as at the

B R AR ) 4 Rl B R B DL R end of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted payment, is
as follows:
"R
2016
TBEE
Ik AH
Weighted AT
average e ZEAR ZWAE-% —EELE BELE Total I i £
effective On Less than 3 months to 1to5 Over 5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rates demand 3 months 1 year years years cash flow value

T T Tk Fibr T Tk T
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HKS'000

FERIRA R MAERZUR  Trade and other payables - 2,629 6,553 2,737 54 - 11973 11973
HEAH IR 2 50E Retention monies payables - 21 43 493 59 - 1,186 1,186
R A R Obligations under finance leases 5.28% - 60 161 14 - 935 833
TR (HEG)) Bank loans (Note (i) 4.25% 17328 07 2,122 13,871 2,580 36,608 34424
BTiEL Bank overdrafts 5.25% 8,361 - - - - 8,361 8,361
Hofly 3 — 154 Other loan-secured 8.50% - 425 21275 - - 21,700 20,000
28,529 8,168 26,788 14,698 2,580 80,763 76,777
“F-Lnk
2015
HETH

BRI AiH

Weighted RAW At
average BB AN ZHAZ—E  —ERHE AR Total T i
effective On Less than 3 months to 1to5 Over 5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rates demand 3 months 1 year years years cash flow value

T T T T Fibx T Tt
HKS'000  HKS'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000

FERT BRI R MRERTZ0R  Trade and other payables = 7,798 7,743 3,706 21 = 19,468 19,468
JE (3 4 208 Retention monies payables = 1,612 159 56 534 = 2,361 2,361
ENik Obligations under finance leases 732% = 176 472 445 = 1,093 527
RATER () Bank loans (Note (i) 421% 16,291 707 2,122 13,964 5315 38,399 35,603
BESL Bank overdrafts 5.25% 12,062 = = = = 12,062 12,062

37,763 8,785 6,356 15,164 5,315 73,383 70,021

152 ERZBARAT WLS Holdings Limited
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40. o A B A PE ()

i B 4 B ()
R

() BRI IR RS AT B B A
o B 1 4 A B A B4 | 2 REBE o i
—NERTEFHAENA=+H > ERT
AR U B A 45 HRLE 53 Tl 2 #034,424,000 75 76
% #135,603,000 7T o 25 iF FI| A 4 ] 1 B 5 IR
UL > 30 R R SR AT AT O LB R B AR
R G RE o 3 AR UL R SRAT EEHO AR §8
BRI R TR R A R - R TN
ERE-FENA=Z+H AL RHE
H 4 i i £936,608,0009 0 (. F — FL4F ¢
#138,399,00037C) ©

B s Il Bt

A1 JEL o 2 i < L Y 81 A1 B e 2
95 8 1) Ja g

SRR Z Z AN R LR A 225 > BILAIR
SES AR 2 i B 2 BBT o AR R
R EEBWM LRI - AEHE A REE
AEAT IR — B W2 by AR Rz B - R A
T A i i S A SR TR e e 5% 7 2 R LR o
Ut > BB HTIE R 25 o

O P2 At

A U 2 e A I 2 4 3
BBUHAT-EM -

R LR TN 2 5 B 2 TR B U A R ]
PR T 2 AR I A 0 5 B 1 5 > O A0l 72
SRR L N FHH

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Liquidity risk (Continued)
Note:

(i) Bank loans with a repayment on demand clause are included in the “on demand”
time band in the above maturity analysis. As at 30 April 2016 and 2015, the
aggregate undiscounted principal amounts of these bank loans amounted to
approximately HK$34,424,000 and approximately HK$35,603,000, respectively.
Taking into account the Group’s financial position, the directors do not believe
that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretionary rights to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that such bank loans will be repaid in
accordance with the scheduled repayment dates set out in the loan agreements. As
at 30 April 2016 and 2015, the aggregate principal and interest cash outflows will
amount to approximately HK$36,608,000 (2015: approximately HK$38,399,000).

Foreign currency risk

Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will

fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk primarily through transactions
that are denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily the Macau Pataca and the United States dollar. The Group mitigates
this risk by conducting transactions in the same currency, whenever possible.
The directors consider there is no material exposure to the Macau Pataca and
the United States dollar as at the end of the reporting period. Accordingly,

sensitivity analysis have not been presented.
Estimation of fair values

The notional amounts of financial assets and liabilities with a maturity of less

than one year are assumed to approximate their fair values.
The fair value of balances with related parties have not been determined as

the timing of the expected cash flows of these balances cannot be reasonably

determined because of the relationship.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Fair value estimation

The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair value, by
valuation method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

D Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or

liabilities (level 1).

. Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

. Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value at 30 April 2016.

RN
2016
8B 50 B0 At
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
THIT THs T THs T THTT
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
B Assets
Al i B A Available-for-sale
investments 43,361 - - 43,361
A 5 DA FEA(E Financial assets at fair
F iR 1 4 il S value through profit
or loss 59,902 - - 59,902
At 45 Pl Other financial assets
——MBEARZ — call option of 7%
7% Ay 2 R T HE shares of an associate
(TFRHEHIRE D) (“the Call Option™) - - _ _
S S K2
2015
B ¢ 3| B0 Hak
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T T#IT THs T THTT
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000
HoAth 4 il B Other financial assets
——HBEARZ — call option of 7%
7% e 2 5 1 B shares of an associate
(TR IEHIRE 1) (“the Call Option™) - - 1,641 1,641

18] 4 2 ST 438 A6 11 58 = S (H o

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

These were no transfers into or out of level 3 during both years.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Fair value estimation (Continued)
Financial instruments in level 3

The fair values of the call option that is not trade in an active market as at 30
April 2015 and 2016 were arrived at on the basis of valuations carried out by
Ascent Partners Valuation Service Limited, a professional independent valuer
not connected to the Group. The call option was valued by the Binomial model
and market approach. The market approach is to use the valuation multiples
derived from the market prices and financial data of listed companies in a
similar business and with a similar business model as those of the company
being valued. The P/E ratio used to estimate the company value was based on
comparable market P/E ratio. The Group uses a variety of methods and makes
assumptions that are based on market conditions existing at the end of the
reporting period.

The key unobservable data is expected volatility. The expected volatility
adopted in estimating the fair value of the call option as at 30 April 2016 is
39.46% (2015: 52.22%). Change in this unobservable data will materially
affect the fair value of the financial instruments.

No sensitivity analysis was prepared in relation to the fair value risk of the call
option as the directors consider the exposure is limited.

Equity price risk

The following table indicates the approximate change in the Group’s loss after
tax (and accumulated losses) in response to reasonably possible changes in the
relevant stock market price (for listed investments) to which the Group have
significant exposure at the end of the reporting period.

—E N
2016
R 28D ) o o At > FRBef s 18 S s 2 i A i 2
¥im/ (W4d) BrbEiEz iy s -2
Increase/ Effect on loss Effect on
(decrease) in after tax and other
the relevant accumulated components
risk variable losses of equity
T#t T#u
HK$°000 HK$°000
TEIE E A 2 T EHM 0 Market price of underlying listed
investments:
10% 5,002 3,504
(10%) (5,002) (3,504)

TREFIWE T RENA =1 HILERES
SO TR S o

The following table presents the changes in level 3 instruments for the year
ended 30 April 2016.

b i 10 i

The Call Option

Tt

HK$’000

AT G R Opening balance 1,641

T HE 25 HERR 2 N T{E s 1E Fair value loss recognised in profit or loss (1,641)

ER AR Closing balance _
AT EP [ R HIRE ~ Total loss for the year included in profit or loss under

/\ﬂﬁfﬁ ) | 2 A4 A

o0 ST HE 2 % Y L Y S0 35 I B

“change in fair value of call option” 1,641

The fair value of the call option is positively correlated to the expected
volatility.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)
Fair value estimation (Continued)

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers out of fair value
hierarchy levels as of the date of the event or change in circumstances that
caused the transfer. There were no reclassifications of financial assets nor

transfers between levels during the year.
Management of capital

The primary objective of the Group’s capital management is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy capital

ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in
light of changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or
issue new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
during the years ended 30 April 2016 and 2015.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is total debt divided
by the total capital. Total debt includes interest-bearing borrowings and
obligations under finance leases. The gearing ratios as at the end of the

reporting period were as follows:

ZF A e S S

2016 2015

T THIT

HK$°000 HK$°000

B B SRAT 5 8 S 52 Interest-bearing bank loans and overdrafts 42,785 47,665
ol B — R Other loans-secured 20,000 =
Rl A 4 A A Obligations under finance leases 833 527
M fE Total debts 63,618 48,192
HUEAR (i) Total capital (i) 801,365 281,910
EiE AR Gearing ratio 8% 17%

() HERREIEAEE T EA R o SRR A A
e REA N o

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

(i) Equity includes all capital and reserves of the Group, attributable to equity holders
of the Company.
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries, which are limited liability companies,

HREALAHR) FEFWT at 30 April 2016 are as follows:
AATFHHEBARA
WL/ Al AR 2 T L 91
R C#T Rk Proportion of
Place of BA BRI A nominal value of
incorporation/  E LR Issued and issued share capital/
i} 1 2 v 4 % registration/ Form of fully paid up registered capital EXE S0
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity share capital held by the Company Principal activities
H% %
Directly  Indirectly
HIEARAF KBRS ARATF TR 8T 100% - BEER
Bright Advantage Limited British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands Company HK$7.8
R E AR WHAETRRE ARAH BT 8W T 100% - REER
Conkar Investments Limited British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands Company HK$7.8
Estate Sun Global Limited KBRS ARATF e 7803 T 100% - BUEER
British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands Company HK$780
B EEARAF i HR AT Tl 1T - 100%  BEFEMK
First Occasion Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Company HKS$1
SRFBEARAF il A RAT BT - 100% {88
Gold Medal Hong Kong Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Money lending
company HKS$1
EELEARAF KRR ARAF LR80T 100% - BEER
Jubilee Treasure Investments British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Limited Islands Company HK$780
N IR G R A PR T ik ARAF gl - 100% REGR
OX Financial Investment Hong Kong Limited 10,0003 7T Investment holding
Holdings Limited Company Ordinary
HK$10,000
AR TR IR IR A A ik ARAF LA 1,000 7T - 51%  KEHEAEZERS
Sense Key Design Holdings Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Fitting out business
Limited company HK$1,000
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(CONTINUED)
AATRH CBRA
WL/, ik 5 A 2 1A b
g2k CE#fT R Proportion of
Place of HA BRBEAR nominal value of
incorporation/  EH#E R Issued and issued share capital/
it 1 25 v 4 H% registration/ Form of fully paid up registered capital FEEY
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity share capital held by the Company Principal activities
H#% I %
Directly  Indirectly
KB A R A il AR gl - 100% WHMKETES
10,000 #C
Skylon International Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Gondolas rental
company HK$10,000
K 5 AR A il AR 3 i = 100% SR i A 5
10,000 # T
Skyway Transport & Trading Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of transportation
Company Limited company HK$10,000 services
BRERBARAR KB AR ARAT e i 7801 7T 100% - BEER
Talent Gain International Limited ~ British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands Company HK$780
FEARAF KRR ARAF LR80T 100% - BEER
Up Billion Limited British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands Company HK$780
HEARAR KRAEM AR ARAA e 7.8 T 100% - BRRE
Upright Victory Limited British Virgin Limited Ordinary Securities Investment
Islands Company HK$7.8
WLS (BVI) Limited RS ARAR EER300,378W T 100% - BEER
British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands Company HK$300,378
BBk A PR KRR ARAF L7 8% T 100% - BEER
World Lion Global Limited British Virgin Limited Ordinary Investment holding
Islands Company HK$7.8
EEEEAMAR i HIRAF LRkl - 100%  MEASE 3RS
10,000 #t
Graceman Industrial Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Dormant
company HK$10,000

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)
AN R CBRRA
WL/ Gk, i A 2 0 6 L
R (SR 273 Proportion of
Place of L IN 0 A nominal value of
incorporation/  E R Issued and issued share capital/
it 8 2 ) 4 B registration/ Form of fully paid up registered capital FEE
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity share capital held by the Company Principal activities
H#% %
Directly  Indirectly
EETRARAH ik AR gl - 0% BMTEERS - &at - #
1,226,667i#7C &~ MR SRR A K Bl
OB AL de bt 2 23 B i
(e
Sinogain Engineering Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Trading, design, sales, repairs
company HK$1,226,667 and maintenance of gondolas
and parapet railings and
access equipment installation
and maintenance services
TERE TREE A RA T ik AR gl - 100%  $RALAE S AR
10,0009 ¢
WLS Contractors Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of management
company HK$10,000 contracting services
TERE (ERF) TR ARAH 1 AR el - 96% &M TREEFE
25,0001 1%
WLS (Macau) Engineering Macau Limited Ordinary Scaffolding works business
Company Limited company MOP25,000
TERER R A R A ) i AR il - 100% SR AR R A s
100,000 ¢
Wui Loong Consultancy Company ~ Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Provision of consultancy
Limited company HK$100,000 services
kLB ARAR i AR el - 100%  WI3EHA
100,000% ¢
Wui Loong Holdings Company Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Property holding
Limited company HK$100,000
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41. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)
AN R CBRRA
WL/ i A 2 0 6 L
R (SR 273 Proportion of
Place of EA L YN nominal value of
incorporation/  E R Issued and issued share capital/
it 8 2 ) 4 B registration/ Form of fully paid up registered capital FEE
Name of subsidiary operations legal entity share capital held by the Company Principal activities
H#% i 4%
Directly  Indirectly
ERE M 564 PR 7 i AR 7] T 2w T - 100%  $4H0 CRESERS R 5K
Eigie
AL (3T
1,900,000%5 7T
Wui Loong Scaffolding Works Hong Kong Limited Ordinary HK$2 Scaffolding works business and
Company Limited company Non-voting property investment
deferred (Note)
HK$1,900,000
TERE R G AEA R ik AR izl - 100%  #EH TREET;
100,000%5 ¢
Wui Loong System Scaffolds Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Scaffolding work business
Company Limited company HK$100,000
B i PR 7 il HIRAF LRkl - 100%  HE%EIBES
100,000 76
Wui Luen Engineering Company ~ Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Fitting out business
Limited company HK$100,000
EREERARAR i HIR AT LRI - 100% & BRARHS
10,0003 ¢
Wui Loong Resources Limited Hong Kong Limited Ordinary Management service
company HK$10,000

FRGE © A3 S G P A R A BB, ~ R L
PR G sl fE € B4R > IR AR T A 2 R IRl
G Hh B B2 AT AT R R (MR b3k v A R N R T
AR A R A N R 1,000,00008 9 018 2 A
B 1 — 2L A5 BR PR AL -

T R AR A AT IR (] - 2% B JA8 2 ) A8 e

BATEAT B S -

ERINVEA R FEER T
B E AN T A o FER RS

£ 9

i

BiFJag 2% 7 2 wEA A R IR AR R TU R

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

S SLES

Note: The non-voting deferred shares carry no rights to dividends, no rights to attend
or vote at general meetings and no rights to receive any surplus assets in a return
of capital in a winding-up (other than one half of the balance of such assets after
the sum of HK$100,000 billion has been distributed to the holders of the ordinary
shares of the Company in such winding-up).

None of the subsidiaries had any debt security outstanding at the end of the

reporting period or at any time during the year.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinion
of the directors of the Company, principally affected the results or assets of
the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the

directors, result in particulars of excessive length.
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42. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED
SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS

The table below shows details of non-controlling-owned subsidiaries of the

Group that have material non-controlling interests:

e B £ i i R M
ySie 2Rl YT M b 2 B
MR/ R Proportion of ownership Total comprehensive LS00
I 25 W) 44 1 Place of incorporation and interests and voting rights held  income attributable to Accumulated
Name of subsidiary principal place of business by non-controlling interests non-controlling interests non-controlling interests
RN CE-nf ZBNME CER-IE R CF-OH
2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015
T#7 Tt T T
HK$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Dragon Oriental Investment Limited REER RS - 49% - 21,528 - 21,528
BVI
A TR A R A ik 49% 49% 2,130 1,876 2,130 1,876

Sense Key Design Holdings Limited Hong Kong

A T R A A 7 R IR 2 ) MR 5 P %5 R A R
B (5 BEAR AT« DU AR BB 5 B AR
A [ TR BT < R S

Summarised financial information in respect of each of the Group’s
subsidiaries that has material non-controlling interests is set out below. The
summarised financial information below represents amounts before intragroup
eliminations.
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42. DETAILS OF NON-WHOLLY OWNED

SUBSIDIARIES THAT HAVE MATERIAL
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

Sense Key Design Holdings Limited

BN R T

2016 2015

T ou TH#TC

HK$°000 HKS$’000

L) E Current assets 10,656 6,296
IE ) B E Non-current assets 705 481
L) A Current liabilities (7,013) (2,949)
B A Non-current liabilities - -

AR FI AR A NG RE i Equity attributable to equity holders of

the Company 2,218 1,952

I PR Non-controlling interests 2,130 1,876
A Revenue 55,223 17,452
BUAS ~ B > HoAd A K 4R Costs, expenses, other gains and losses (54,081) (13,624)
A B Vi A1) B A T AL i AR R Profit and total comprehensive income for the year 1,142 3,828

JE A 5 1) B 2 T ARk R Profit and total comprehensive income
attributable to:

AN FRE A A A5 £ Equity holders of the Company 582 1,952
T PE I HE 2 Non-controlling interests 560 1,876
1,142 3,828

s 2 BT A T Net cash inflow from operating activities 1,823 522
OGN B 2 B4 AR Net cash outflow in investing activities (329) (495)
Pl T ) 2 B A R A I Net cash inflow from financing activities - 1
B4R AT Net cash inflow 1,494 28
i Bz R 43. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

W ZFE—NELH /R H > A A HRed
Metro Limited ([ Red Metro |) #1537 & # %

(TEEm®]) > it > Red Metro g 1614 7] &
W B AR A R A RER R L AR AR 2 AR
fff /& /A 7] Estate Sun Global Limited ( [ Estate
Sun |) 22,000 8% i £33 ([ & By 1) > AE
20,000,000% 7T ° ¥ 58 BLAC Z IRF > & B A
‘H Ji*Estate Sun 100% . #8817 AS » Estate Sun
Frf iz SR BR R W) S P A PR W) 2 20% B 34T
JREA > 3% v 2w H B g A F 1E 2R S b AR 3
> EESEARM - BARTERERZY
¥ o HMEREMERCR -F—ANFASH—H%
E\Z o

FIEE R AN RN —F—RNFEAH 175 H
TIEE 2 AN A o

EEZARAR AR WLS Holdings Limited

On 26 May 2016, the Company entered into a sale and purchase agreement (“SP
Agreement”) with Red Metro Limited (“Red Metro”), pursuant to which Red
Metro conditionally agreed to purchase, and the Company conditionally agree to
sell, 2,000 shares of Estate Sun Global Limited (“Estate Sun”) (“Sale Shares”), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, at a consideration of HK$20,000,000.
The Sale Shares represented 100% of issued share capital of Estate Sun. Estate
Sun held 20% of issued share capital of AP Assets, which together with its
subsidiaries, is engaged in real estate agency business especially the sale of
properties in Australia, Malaysia and the United Kingdom. Such SP Agreement
was completed on 1 June 2016.

Details refer to the announcement published by the Company on 26 May 2016.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

E¥ RESULTS
BEWMAH =1 H IL4EE
Year ended 30 April
SERNE RN ZFREgE SR =2 ZF T
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Tl T T THT T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
BER Turnover 155,451 136,641 111,961 125,949 115,124
S LA Cost of sales (131,633) (118,885) (102,254) (106,741) (94,358)
Ecyil Gross profit 23,818 17,756 9,707 19,208 20,766
HAthg A Other income 4,203 1,956 1,058 1,570 1,462
HAthlie gz & (548 > Other gain and (loss), net
B 3,412 = = = -
ATE AT LB Operating and administrative
expenses (34,975) (28,099) (75,012) (32,771) (34,128)
BEWEANTEZ (Decrease)/increase in fair value
() /s of investment properties (9,880) 5,071 620 6,410 6,850
HEMHE 2 A T(E% ) Change in fair value of call
option (1,641) 1,610 - - -
k& ] Gain/(loss) on disposal of
YR F (F518) property, plant and equipment 81 418 (183) 6 13,345
8 —HIfE/AFA  Gain on disposal of a subsidiary
Wi 4 202 - - - =
PRATHE F A fE%:  Loss on early redemption of
b ki convertible bonds - (743) _ _ _
EN G ] Loss on write-off of property,
2R R plant and equipment 8) (1,237) - - =
Bl R A Finance costs (2,230) (5,575) (2,093) (1,612) (1,863)
P 2 W E Impairment of goodwill - - (3,138) - -
JRE WKk A ) K Impairment of amounts due from
BEAAZBIE associates and joint ventures - - - (6,779) -
i YN E Share of results of associates 206 1,315 = = =
FRBLRT (B51E) /%Al (Loss)/profit before taxation (16,812) (7,528) (69,041) (13,968) 6,432
BiIE Taxation (5,689) (206) 7,572 (661) (2,243)
ARAERE (F518) /%Al (Loss)/profit for the year (22,501) (7,734) (61,469) (14,629) 4,189
g &=L ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
PH=+H
At 30 April
SERNE SR -NFE ZFRmgE SR =2 ZF T
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
Tl T T T T Tiso T T
HK$°000 HKS$°000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
MG E Total assets 882,288 373,864 183,286 208,892 205,050
FS=Ni Total liabilities (86,101) (75,638) (90,117) (80,918) (63,273)
796,187 298,226 93,169 127,974 141,777
EN/NGIL EEE 2 DN Equity attributable to equity
JRE A R 4 holders of the Company 801,365 281,910 99,623 134,234 147,777
I e R 45 Non-controlling interests (5,178) 16,316 (6,454) (6,260) (6,000)
796,187 298,226 93,169 127,974 141,777
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R_ZF—ANEMA=1+THZ#E  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES AS AT 30 APRIL 2016
LES

HE 4% 81 45 i A
(CEITW) 7 445 I i A
Approximate R B MEER RELE A 4 b
LES R & saleable area Vacant Held Percentage of the

Description Use (square feet) Status under Group’s interest

) FEFEFEI 7 11 1,756 HiAH RN E 100%
SEBLAE 1195 Commercial Rental Long term lease
MR AR 104521-23 %

(B WA 4 BL423%5%)

Unit 21-23 on 10/F,

Tower A, Southmark,

No. 11 Yip Hing Street,

Hong Kong

(Aberdeen Inland Lot No. 423)

2)  HEFEBFET [N 2,285 A RIHE 100%
SEBAT 1157 Commercial Rental  Long term lease
B AP 104812527 %
(B AT i Br4235%)
Unit 25-27 on 10/F,
Tower A, Southmark,
No. 11 Yip Hing Street,
Hong Kong
(Aberdeen Inland Lot No. 423)

164 EEZRARAE WLS Holdings Limited
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